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MOST IMPORTANT 2007-2010 BUSINESS INDICATORS 

	 2007	 2008	 2009	 2010	 Index	4/1	 Index	4/3

 1 2 3 4 5 6

Total revenues 2,803,978 3,194,798 2,980,479 2,826,292 100.8 94.8

      

Sales revenues      

Croatia  1,438,647 1,585,953 1,443,484 1,159,597 80.6 80.3

Exports  1,146,207 1,288,618 1,231,654 1,305,220 113.9 106.0

Total  2,584,854 2,874,571 2,675,138 2,464,817 95.4 92.1

      

Works contracted      

Croatia  2,239,825 1,359,172 861,708 812,489 36.3 94.3

Exports  1,701,198 1,157,581 1,199,820 1,287,723 75.7 107.3

Total  3,941,023 2,516,753 2,061,528 2,100,212 53.3 101.9

      

Contracted works status at year-end       

Croatia  2,184,437 1,903,316 1,218,166 910,783 41.7 74.8

Exports  1,306,908 1,147,246 1,239,963 1,222,466 93.5 98.6

Total  3,491,345 3,050,562 2,458,129 2,133,249 61.1 86.8

      

No. of employees 31 Dec. 4,217 4,274 4,110 3,938 93.4 95.8

      

Sales per employee 613,0 672,6 650,9 625,9 102.1 96.2

      

Group’s profit 116,223 129,570 145,113 186,036 160.1 128.2

Minority interests 32,326 25,738 32,290 31,060 96.1 96.2

Net profits  83,897 103,832 112,823 154,976 184.7 137.4

      

Fixed assets  1,090,797 1,111,601 1,173,484 1,186,101 108.7 101.1

Current assets 1,759,860 2,181,882 2,094,426 2,106,501 119.7 100.6

Total assets 2,850,657 3,293,483 3,267,910 3,292,602 115.5 100.8

Long-term liabilities  88,497 68,040 75,419 81,299 91.9 107.8

Current liabilities  982,101 1,194,222 933,728 775,539 79.0 83.1

Total liabilities  1,070,598 1,262,262 1,009,147 856,838 80.0 84.9

Shareholders’ equity  1,028,848 1,028,848 1,028,848 1,028,848 100.0 100.0

Total capital and reserves 1,201,417 1,295,097 1,417,275 1,577,487 131.3 111.3

      

EBIT 154,803 164,153 176,714 218,944 141.4 123.9

      

Return on Capital 6.98% 8.02% 7.96% 9.82% 140.7 123.4

      

Return on Sales 3.25% 3.61% 4.22% 6.29% 193.7 149.1

      

Earning per share  32.97 40.37 43.86 60.25 182.7 137.4

IN HRK 000
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PREFACE BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

In 2010, the business op-
erations of the KONČAR 
group went on in pro-
foundly adverse operating 
circumstances. Unlike the 
globally important econo-
mies, the Croatian, and a 
large number of those in 
the environment, had not 
recovered from the eco-
nomic and financial crisis, 

but went on with operations in conditions of prolonged 
stagnation, which had a considerable effect on the 
business of the KONČAR Group companies. 

The absence or slow-down of investment at home was 
reflected in the number of contracts being 13% down 
on the situation as of the end of 2009, and this brought 
about a fall in sales income from goods and services in 
the domestic market. Increased export activities in part 
compensated for the considerable fall on the local mar-
ket, and in 2010 world market sales exceeded those 
on the home market. Exports went up by 6% from the 
previous year, and accounted for 54% of total sales of 
goods and services.

Notwithstanding the complex conditions of doing busi-
ness and the great pressure from competition on the 
market place, in 2010 the KONČAR Group performed 
well. With better management of market and financial 
risks, constant control and rationalisation of operational 
costs and the satisfactory understanding arrived at 
with the social partners, the Group’s profitability and 
financial stability were maintained. Good business re-
sults were achieved and were furthermore based on 
in-house development of products and production; re-
search projects are a lasting characteristic of KONČAR, 
and are continuing in the succeeding period, with inno-
vations and prototypes that should result in new prod-
ucts and an expansion in business activities.

In 2010, the KONČAR Group’s revenues from the sale 
of goods and services came to 2,464.8 million kuna. 
The domestic market took goods and services amount-
ing to 1,159.6 million kuna, while 1,305.2 million kuna 
came from goods and services sold on the export mar-
ket. A whole series of structures and facilities were 
completed in Croatia and on the demanding market of 
the EU and in the countries in the environment, while 
considerable exports also went to the Middle East. 
Consolidated pre-tax profits of the Group came to 201.6 
million kuna. Corporate income tax paid came to 15.6 
million kuna, and hence profit after tax to 186 million 

kuna, with 31.1 million kuna going to non-controlling 
interests, and net profit coming to 154.9 million kuna.

In 2010 in total contracts for new jobs worth 2,100.2 
million kuna were signed. At the end of 2010, the order 
books showed contracts worth 2,133.2 million kuna. 
Some of the more important contracts signed in 2010 
on the home market were for the development of Dug-
opolje Substation and on the export market the equip-
ping of Toro 3 HPP (Costa Rica), the reconstruction of 
Fierza, Koman and Vau and Dejes S/Ss (Albania), the 
reconstruction of Prizren S/S (Kosovo), in addition to a 
series of other facility and equipment orders at home 
and abroad. 

In conjunction with ongoing engineering and techno-
logical improvements and advancements to our prod-
ucts, production and business processes, with persist-
ent adjustment to market conditions, improvement of 
the educational and age structure of the labour force, 
there is also a lasting encouragement of and support to 
a system of values in which work, creativity and excel-
lence are attaining an ever more important place in our 
companies. The KONČAR Group systematically fosters 
and backs socially accountable business.

In KONČAR, social accountability is a part of the daily 
working processes in all segments of operations, draw-
ing on the human potential as the main generator for 
the development of the corporation. In addition to be-
ing responsible to the environment in which it works, 
KONČAR has set environmental management as one 
of the priorities of its business operations; the result 
is visible in customer satisfaction and in the increas-
ing number of certificates proving compliance with the 
highest requirements. Apart from the ISO 9001, OH-
SAS 18001 and numerous other separate certificates 
and standards, as many as eighteen companies in the 
KONČAR Group have the ISO 14001 certificate.

Socially accountable business helps KONČAR in the 
building of its reputation and motivates employees to 
work long-term on the business development of the 
company, all contributing to the attainment of the cor-
poration’s established and adopted plans.

Chairman of the Board
Darinko Bago
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SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT TO THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF KONČAR - 
ELECTRICAL INDUSTRY INC.

On 18 June 2008, the Gen-
eral Assembly of KONČAR 
- Electrical Industry Inc. has 
selected the Supervisory 
Board members for a four-
year office, the membership 
comprising: Ante Babić, Leo 
Begović, Kristijan Floričić, 
Igor Lučić, Nenad Matić, 
Zdenka Matković and Đuro 
Perica. Jasminka Belačić is a 

member of the Supervisory Board appointed by the em-
ployees, whereas Ivan Rujnić is a member appointed by 
the small shareholders’ association.

On 3 May 2010, the Croatian Privatisation Fund has issued 
a Statement on Recalling an Appointed Supervisory Board 
Member to relieve Mr. Leo Begović, and has appointed 
Mr. Ruđer Friganović a new Supervisory Board member. 

As of 3 May 2010, the Supervisory Board operates with 
the following composition: 
Supervisory Board Chairman: Igor Lučić
Supervisory Board Deputy Chairperson: Jasminka Belačić
Supervisory Board Members: Ante Babić
 Kristijan Floričić
 Ruđer Friganović
 Nenad Matić
 Zdenka Matković
 Đuro Perica
 Ivan Rujnić

During the course of 2010, the Supervisory Board has held 
a total of six sessions during which it discussed numerous 
Company’s operations-related issues. 

Members of the Company’s Management Board also at-
tend the Supervisory Board sessions. Within the frame-
work of business areas under their respective remits and 
responsibilities, they refer to individual issues and provide 
the Supervisory Board all the required additional explana-
tions to allow the Supervisory Board thoroughly discuss 
all of the agenda items and take position on them, i.e. to 
make the necessary decisions. In that regard, the Super-
visory Board judges its cooperation with Management 
Board a very successful one.

The Audit Committee has held a total of three sessions. 
Committee sessions served as a forum to discuss and 
make decision within the framework of authorities and 
responsibilities as envisaged in the Audit Act. 

In keeping with its duties, the Supervisory Board has con-
ducted supervision of the operations and examined the 
books and documentation of the Company, establishing 
that KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. has been operating 

in line with the law, the Company Charter, as well as the 
decisions taken by the General Assembly. 

The Supervisory Board has examined audit reports filed by 
Grant Thornton ltd. seated in Zagreba, 16 Koranska street, 
and Reconsult ltd. seated in Zagreb, 4/I Trg hrvatskih ve-
likana, audit firms which have examined the 2010 annual 
financial statements of the Company, and has accepted 
the audit reports filed. 

After examining the 2010 annual financial statements of 
the Company and the 2010 consolidated annual financial 
statements of KONČAR Group as supplied by Manage-
ment Board of the Company, the Supervisory Board has 
established that the 2010 annual financial statements and 
the consolidated annual financial statements of KONČAR 
Group have been produced in line with the state-of-play 
presented in the books of the Company and that they 
present true and fair status of Company’s assets and op-
erations. On those grounds, the Supervisory Board has ex-
pressed its consent, whereby the statements have been 
deemed established in pursuance with the provisions con-
tained in Article 300 (d) of the Companies Act. 

The Supervisory Board has expressed its consent on the 
2010 annual report on the status of KONČAR - Electrical 
Industry Inc. and the subsidiaries. 

Furthermore, Management Board of KONČAR - Electri-
cal Industry Inc. has made a proposal to the Supervisory 
Board concerning the utilisation of the generated 2010 
profits, whereby a net profit for KONČAR - Electrical In-
dustry Inc. was established at HRK 61,515,089.04. After 
distributing the profits to the legally required reserves, 
statutory, treasury stock buy-in and other reserves, the 
remaining disposable profits totalled HRK 30,865,428.00.

A proposal was made to the General Assembly of 
KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. that the disposable 
profits amounting to HRK 30,865,428.00 be distributed to 
shareholders as dividends. 

The Supervisory Board agrees with the proposal made 
by Management Board and recommends the General As-
sembly adopt the said decision. 

The Supervisory Board files this report to the General As-
sembly of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. and proposes 
that the General Assembly of KONČAR - Electrical Indus-
try Inc. adopts Management Board’s proposal on the utili-
sation of the disposable profits generated during the year 
of 2010. 

Zagreb, 15 April 2011   

Supervisory Board Chairman 

Igor Lučić
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ORGANISATION AND MANAGEMENT

7

KONČAR Group’s business activities are 
divided into the following business areas:

Energy and Transport
•  design and construction of plants for the production, 

transfer and distribution of electric energy and ancil-
lary equipment, thyristor locomotives, tramcars, elec-
tric multiple units and electric equipment for lineside 
electric traction facilities

Industry
•  electric motor plants, medium and low voltage electric 

equipment, and catering equipment

Trading
•  electric household appliances, serial products and 

low-voltage electrical appliances

Special activities
•  research and development of products and infrastruc-

tural services. 

The KONČAR Group consists of KONČAR - ELECTRI-
CAL INDUSTRY Inc. as the parent company and 20 
subsidiaries, in which the parent company exercises 
predominant influence (more than 50 per cent of votes 
at the General Assembly). Some of the companies have 
preferred shares subscribed in addition to the common 
shares issued. In addition, the parent company exercis-
es minority management influence (49 per cent of votes 
at the General Assembly) in an (affiliated) company. 

The companies belonging to Group’s structure are legally 
autonomous entities, while the parent company exer-
cises supervising role, it provides strategic direction and 
supports them through companies’ supervisory boards. 
These activities are being performed in pursuance to the 
Companies Act, the KONČAR - ELECTRICAL INDUSTRY 
Inc. Charter and the Charters of individual companies. 
Furthermore, the Parent Company exercises govern-
ance over a portion of assets which weren’t invested 
into companies but are a direct or an indirect function of 
financial support of sales, products and the equipment of 
the subsidiaries as a credit-guarantee potential. 

KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc.

ENERGY AND TRANSPORT INDUSTRY AND TRADE

POWER PLANT AND EL.
TRACTION ENGINEERING

GENERATORS AND MOTORS

HIGH VOLTAGE
SWITCHGEAR

MEDIUM VOLTAGE 
APPARATUS

SWITCHGEAR

DISTRIBUTION AND SPECIAL 
TRANSFORMERS

HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES

CATERING EQUIPMENT

TOOLS

SMALL ELECTRICAL 
MACHINES

LOW VOLTAGE SWITCH. AND 
CIRCUIT BREAKERS

COMPANIES ABROAD

SWITZERLAND

SPECIAL ACTIVITIES

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING 
INSTITUTE

INFRASTRUCTURE AND
SERVICES REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

RUSSIAN FEDERATION

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA

SERBIA

POWER TRANSFORMERS

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

INSTRUMENT
TRANSFORMERS

ELECTRONICS AND 
INFORMATICS

ELECTRIC VEHICLES

METAL STRUCTURES

ENG. FOR PLANT INSTALLATION 
& COMMISSIONING

RENEWABLE SOURCES
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HRK HRK % %

SUBSIDIARIES 

Subscribed
Capital

Total

Parent’s	
Subscribed

Capital

Management
of	the	Parent
31	Dec.	2010

Ownership
of	the	Parent
31	Dec.	2010

PLANT & EL. TRACTION ENG. 2,682,600 2,682,600 100.00 100.00

GENERATORS AND MOTORS    107,927,700 107,927,700 100.00 100.00

HIGH VOLTAGE SWITCHGEAR 41,201,400 33,450,300 85.19 81.19

MEDIUM VOLTAGE APPARATUS 19,679,700 8,220,000 69.87 41.77

SWITCHGEAR 36,966,000 16,899,000 66.85 45.71

DISTRIBUTION & SPECIAL TRANS. 76,684,800 39,655,200 67.80 51.71

INSTRUMENT TRANSFORMERS 18,989,100 8,241,600 72.35 43.40

ELECTRONICS AND INFORMATICS 37,126,800 27,857,700 75.03 75.03

METAL STRUCTURES 24,645,600 18,486,600 75.01 75.01

ELECTRIC VEHICLES      47,026,800 35,288,700 75.04 75.04

RENEWABLE SOURCES 68,489,300 68,489,300 100.00 100.00

PLANT INSTALLATION AND COMM.     11,827,500 4,552,800 76.51 38.49

SMALL ELECTRICAL MACHINES 41,641,800 41,641,800 100.00 100.00

TOOLS 49,166,400 49,166,400 100.00 100.00

CATERING EQUIPMENT 25,447,800 25,447,800 100.00 100.00

HOUSEHOLD APPLIANCES 127,877,500 127,877,500 100.00 100.00

LV SWITCHES AND CIRC.BREAK. 81,466,900 81,466,900 100.00 100.00

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING INST. 40,763,520 40,763,520 100.00 100.00

INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 49,891,600 49,891,600 100.00 100.00

KONES AG     2,964,984 1,897,588 77.50 64.00

AFFILIATED COMPANY 

POWER TRANSFORMERS 72,764,000 35,654,400 49.00 49.00

As Parent Company, KONČAR - Electrical 
Industry Inc. invoices the subsidiaries for 
the following services: 

•  Fees for corporate name, brand and trade marks use, 

•  A portion of costs incurred for joint presentations in 
fairs,

•  A portion of costs of agencies abroad, 

•  A portion of joint marketing activities costs,

•  Central norms library services,

•  Managers’ seminars, quality and environment systems. 

An overview of the subsidiaries and the affiliated com-
panies has been provided below, including some core 
information. 
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MANAGEMENT BOARD

The Supervisory Board appoints and relieves the Chief 
Executive Officer and Board members. The CEO’s and 
Board members’ mandates last for five years, with an 
option of reappointment. Pursuant to the Companies 
Act and the Company Charter, Management Board runs 
the operation under its own remit. In doing so, they are 
obliged and authorised to take any actions and deci-
sions deemed necessary to successfully manage the 
Company. Supervisory Board’s consent is required to 
make certain decisions prescribed in the Charter.

During 2010, the KONČAR - Electrical Industry 
Inc. company was managed by a Management 
Board consisted of:

Darinko Bago Chief Executive Officer 

Marina Kralj Miliša  Board member in charge of Legal, 
General and HR matters 

Jozo Miloloža  Board member in charge of 
Finance 

Davor Mladina  Board member in charge of 
Industry and Trade business areas 

Vladimir Plečko  Board member in charge of 
Corporate Development and ICT

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the Compani-
es Act and the Charter of KONČAR - Electrical Industry 
Inc., the General Assembly makes decisions on appo-
inting and relieving the Supervisory Board. The Super-
visory Board is responsible for appointing and relieving 
the members of Management Board and for supervi-
sing the operation of the Company. Some transactions 
(the amount of such transactions being provided for by 
Company’s Charter) and more significant business deci-
sions require Supervisory Board’s consent.

The Supervisory Board consists of nine 
members and operated with the following 
composition:  

Igor Lučić Supervisory Board Chairman 

Jasminka Belačić Deputy Chairperson

Ante Babić Member

Kristijan Floričić Member

Ruđer Friganović Member

Zdenka Matković Member

Nenad Matić Member

Đuro Perica Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Pursuant to the Audit Act (article 28) and the Corpora-
te Governance Code, the Supervisory Board has put in 
place an Audit Committee. In accordance with the pro-
visions laid down in the Audit Act and the Corporate 
Governance Code, the Audit Committee is in charge of 
monitoring the financial reporting procedure, it monitors 
the efficiency of the system of control, supervises the 
conducting of annual financial statements audits, moni-
tors auditors’ independence, makes recommendations 
to the Supervisory Board concerning the selection and 
to the General Assembly concerning the appointment 
of an audit firm. 

The Audit Committee comprises three 
members, who are at the same time members 
of the Supervisory Board, including: 

Jasminka Belačić - Audit Committee Chairperson 

Zdenka Matković - Member 

Ivan Rujnić - Member
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The corporate governance principles in KONČAR are 
founded upon positive regulations as applied in the 
Republic of Croatia and the adopted international 
standards. These principles are publicly disclosed at 
company’s website (www.koncar.hr) and at the official 
website of the Zagreb Stock-Exchange (www.zse.hr). 
The prescribed questionnaire including replies on whi-
ch Zagreb Stock-Exchange Code provisions the Com-
pany applies is available at the official website of the 
Zagreb Stock-Exchange. 

The adopted Corporate Governance Principles are fo-
unded upon accountable management, definition of 
corporate governance procedures based on the adop-
ted recognised international standards and the super-
vision of the operations. The underlying purpose is to 
establish high corporate governance standards and 
transparency of operations as the groundwork for pro-
tecting the shareholders, investors and other stakehol-
ders, as well as for caring for the employees, the su-
stainable development and environmental protection. 
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The production programme of the companies belonging 
to KONČAR Group is oriented towards the core busi-
ness activity of energy and transport. The production 
capacities are being constantly upgraded via the invest-
ment in modern production technologies. Importantly, 
individual products specifically designed to match cli-
ents’ requirements (tailor made) constitute Group’s 
strategic milestone.

In 2010, a total of HRK 2,100.2 million worth of new 
works were contracted, of which HRK 812.5 million 
pertains to the domestic market (39 per cent) and HRK 
1,297.7 million to exports (61 per cent). The status of 
contracted works (active liabilities) at the end of 2010 
totalled HRK 2,133.2 million, which is 13 per cent less 
as compared to the year beginning. 

The consolidated goods and service sales revenues 
were generated in an amount of HRK 2,464.8 million. 
This structure includes the domestic market sales rev-
enues accounting for HRK 1,159.6 million (47 per cent), 
i.e. 19.7 per cent decline as compared to a year earlier, 
and export sales worth HRK 1,305.2 million (53 per cent 
of total sales). Exports increased by six per cent com-
pared to the 2009 revenue generation. 

In the structure of consolidated sales revenues, com-
panies belonging to the Energy and Transport Business 
Area accumulated revenues of HRK 2,096.4 million, i.e. 
85 per cent of Group’s total. The Trade Business Area 
companies recorded sales of HRK 173.4 million (seven 
per cent), the Industry Business Area made HRK 104.5 
million worth of sales (four per cent), whereas the com-
panies falling under Special Activities generated sales 
totalling HRK 90.5 million, i.e. four per cent of Group’s 
total sales. 

In the structure of the domestic market product and 
service sales, the sales to the Croatian Electricity Com-
pany (HEP) accounted for HRK 263.4 million, i.e. 23.5 
per cent of the total domestic market generation, while 
sales to the companies falling under the industry and 
shipbuilding accounted for HRK 237.2 million, i.e. 21.2 
per cent of total product sales in Croatia. Zagreb Elec-
tric Tram Company product and service sales totalled 
HRK 216.2 million, i.e. 19.3 per cent of the total, trading 
companies were supplied with HRK 130.9 million worth 
of products, the Croatian Railways company with HRK 
96.9 million, the construction businesses with HRK 97.9 
million, whereas the remainder worth HRK 77.4 million 
pertains to the Croatian Motorways Company, the state 
and local administrations and public enterprises. 

During the period January-December 2010, the export 
goods and service sales amounted to HRK 1,305.2 mil-
lion, a six per cent increase as compared to the same 
period of a year earlier. The most sizable exports rev-
enues were generated from Germany (HRK 165.6 
million), India (HRK 98.3 million), Sweden (HRK 96.7 
million), Albania (HRK 84.1 million), Bosnia and Herze-
govina (HRK 83 million), Nigeria (HRK 73.3 million) and 
Finland (HRK 64.8 million).

In addition to the sound 2010 financial  
results, a series of plants and facilities in 
Croatia and abroad have been either  
executed or contracted: 

Domestic market: 

•  Lešće HPP put into operation; 

•  various equipment delivered and works executed in 
Zagreb’s TETO;

•  Strmica PS equipment delivered; 

•  development, upgrade or reconstruction: Valpovo 
110/35/10 kV SS, Vrgorac 110/20 kV SS, Istok 
35/10(20) kV SS, Sali 35/10(20) kV SS, Podi 30/10 kV 
SS, Vrata 35/10(20) kV SS and Đakovo 335/10(20) kV 
SS.

•  completed power equipment installation in the left 
tunnel tubes of the Mala Kapela and Sveti Rok tun-
nels, the City of Rijeka bypass, the Velika Gorica by-
pass, and the delivery of 20 SS units of 10(20)/0,4 kV

•  the testing unit power supply development for Končar 
- Power Transformers ltd. is in the final stage of com-
pletion; 

•  main power equipment delivered for the EOR project, 
(Croatian Oil Company INA);

•  upgrade of the IT process system completed with dual 
safety functions under the conditions of a deregulated 
power market (HEP OPS); 

•  remote control system revitalisation completed for 
HEP ODS Elektra Vinkovci

•  completion of the system for remote reading, calibrat-
ing and gauge control as well as for processing the 
collected data for the needs of PLINACRO;

•  equipment delivery and installation for the purpose of 
revitalising the relay safety in Gospić 35/10 kV Gospić 
SS; 

•  Delnice 110/25 kV EPV electric traction substation, 
and Plase 110/25 kV EVP developed; 
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•  neutral line sectioning plants constructed, including 
those in Skrad, Lokve, Drivenik, Sveti Kuzam and Ri-
jeka

•  a total of 14 level-crossing safety devices delivered; 

•  overhaul and regular annual maintenance of Plomin 
TPP; 

•  the transport area saw the continuation and completion 
of contract implementation for the manufacture and 
delivery of tramcars for the City of Zagreb, completion 
of the delivery of the first low-floor electromotor train 
for the Railway Company of Bosnia and Herzegovina. 

A series of plants and facilities were completed in 
export markets, with only a few mentioned below: 

•  Mostarsko Blato HPP put into operation in Bosnia and 
Herzegovina; 

•  Bhavani Khatalai II and III HPPs equipment delivery, 
India; 

•  underway are equipment delivery and execution of 
works for reconstruction of 220/110/35 kV Tirana 1, 
Fier and Elbasan S/Ss, Albania; 

•  spare parts delivered for Haditha HPP, Iraq; 

•  spare parts delivered for Cariblanco HPP, Costa Rica;

•  completed reconstruction of secondary equipment 
system for Priština 1 110/35/10kV S/S, Kosovo;

•  completed connection of Dobošnica 35/10 S/S, Du-
brave 35/10(20)kV S/S and Ljubače 35/10kV S/S with 
the SCADA system in DCU ED Tuzla, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina; 

•  completed performance of integrated measuring of 
the water level and the water flow in spillways and the 
main discharge of Salakovac HPP, Bosnia and Herze-
govina

•  completed automated voltage regulation (AVR) func-
tion in Skopje 5 400/110kV S/S, Macedonia; 

•  completed design and execution of adaptation on Du-
brovo 400/110kV S/S and Skopje 4 400/110kV S/S, 
Macedonia; 

•  underway is the reconstruction of the control and 
protection system for 110kV in a section of Skopje 1 
220/110/35kV S/S, Macedonia; 

•  the area of transport saw the completion of the deliv-
ery of the first low-floor electric multiple unit for the 
Railway Company of Bosnia and Herzegovina.
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MARKET POSITION

New plants and facilities contracted during 2010:

Domestic market: 

•  construction of Dugopolje 110/20(10) kV S/S; 

•  procurement of an IT system to support the organisa-
tion of electricity market and a system for promoting 
renewable energy generation and cogeneration for 
HROTE;

•  remote control system equipment and works in 
Postira 35/10 kV S/S; 

•  maintenance of HW/SW and the completion of cath-
ode protection for PLINACRO;

•  equipment delivery and installation for control/pro-
tection system revitalisation in Gospić 35/10 kV S/S, 
Međurić 220/110/35 kV S/S and Željezara 110/35 kV 
S/S; 

•  construction of the Pometeno Brdo wind power plant.

International market: 

•  equipping Toro 3 HPP, Costa Rica;

•  equipping El Thawra PS, Egypt (contract to be signed);

•  reconstruction of the Fierza, Koman, Vau and Dejes 
220/110 kV S/Ss, Albania; 

•  reconstruction of Prizren 2 220/110 kV S/S, Kosovo;

•  construction of a power supply drive for the SMIT factory 
testing station - Transformatoren B.V., the Netherlands; 

•  construction of 400 kV bus systems for five 400/110 kV 
S/Ss for MAVIR Rt., Hungary; 

•  delivery, testing and putting into operation the trans-
former protection for Prishtina 1 S/S, Prishtina 2 S/S, 
Klina S/S and Istog S/S plants, Kosovo;

•  delivery of instrument-protection-control and telemet-
ric equipment for Bihać 35/10 kV S/S, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina;

•  delivery of a SCADA system for Biznis Centar Drenas 
S/S, Kosovo

•  delivery and installation of remote control equipment for 
Jug DP, Bosnia and Herzegovina; 

•  maintenance of a remote control system for Elektro Pri-
morska, Slovenia;

•  Railway stops safety system modernisation, Bosnia and 
Herzegovina. 
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 2010 result %

  Croatian Electicity Company 263.355 23

  Industry and Shipbuilding 237.181 21 

  Zagreb Electric Tram  216.186 19

  Trade 130.868 12

  Croatian Railways 96.914 9

  Construction industry 97.939 9

  INA, T-HT, Plinacro 42.980 4

  State and Local Govt. 19.038 2

  HAC and HC 15.411 1

   Total 1.119.872

MARKET POSITION

Exceptional efforts have been invested in offering prod-
ucts and contracting during 2010, yielding a relatively 
sound 2011 contracting level. The status of contracted 
works (active liabilities) at the end of 2010 totalled HRK 
2,133.2 million.

The 2010 operations of KONČAR Group were charac-
terised by a very unfavourable and complex business 
environment. The operations have been and still are ad-
versely affected by a sizable drop in product and service 
revenues in the Croatian market, a direct consequence 
of a substantial decline in investment bearing an in-
fluence on contracting new works, coupled with the 
postponement of the already contracted works for an 
unspecified period. The status of the contracted works 
at end-2010 was lower than the ratio for the year-begin-
ning by 13 per cent. Still, a greater rate of contracting 
in international markets and announcement of larger in-
vestment activities in the country are expected to lead 
to reaching the current business year’s plan.

 2010 result %

  Energy and Transport 2.096.439 85

  Trade 173.427 7

  Industry 104.511 4

  Special Activities 90.441 4

 Total sales revenues Exports

2006 2.552.964 978.300

2007 2.584.854 1.146.207

2008 2.874.571 1.288.618

2009 2.675.138 1.231.654

2010 2.464.818 1.305.220

Sales Revenues

3.000.000

2.500.000

2.000.000

1.500.000

1.000.000

500.000

0
 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Total sales revenues  Exports

Domestic Customers 

Sales Breakdown by Business Areas

23%

21%

19%

12%

9%

9%
4 2 1 

85%

7%
4%4%



15

 2010

MARKET POSITION

2010 Exports Breakdown by Countries

2010 Exports Breakdown by Regions

 0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Germany 165,608

India 98,329

Sweden 96,660

Albania 84,067

Bosnia and Herzegovina 83,000

Nigeria 73,307

Finland 64,773

U.A.E. 63,045

The Netherlands 58,269

Czech Republic 60,569

Cyprus 46,505

Serbia 42,602

Austria 29,263

Iraq 28,627

Macedonia 25,100

Slovenia 23,937

Hungary 19,794

Phillipines 19,496

Other Countries 222,269

 2010 Exports %

  EU member states 654.873 50

  Surrounding countries 238.167 18

  Middle East 111.568 9

  Asia 123.384 9

  Other 177.228 14

50%

18%

14%

9%

9%
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COMPANY’S BUSINESS RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)

In 2010, the KONČAR Group has achieved positive 

financial results.

Amounts due to trade debtors, suppliers, employ-

ees, the Government, banks and other contractual 

parties were serviced regularly. Owing to a relatively 

sound level of works contracted in the current and 

the last years, the majority of KONČAR’s companies 

achieved positive business results.  

The overall consolidated revenues were generated 

in an amount of HRK 2,826.3 million, which is a 5.2 

per cent drop as compared to the 2009 result. The 

non-consolidated revenues (data including revenues 

generated between subsidiaries) accounted for HRK 

3,183.6 million, i.e. 9.1 per cent less than the last 

year’s generation. 

The consolidated Group’s profits before tax account-

ed for HRK 201.6 million, i.e. 29 per cent more than 

what was achieved in 2009. Corporate profit tax was 

assessed at HRK 15.6 million, resulting in profits af-

ter tax of HRK 186 million. The portion of the minor-

ity stakes in the profits structure accounts for HRK 

31.1 million, and the Group’s net profits totalled HRK 

154.9 million, i.e.43.4 per cent more than the 2009 

profits. 

The status of the overall consolidated resources and 

sources of funding as at 31 December 2010 totalled 

HRK 3.296.1 million. Compared with the same date 

of the last year, this is an increase of HRK 25.4 mil-

lion or 0.8 per cent.  

In the structure of resources as compared with the 

state-of-play as at 31 December 2009, the amount of 

fixed assets increased by HRK 12.6 million, in which 

intangible assets declined by HRK 3.4 million, tangi-

ble assets declined by HRK 3.3 million, accounts re-

ceivable decreased by HRK 18.8 million and financial 

assets increased by HRK 38.1 million. 

Current assets increased by HRK 12 million, in which 

inventories were reduced by HRK 84.2 million, total 

receivables dropped by HRK 181.2 million and the 

financial assets grew by HRK 277.4 million. In the 

overall accounts receivable structure, advances paid 

were reduced by an amount of HRK 19.9 million, re-

ceivables from trade debtors reduced by HRK 159 

million, whereas other receivables rose and totalled 

HRK 2.3 million. 

In the structure of funding sources, the subscribed 

capital, reserves, retained earnings, current year’s 

profits and minority interests jointly totalled HRK 

1,794.2 million, an amount by HRK 176.5 million 

greater than the figures as at 31 December 2009 and 

constituting 54 per cent of total sources. Long-term 

provisions amounted to HRK 578.6, a HRK 32.6 mil-

lion increase as compared to the status on 31 De-

cember 2009. These to the greatest extent pertain 

to contingent liabilities on the grounds of the guaran-

tees issued and provisions for court disputes. Long-

term and current liabilities total HRK 856.8 million, an 

amount by HRK 152.3 million lesser in comparison 

with the figures at last year’s end. In the structure of 

current liabilities, amounts due to trade creditors to-

tal HRK 152.3 million (HRK 60.7 million less as com-

pared to the last year) and constitute 10.9 per cent 

of total sources. Total credits (long- and short-term) 

account for HRK 229.4 million and are by HRK 43.8 

million lesser as compared with the figures as at 31 

December 2009. These constitute a total of 6.9 per 

cent in the structure of total sources.          

Long-term sources of funds (capital, long-term pro-

visions and long-term liabilities) were by HRK 582.3 

million greater than the fixed assets and average 

stock aggregate, which indicates a sound ageing 

structure of the sources of funds. Current assets 

stood at 2.7 times the current liabilities, indicating a 

good liquidity of the system. The consolidated bal-

ance sheet structure indicates the financial sound-

ness of the KONČAR Group. 

Investments in equipment and tools in 2010 account-

ed for HRK 98 million, an amount exceeding total de-

preciation by HRK 14 million. 

There is a positive import to exports ratio. A total of 

HRK 1,305.2 million worth of products and services 

were exported, whereas import of raw and primary 

materials accounted for HRK 590.5 million, resulting 

in an import by exports coverage coefficient of 2.2.
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RISK EXPOSURE

The companies belonging to KONČAR Group are ex-

posed to various market and financial risks. The busi-

ness environment risk is determined by political, eco-

nomic and social circumstances existing in the markets 

of companies’ operation. Financial risks are associated 

with foreign exchange, interest rate, credit and liquid-

ity risks. The Group’s companies are monitoring these 

risks closely and try to mitigate their potential impact 

on financial stability.

a) Market Risk   

Market risk emerges as a consequence of potential 

losses stemming from less-than-favourable economic 

conditions and a decline in market demand. 

The companies belonging to KONČAR Group operate 

in the Croatian and international markets. The Group’s 

core activity relates to energy and transport, areas 

heavily dependent on investments in those industries. 

Under the influence of the global crisis and recession, 

there is a risk of closing certain markets down and pro-

viding stimulus in order to assign works to domicile 

enterprises. Furthermore, changes in circumstances 

under which the Group’s companies operate as well as 

the changes in conditions in which our clients operate 

also bear influence on the competitiveness of products 

and services of our companies. Management Boards 

of individual companies price their products independ-

ently.  

b) Interest Rate Risk  

The interest rate risk is a risk of changed financial in-

struments’ value due to the changes in market rates 

versus interest rates applied to a given financial instru-

ment. The cash flow risk is a risk of possible change 

in the interest cost of a given instrument over time. 

The Group is not substantially exposed to the interest 

rate risk. 

c) Credit Risk 

Financial assets which may potentially expose the 

Group to credit risk mainly consist of cash and receiva-

bles from trade debtors. Receivables from trade debt-

ors were adjusted by the amount of bad debt provi-

sions.

Group’s companies protect themselves against credit 

risk through security instruments and by making as-

sessments of credit worthiness of customers in con-

junction with external rating agencies. 

d) Foreign Exchange Risk 

The official currency of the Group is the Croatian Kuna. 

However, some transactions executed in foreign ex-

change are being converted to Croatian Kuna, applying 

the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. 

The resulting exchange gains and losses are being 

credited or debited against profit and loss account. 

The companies protect themselves against the F/X 

risk by contracting sales and procurement in the same 

currency and by adjusting the receipt and outlay dyna-

mism, as well as with term F/X purchase in accordance 

with the cash receipt and outlay plan. A smaller portion 

of the companies employ financial derivatives to pro-

tect them against the financial risk exposure. 
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SHARES

Pursuant to a General Meeting’s decision dated June 

2010, the shares of KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. 

have been moved from the Regular Market quotation 

to the Official Market quotation of the Zagreb Stock-

Exchange on 21 December 2010. The shares are re-

cognisable under their KOEI-R-A ticker. 

In keeping with the effective positive regulations, the 

Company ensures a regular access to information on 

its work and operations as well as information on the 

facts and circumstances that may bear influence to 

the share price (price sensitive information).

The company’s shareholders’ equity amounts to HRK 

1,028,847,600.00 and comprises a total of 2,572,119 

common shares with par value of HRK 400.00 each.

The Company applies the same conditions to all of 

its shareholders and threats them equally regardless 

of the number of shares in their hands, the country 

of their origin and other characteristics. The voting 

rights encompass all of the Company’s shareholders 

in that the number of votes they are entitled to at the 

General Assembly equals the number of shares they 

have in their possession.  

Company’s ownership structure:
 31 december 2010 31 december 2009

	 No.	of	 Ownership	 No.	of	 Ownership
	 shares	 stake	 shares	 stake
Shareholder	 	 %	 	 %

HPB d.d. (Kapitalni fond d.d.) 724,515 28.17 724,515 28.17

Croatian Privatisation Fund /
Croatian Health Insurance Institute 384,628 14.95 384,628 14.95

Croatian Privatisation Fund 260,280 10.12 278,225 10.82

RBA d.d. (collective custodian account)  189,744 7.38 190,171 7.40

Societe Generale - Splitska banka d.d./
Erste Plavi obvezni mirovinski fond (mandatory pension fund) 167,784 6.52 146,785 5.70

Floričić Kristijan 85,714 3.33 85,714 3.33

PBZ d.d. (The Bank of New York as custodian) - - 77,307 3.00

Hypo Alpe Adria Bank/PBZ Croatia Osiguranje OMF 75,497 2.94 - -

Societe Generale - Splitska banka d.d./
Allianz ZB d.o.o. on behalf of AZ mandatory pension fund 69,694 2.71 71,501 2.78

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank d.d./Raiffeisen pension company 37,000 1.44 37,000 1.44

PBZ (collective client custodian account) 36,829 1.43 - -

Other shareholders 540,434 21.01 551,813 21.46

KONČAR Inc. (Treasury stock) - - 24,460 0.95

Total 2,572,119 100.00 2,572,119 100.00
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SHARES

During 2009, the KONČAR - Electrical Industry share 

price followed the overall market trend. The highest 

price was achieved in December 2010 (HRK 540.05), 

and the lowest one was recorded in early July (HRK 

435) to arrive at HRK 530.00 at the end of 2010. 

The overall volume generated from trading KONČAR 

shares accounted for HRK 109.2 million, a level of 72 

per cent of the 2009 volume. In total, 230,183 shares 

constituted the traded volume.

The subsidiaries KONČAR - Distribution and Special 

Transformers and KONČAR - Switchgear have been 

included in the Zagreb Stock-Exchange Regular Mar-

ket quotation. The price of the common and preferred 

shares of KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transfor-

mers has been ranging from HRK 1,930 to HRK 2,450, 

while the price band was HRK 975-1,099 in the period 

from a new issue until the year-end. 

The shares of KONČAR - Switchgear haven’t been tra-

ded in 2010. 

During 2010, the Company obtained a total of 3,123 

treasury shares. The Company has issued a total of 

27,583 treasury shares during the period August-Sep-

tember 2010 for the purpose of effecting the exerci-

sed option right to the purchase of CEO’s and Board 

members’ shares on the grounds of the Rights, Duties 

and Wage Contract for the period 2001-2004. 

The Company had no treasury shares on 31 December 

2010. 
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PRODUCTS AND PRODUCTION DEVELOPMENT

The reliance on products resulting from our own de-
velopment efforts has always been an integral part of 
Company’s long-term business policy. Consequently, 
the plan for the year of 2010 and onwards also deals 
with a continued and intensified development of prod-
ucts using company’s own forces. 

The development within the KONČAR - Electrical En-
gineering Institute and the development departments 
of the production plants has also been linked to an on-
going co-operation with the educational and scientific 
institutions and an ongoing professional development 
and training of staffs hired in all aspects of the produc-
tion process.

The 2010 Investments in intangible and tangible as-
sets accounted for HRK 98 million. 

To the greatest extent, this amount was invested in: 

-  the development of a low-floor electric multiple unit pro-
totype for the needs of the Croatian Railway Company; 

-  the “Pometeno brdo” wind power plant; 

-  equipping the hall “A” for itegration and testing of 
wind turbine gondola;

-  high-voltage circuit breaker;

-  new generation of electric stove with 55 cm in width; 

-  the “white enamel coating” unit in KONČAR - House-
hold Appliances;

-  new switchyard in Sesvetski Kraljevec with buy-in of 
connecting power; 

-  replacement of equipment in the existing substations 
in Sesvetski Kraljevec;

-  purchase of finishing machinery for KONČAR - Tools. 

Investments of HRK 280.6 million are planned for 2011, 
and the greatest portion of the investment planned 
pertains to further investment in the Pometeno Brdo 
wind power plant and the development of a new test-
ing station in KONČAR - Distribution and Special Trans-
formers. To finance these investments, the Company 
will use its own resources and supplement them with 
bank loans worth HRK 149.2 million.
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THE EMPLOYEES

Market demands and efforts to maintain the com-

petitiveness imposed the strategic orientation of 

KONČAR - the orientation towards the creation of a 

knowledge-based company founded upon the staff 

experience, know-how and innovativeness. 

KONČAR closed the year of 2010 with a total of 

3,938 staff. When compared with the year of 2009 

(4,110 employees), there has been a drop in overall 

employment. Compared with 2008, there has been 

a decline in the number of employees by 7.8 per 

cent as a consequence of the global economic cri-

sis. 

These indicators reflect the economic trends in the 

Republic of Croatia (in end-2009, the unemploy-

ment rate in the Republic of Croatia rose by 21.2 

percent vs. end-2008 and continued to follow and 

upward trend). 

The reduction of the overall number of staff also in-

fluenced the average age of employees. An average 

age of all staff in KONČAR increased since 2008, 

accounting for 38, 43 and 46 years in 2008, 2009 

and 2010, respectively, while an average age of the 

newly employed staffs in 2010 stood at 30. 

Highly educated workers who graduated from the 

Faculty of Electrical Engineering and Computing 

have been predominantly recruited. 

Analyzing the trend in the number of workers in pro-

duction professions in KONČAR over the last five 

year period, the year of 2010 saw a sizable increase 

in the number of metalworkers, power plant fitters, 

installers, technicians in electrical engineering, elec-

tricians, locksmiths, electric equipment fitters, elec-

tric winders, lathe operators and technicians. 

KONČAR has been traditionally providing its highly 

educated staff through providing scholarships to 

students enrolled in various faculties (the Electrical 

Engineering and Computing Faculty, the Faculty of 

Mechanical Engineering and Naval Architecture, the 

Faculty of Economics, the Faculty of Law, the Fac-

ulty of Chemical Engineering and Technology, the 

Polytechnic College, etc.). 

However, there has been a decline in the number of 

scholarship recipients since 2008. 

During 2010, KONČAR was hiring 19 PhD/ScDs and 

65 people with MSc/MBA degrees. In 2005, staff 

with doctoral degrees had a minimum of 14 years of 

work experience, while the trend changed in 2010 to 

show that the same group has five years of experi-

ence. Approximately 80 highly educated employees 

are currently undergoing their postgraduate studies. 

In line with the needs, there was a noticed growth 

in the number of employees who take part in vari-

ous training courses, and total average investments 

in training grow in parallel.

Furthermore, KONČAR attaches special emphasis 

to the selection of its managers, i.e. to a timely rec-

ognition of its managerial potentials and to making 

investments for them to develop and create room 

for further advancement.

The year of 2010 saw the continuation in delivering 

training programmes following a single Educational 

Cycle comprising 13 modules. Training programmes 

in KONČAR are essentially “tailor made” ones. In 

addition to delivering training for acquiring profes-

sional know-how, these also cover the development 

of general and managerial competencies, language 

classes, upgrading IT skills, and some soft skills, 

such as motivating the staff, leading, teamwork, 

communication skills and ethical values. 

During 2010, KONČAR has continued its success-

ful collaboration with a series of scientific and edu-

cational institutions. This enabled the recognition, 

definition and implementation of scores of projects 

where the stakeholders take part as equal partners. 

All stakeholders introduce their expertise sets and 

foster cooperation between the scientific, educa-

tional and business sectors. Hence, KONČAR has 

been implementing scientific and educational pro-

grammes in collaboration with the Electrical Engi-

neering and Computing Faculty, the Ruđer Bošković 

Institute, the Hrvoje Požar Energy Institute, the Za-

greb Polytechnic College, the Polytechnic of Rijeka.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

KONČAR has been behaving as a socially responsible 

operator in the market for many years, which made 

KONČAR a recognisable promoter of socially responsible 

operations, and the activities in that direction have been 

taking an important position in the business policy and 

day-to-day activities of the Group.

KONČAR’s starting point may be found in the fact that 

corporate social responsibility means more than just legal 

compliance, rather that one has to “do more than just 

that”. It is the fact that a company must assume full res-

ponsibility for its actions, something that exceeds mere 

economic interests. The corporate social responsibility 

approach specifically emphasizes the care for a human 

being (as the foundation of the values of any company), 

the environment and all elements having to do with the 

protection and preservation of natural resources. This 

also goes for the cooperation with the community at lar-

ge in which the company operates 

In 2010 just like this was the case in previous years, 

KONČAR continued to devise, implement and improve 

the socially responsible activities at the companies and 

the Group levels. More details on a range of the initiatives 

and the activities the Company has taken in the area of 

socially responsible operations are being published yearly 

in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report. 

Corporate social responsibility relies on human resour-

ces as the foundation of company development, since 

success is achieved by motivated and trained employees 

to whom the company enables their development in pa-

rallel with company’s development. For this very reason, 

the most important 2010 activities related to further im-

provement of employees’ work conditions (starting from 

ensuring quality job positions, professional improvement 

and training, to medical examination and other).

Aware of its responsibility for the environment in which 

it operates, KONČAR has identified environmental ma-

nagement as one of its highest business priorities. The 

control and quality of input raw materials, components, 

the production processes and of final products and plants 

is being continuously advanced and adjusted to comply 

with the highest global standards. The results may be 

seen in the satisfaction of clients coming from the most 

demanding markets. Hence, in addition to the ISO 9001, 

OHSAS 18001 and many other specialised certificates 

and standards, as many as 18 of KONČAR Group compa-

nies also possess their ISO 14001 certificates.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Another example whereby KONČAR proves its corpo-

rate social responsibility may be found in the develo-

pment activities and projects in the application of new 

technologies, where renewable energy sources take an 

important place. During 2010, KONČAR - Electrical Engi-

neering Institute Inc. has developed its own wind power 

generator control system. This is an attractive Croatian 

product intended for exports, which may compete glo-

bally. 

A rich and diverse cooperation with specialised and 

broader communities continues. Interactivity increases 

the linkages in specific actions being taken. KONČAR 

remains a focused and active participant in the activities 

dealing with educational processes, scientific projects, 

as well as in the so-called small sports and all other acti-

vities contributing to the improvement of life and leisure 

time of children and the youth, including other catego-

ries in need of such assistance. Therefore, substantial 

socially oriented and humanitarian activities are taking 

part via the encouragement for and support to various 

projects. 

For three consecutive years now, KONČAR - Electrical 

Engineering Institute was awarded the Indeks DOP pri-

ze, awarded by the Croatian Chamber of Commerce to 

the best performing companies in the field of socially 

responsible operations. 

KONČAR is a part of the Global Compact network (UN 

Global Treaty), the largest world initiative in the field of 

corporate social responsibility. For four years now, KON-

ČAR has been producing its Corporate Social Responsibi-

lity Report following the Global Compact (GC) principles 

and the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI 3) guidelines. With 

this report, the Concern positioned itself amongst a small 

group of Croatian companies producing such reports.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Reports have been 

published at the official websites of the Global Repor-

ting Initiative and the Global Compact, thus confirming 

success of efforts the Group invests in this area of ope-

ration. It also goes to prove that KONČAR belongs to 

the group of socially responsible companies as per the 

globally defined criteria.
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QUALITY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

An integral part of KONČAR’s business policy has to 

do with reaching client satisfaction through the de-

livery of high quality and reliable products and care 

for the environment exercised by the KONČAR com-

panies’ production plants, as well as the plants with 

KONČAR equipment installed. 

The quality of products and services of the KONČAR 

companies is founded upon a consistent application 

of quality management system as per ISO 9001 stan-

dard and the regular annual reviews carried out by 

certified companies. A systematic training in quality 

assurance enables the inclusion of new staff and tra-

ining of reviewing staff. 

To achieve the policy of sustainable development, 

an environment management system is being imple-

mented following the ISO 14001 standard. 

An evidence of compliance with the highest require-

ments and standards may be found in the fact that 

17 of the KONČAR Group companies have their ISO 

14001 certificates.

  ISO 9001 ISO 14001 OHSAS 18001

KONČAR - Tools

KONČAR - Distributive and Special Transformers

KONČAR - Electric Vehicles

KONČAR - Medium Voltage Apparatuses

KONČAR - High Voltage Switchgears

KONČAR - Electronics and Informatics

KONČAR - Energy and Maintenance

KONČAR - Generators and Motors

KONČAR - Electrical Engineering Institute

KONČAR - Power Plant and Electric Traction Engineering

KONČAR - Household Appliances

KONČAR - Small Electrical Machines

KONČAR - Metal Structures

KONČAR - Instrument Transformers

KONČAR - Engineering for Plant Installation and Commissioning

KONČAR - Low-Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers

KONČAR - Switchgear

KONČAR - Catering Equipment

KONČAR - Renewable Sources

KONČAR - Power Transformers

KONČAR - Electrical Industry

TOTAL  17 17 5
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2011 BUSINESS PLAN

In 2011 business year, KONČAR Group plans to reach 

a positive financial result. Overall revenues were 

planned in an amount of HRK 2,644.3 million, while 

planned expenditures account for HRK 2,471.8 million. 

Profit before tax was planned in an amount of HRK 

172.5 million, corporate profits tax to account for HRK 

17.1 million, which would render Group’s profits af-

ter tax in an amount of HRK 155.4 million. From the 

amount, HRK 28.7 million belongs to the minority in-

terest, whereas the planned net profits for the Group 

account for HRK 126.7 million.

The plan for the consolidated funds and sources 

stands at HRK 3,408.4 million, an increase of HRK 

112.2 million as compared to the balance on 31 De-

cember 2010. 

The Product and Service Sales Plan envisages consoli-

dated sales revenues generation amounting to HRK 

2,416 million during 2011, an amount at the level of 

2010 accumulation. 

The plan for the domestic market sales of products 

and services was set at HRK 1.1 billion and HRK 1.3 

billion for exports. The planned share of imports in the 

overall structure of product and service sales revenues 

was set at 54 per cent. The investment plan envisages 

investments worth approximately HRK 280.6 million in 

new product research and development. 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Companies belonging to KONČAR Group are following 

an ongoing orientation towards research, development 

and innovation of products in order to penetrate new 

markets with new products and to be capable of resisting 

very insecure and volatile market conditions. An impor-

tant progress in this direction was made in recent years 

through the development and production of the low-floor 

tramcar and a low-floor electromotor train prototype, as 

well as through investment in renewable energy. 

The main strategic directions include: 

•  core business founded upon energy and transport 

business area; 

•  products and services resulting from own develop-

ment; 

•  products and services as per specific client demands; 

•  turn-key plants; 

•  knowledge-based company and centres of excellence; 

•  labour force participation; and 

•  market niches.

There is an objective and focus towards operating in 

accordance with the rules of the profession and the 

globally recognised standards, while ensuring market 

position in both domestic and international markets. 

In the forthcoming period, the KONČAR Group plans to 

run stable financial operations and keep achieving posi-

tive financial results on an ongoing basis, coupled with 

increasing levels of contracting, increasing the share 

of exports in the sales revenue structure, the develop-

ment of new products and services, rejuvenation of 

cadre and an ongoing professional training of staff. 

Closing Remarks: 

During the period from close of 2010 business year 

and the production of this report, there have been no 

significant business developments that would sub-

stantially alter the picture of Company’s operations 

and position as presented in this report. 

In spite of a reduced level of contracting new works in 

the domestic market, due to greater contracting level at 

international markets and the announced intensification 

of investments in the country, it may be realistically ex-

pected that the current business year’s plan will be met.
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ADDRESS BOOK

Darinko Bago, Chairman of Management Board

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 188, +385 1 3667 195, fax: +385 1 3667 196

e-mail: koncar.head@koncar.hr

Marina Kralj Miliša, Member of Management Board

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 169, fax: +385 1 3667 192

e-mail: kralj.dd@koncar.hr

Jozo Miloloža, Member of Management Board 

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 606, fax: +385 1 3666 562

e-mail: koncar.finance@koncar.hr

Davor Mladina, Member of Managing Board

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3667 198, fax: +385 1 3667 601

e-mail: koncar.ind.trade@koncar.hr

Miroslav Poljak, Member of Managing Board

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia

phone: +385 1 3666 415, fax: +385 1 3667 179

e-mail: poljak.dd@koncar.hr

Management Board
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Bussines area Energy and transport

KONČAR - Power Plant and Electric Traction 
Engineering Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3667 512, +385 1 3667 513
fax: +385 1 3667 515
e-mail: info@koncar-ket.hr

KONČAR - Generators and Motors Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3655 340, +385 1 3667 499
fax: +385 1 3666 564
e-mail: gim@koncar-gim.hr

KONČAR - High Voltage Switchgear Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2322 100
fax: +385 1 2311 303
e-mail: diana.janjis@koncar-eva.hr

KONČAR - Medium Voltage Switchgear Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2334 867
fax: +385 1 2331 058
e-mail: uprava@koncar-easn.hr

KONČAR - Switchgear Inc.

Strojarska cesta 10, 10361 S. Kraljevec, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2030 500
fax: +385 1 2030 505
e-mail: uprava@koncarsp.hr

KONČAR - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc.

Josipa Mokrovića 8, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3783 777
fax: +385 1 3794 051
e-mail: manage@koncar-dst.hr

KONČAR - Instrument Transformers Inc.

Josipa Mokrovića 10, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3794 074, +385 1 3795 209
fax: + 385 1 3794 040
e-mail: info@koncar-mjt.hr

KONČAR - Electronics and Informatics Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3655 900
fax: +385 1 3655 550
e-mail: inem@koncar-inem.hr, pc.prodaja@koncar-inem.hr

KONČAR - Metal Structures Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3666 560, +385 1 3667 233
fax: +385 1 3667 235
e-mail: kmk@koncar-mk.hr

KONČAR - Electric Vehicles Inc.

Velimira Škorpika 7, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3496 959, +385 1 3496 933
fax: +385 1 3496 960
e-mail: info@koncar-kev.hr

KONČAR - Engineering for Plant Installation & 
Commissioning Inc.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2355 111, +385 1 2355 125
fax: +385 1 2333 717
e-mail: kmi@koncar-kmi.hr

KONČAR - Renewable Sources Ltd. 

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3655 348
fax: +385 1 3667 503
e-mail: koncar@koncar-oi.hr
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Business area Industry

KONČAR - Small Electrical Machines Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3667 275, +385 1 3667 273
fax: +385 1 3667 622
e-mail: info@koncar-mes.hr

KONČAR - Tools Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3670 999
fax: +385 1 3667 257
e-mail: alati@koncar-alati.hr

KONČAR - Catering Equipment Ltd.

Žitnjak bb, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2404 884, +385 1 2404 339, +385 1 2404 537
fax: +385 1 2404 141, +385 1 2409 344
e-mail: dir@koncar-ugo.hr, prodaja@koncar-ugo.hr

KONČAR - Household Appliances Ltd.

Žitnjak bb, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2484 555, +385 1 2404 608
fax: +385 1 2404 102
e-mail: kucanski@koncar-ka.hr

KONČAR - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit  
Breakers Ltd.

Borongajska cesta 81c, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 2354 600, +385 1 2334 404
fax: +385 1 2303 897
e-mail: ivan.jeren@koncar-nna.hr

Location Zlatar:
Zagrebačka 31, 49250 Zlatar, Croatia
phone. +385 49 588 562
fax: +385 49 588 561
e-mail: export@koncar-nna.hr

KONČAR - Electrical Engineering Institute Inc.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3667 315
fax: +385 1 3667 309
e-mail: info@koncar-institut.hr

KONČAR - Infrastructure and Services Ltd.

Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3794 046
fax: +385 1 3794 149
e-mail: koncar-eu@zg.t-com.hr

Special activities

KONČAR - Power Transformers Ltd.

Josipa Mokrovića 6, 10090 Zagreb, Croatia
phone: +385 1 3795 555, +385 1 3795 504
fax: +385 1 3794 045
e-mail: kpt.hr@siemens.com 

Associated companies

Business area Trade
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Companies

KONES AG - Switzerland

CH - 8034 Zurich, Muhlebachstrasse 174,  
Postfach 1136, Switzerland
phone: +41 44 383 5612, +41 44 389 8890
fax: +41 44 422 6609, +41 44 389 8899
e-mail: konesag2@bluewin.ch
Office in Zagreb: Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, HR
phone/fax: +385 1 3667 365, +385 1 3667 158, +385 1 3667 159
e-mail: koncar.kones@koncar.hr

KONES AG - O.S., Czech Republic

Korunni 89, 13000 Praha-3, Czech Republic
phone: +420 222 514 728
phone/fax: +420 222 512 961
e-mail: kones-koncar@volny.cz

Representative offices

KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. - Representative 
office Moscow, Russian Federation

13 Kutuzovsky pr., ap. 12-13, Moscow 121248  
Russian Federation
phone: +7 499 243 6927, fax: +7 499 243 7483
Office in Zagreb: Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, HR
phone: +385 1 3667 604
fax: +385 1 3655 755, 3667 602
e-mail: s.nenadic@koncar.hr

KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. - Representative 
office Mostar, Bosnia and Herzegovina
Dr. Ante Starčevića bb, 88000 Mostar - BIH
phone: +387 36 327 721, fax: +387 36 327 724
e-mail: koncar-mostar@tel.net.ba
Office in Zagreb: Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, HR
phone: +385 1 3655 610
fax: +385 1 3667 179

KONČAR - Electrical Industry Inc. - Representative 
office Belgrade, Serbia
Bulevar Mihajla Pupina 10Ž/424, 11070 Novi Beograd, 
Serbia
phone: +381 11 3017 321, +381 11 3017 322
fax: +381 11 2145 485
e-mail: koncar.office@koncar.rs  
Office in Zagreb: Fallerovo šetalište 22, 10000 Zagreb, HR
phone: +385 1 3655 984
fax: +385 1 3655 118
e-mail: vlado.oreskovic@koncar.hr

Končar abroad
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Consolidated financial statements 31 December 2010

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Consolidated profit and loss account
	 Notes		 2010	 2009
  HRK  HRK

Operating revenues   2,637,560,093  2,795,680,476
Sales 3 2,464,817,706  2,675,137,917
Other operating income 4 172,742,387 120,542,559
Operating expenses    (2,568,929,425)  (2,760,589,117)

Changes in inventories (work in progress and finished goods)   (74,603,310)  14,870,955
Cost of materials and energy 5 (1,132,606,393)   (1,378,518,176)
Cost of goods sold   (116,812,449)   (123,088,383)
Cost of services 6 (361,286,721)  (374,339,429)
Personnel costs 7  (472,684,365)  (475,014,074)
Depreciation and amortization 8 (76,716,868)  (76,516,548)
Other costs 9 (129,235,040)   (123,142,332)
Value adjustments 10 (37,577,078)  (36,665,539)
Provisions 11  (159,018,123)  (174,291,909)
Other operating expenses 12  (8,389,078)  (13,883,682)
Operating profit   68,630,668 35,091,359
       
Share or profit from equity accounted investments 13 114,015,279  110,645,889
Financial income 14  74,716,332 74,152,131
Financial expenses 15 (55,717,205)  (61,512,189)
Financial result    133,014,406 123,285,831
       
Profit before taxation   201,645,074  158,377,190
Corporate income tax 16  (15,609,173)  (13,264,023)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   186,035,901  145,113,167
   
Profit for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the parent  154,975,583 112,822,916
Non-controlling interest  31,060,318 32,290,251
 
Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share in kunas 17   60.25   43.86 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Net profit for the year    186,035,901  145,113,167
      
Other comprehensive income: 
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations   1,311,326  (59,932)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR   187,347,227  145,053,235

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to: 
Owners of the parent   155,831,108  112,767,502 
Non-controlling interest   31,516,119   32,285,733

Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
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Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated statement of financial position

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS 
	 Notes		 31/12/2010		 31/12/2009
  HRK  HRK

Goodwill 18 7,040,919 6,551,752
Intangible assets 19 18,495,072 22,423,370
Property, plant and equipment 20 794,109,011 800,495,885
Investment property 21 93,849,610 93,857,391
Investment accounted for using the equity method 22 208,515,269 169,585,609
Financial assets 23 4,471,407 4,968,320
Receivables 24 56,503,262 75,603,445
Non-current assets  1,182,984,550 1,173,485,772
Inventories 25 482,128,159 580,614,449
Receivables from related companies 26 111,046,846 86,121,171
Trade accounts receivable 27 698,835,506 866,101,705
Receivable for corporate income tax  3,951,542 7,413,104
Other receivables 28 72,219,587 93,359,644
Financial assets 29 157,199,494 149,739,330
Cash and cash equivalents 30 580,365,351 310,321,360
Current assets  2,105,746,485 2,093,670,763
Prepaid costs and accrued income 31 3,547,985 2,843,799
Non-current assets held for sale 32 3,870,959 754,036
TOTAL ASSETS  3,296,149,979 3,270,754,370

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital 33 1,028,847,600 1,028,847,600
Capital reserves  719,579 (2,940,923)
Legal reserves  13,150,803 11,976,389
Reserves for treasury shares  - 7,753,019
Treasury shares  - (7,753,019)
Statutory reserves  121,706,437 97,190,649
Other reserves  66,283,268 47,570,617
Reserves from earnings  201,140,508 156,737,655
Retained earnings  194,104,351 121,807,709
Profit for the current year  154,975,583 112,822,916
Non-controlling interest  214,387,740 200,388,323
TOTAL EQUITY  1,794,175,361 1,617,663,280
Provisions for retirement and jubilee rewards and similar  382,293,790 342,783,794
Other provisions  196,349,900 203,264,999
Provisions 34 578,643,690 546,048,793
Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar  1,615,000 2,380,000
Liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions  79.684.423 72,028,222
Other non-current liabilities  - 1,010,890
Non-current liabilities 35 81,299,423 75,419,112
Liabilities toward related companies 36 13,175,194 29,189,648
Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar 37 765,000 510,000
Liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions 38 148,028,224 198,193,145
Trade accounts payable 39 358,020,213 418,503,448
Liabilities for corporate income tax  3,917,582 2,068,597
Liabilities for advances received 40 180,197,510 197,941,888
Other liabilities 41 71,436,519 87,321,784
Current liabilities  775,540,242 933,728,510
Accrued expenses and deferred income 42 66,491,263 97,894,675
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,296,149,979 3,270,754,370
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Consolidated financial statements 31 December 2010

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

	 Notes		 2010	 2009

  HRK  HRK

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash receipts from trade accounts receivable  2,834,812,367 2,844,372,212
Cash receipts from insurance compensations  6,274,878 3,704,661

Cash receipts from tax returns  154,549,872 133,461,089

Cash receipts from interests  22,922,389 23,733,090

Other cash receipts  54,505,237 39,925,800

Total cash receipts from operating activities  3,073,064,743 3,045,196,852
Cash payments to trade accounts payable  (1,864,804,673) (2,090,096,985)

Cash payments to employees  (560,288,420) (559,834,839)

Cash payments to insurance companies  (10,877,133) (10,538,253)

Cash payments for interests  (13,923,825) (15,922,999)

Cash payments for taxes  (180,046,948) (166,110,365)

Other cash payments   (125,078,646) (138,070,060)

Total cash payments for operating activities  (2,755,019,645) (2,980,573,501)
Net cash flow from operating activities  318,045,098 64,623,351

Cash flow from investing activities

Receipts from the sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets  2.999.245 233,322

Cash receipts from the sale of financial instruments  7,076,566 3,541,927

Receipts from dividends  64,646,202 51,578,485

Total cash inflow from investing activities  74,722,013 55,353,734
Purchase of non-current tangible and intangible assets  (49.955.772) (48,079,175)

Purchase of financial instruments  (2.668.809) (50,000)

Other cash payments for investing activities  - (964,711)

Total cash outflows for investing activities  (50,624,581) (49,093,886)
Net cash used in investing activities  22,097,432 6,259,848

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash receipts from the issuance of financial instruments  - 249,000

Cash receipts from loans and borrowings  88,187,843 164,338,486

Other cash receipts from financing activities  99,649,532 47,683,269

Total cash receipts from financing activities  187,837,375 212,270,755
Repayment of loans and bonds  (134,730,732) (171,340,496)

Dividends paid out  (17,196,110) (19,059,466)

Other cash outflows for financing activities  (106,009,072) (154,827,124)

Total cash outflow for financing activities  (257,935,914) (345,227,086)
Net cash used in financing activities  (70,098,539) (132,956,331)

Increase (decrease) of cash  270,043,991 (62,073,132)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 28 310,321,360 372,394,492

Cash and cash equivalents at the end for the year 28 580,365,351 310,321,360

Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated statement of cash flows
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Notes are an integral part of the Consolidated statement of changes in equity

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	 Share	 Capital	 Reserves	 Reserves	 Treasury	 Retained	 Profit	 Non-	 Total
	 capital	 reserves	 from	 for	treasury	 shares	 earnings	 for	the	 controlling
	 	 	 earnings	 shares	 	 	 year	 interest

	 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK

At 1 January 2009 1,028,847,600 (1,387,727) 106,624,638 11,255,853 (11,255,853) 57,179,891 103,832,296 181,977,057 1,477,073,755

Transactions	with	owners:

Correction	of	opening	balances	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 7,747,142	 214,893	 74,485	 8,036,520

Allocation	of	the	profit	for	the
year	ended	31/12/2008	 -	 -	 50,640,259	 (3,502,834)	 -	 56,880,676	 (104,018,101)	 -	 -

Dividends	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (19,115,935)	 (19,115,935)

Realisation	of	reserves	 -	 -	 (500,916)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (467,751)	 (968,667)

Employee	share-based	payment	options	 -	 (1,553,196)	 -	 -	 3,502,834	 -	 -	 -	 1,949,638

Change	in	ownership	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 5,634,734	 5,634,734

Profit	for	the	year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 112,822,916	 32,290,251	 145,113,167

Other	comprehensive	income:

Exchange	differences	on
translating	foreign	operations	 -	 -	 (26,326)	 -	 -	 -	 (29,088)	 (4,518)	 (59,932)

Total	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 (26,326)	 -	 -	 -	 112,793,828	 32,285,733	 145,053,235

At 31 December 2009 1,028,847,600 (2,940,923) 156,737,655 7,753,019 (7,753,019) 121,807,709 112,822,916 200,388,323 1,617,663,280

Transactions	with	owners:

Correction	of	opening	balances	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (513,979)	 -	 72,687	 (441,292)

Allocation	of	the	profit	for	the
year	ended	31/12/2009	 -	 -	 39,956,842	 -	 -	 72,866,074	 (112,822,916)	 -	 -

Dividends	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (17,090,907)	 (17,090,907)

Realisation	of	reserves	 -	 -	 (500,916)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (467,751)	 (968,667)

Employee	share-based	payment	options	 -	 3,660,502	 4,092,518	 (9,234,827)	 9,234,827	 -	 -	 -	 7,753,020

Purchase	of	treasury	shares	 -	 -	 -	 1,481,808	 (1,481,808)	 -	 -	 -	 -

Change	in	ownership	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (56,569)	 -	 (30,731)	 (87,300)

Profit	for	the	year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 154,975,583	 31,060,318	 186,035,901

Other	comprehensive	income:

Exchange	differences	on
translating	foreign	operations	 -	 -	 854,409	 -	 -	 1,116	 -	 455,801	 1,311,326

Total	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 854,409	 -	 -	 1,116	 154,975,583	 31,516,119	 187,347,227

At 31 December 2010 1,028,847,600 719,579 201,140,508 - - 194,104,351 154,975,583 214,387,740 1,794,175,361
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1. GENERAL DATA ON THE GROUP

1.1. Activities

The main activities of the Končar - Electrical industry 
Group, Zagreb („the Group“) include production of 
electrical machinery and appliances, production of 
transportation vehicles, equipment and similar activi-
ties.

Main activities of the Group are divided in three main 
areas:

I.   Industry: electromotive drivers, electrical equip-
ment of low and high voltage and catering equip-
ment;

II.   Energetic and transportation: design and construc-
tion of plant for the production, transfer and distri-
bution of electrical energy, and related equipment, 
locomotives, trams, and electrical equipment for 
stable electric traction plant and

III.   Trade: electrical household appliances, serial prod-
ucts and electrical low voltage switchgears.

There are 17 subsidiaries within the Group involved 
in core business and 2 subsidiaries involved in activi-
ties related to research and development of products 
and infrastructural services, as well as one subsidiary 
registered abroad which acts as representative office 
or the distributor of Group’s products and supplier for 
raw materials.

The Group has two associated companies.

Parent company of the Group is Končar-Electrical in-
dustry Inc, Zagreb, Fallerovo šetalište 22 („the Com-
pany“). The Company is a holding company.

1.2. Employees

As at 31 December 2010 the Group had 3,938 em-
ployees, while as at 31 December 2009 the Group had 
4,110 employees.

1.3. Supervisory and Management Board

Members of the Supervisory Board:
Igor Lučić  President 
Jasminka Belačić Deputy
Ante Babić Member 
Kristijan Floričić  Member

Ruđer Friganović Member
Ivan Rujnić Member
Zdenka Matković Member
Đuro Perica Member
Nenad Matić Member

 

Members of the Management Board:

Darinko Bago President 

Marina Kralj Miliša  Member, in charge of legal, 
general and human resource 
activities

Jozo Miloloža Member, in charge of finance

Davor Mladina   Member, in charge of IT and 
trade activities

Vladimir Plečko  Member, in charge of corporate 
development and ICT

Compensations to the members of the Management and 
Supervisory Board are presented in the notes 7 and 9.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis for preparation

Statement of compliance

Consolidated financial statements of the Group are 
prepared in accordance with the applicable laws in the 
Republic of Croatia and with the International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European 
Union.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on 
the accrual basis and on a going concern basis.

The accounting policies have been consistently ap-
plied. The financial statements for the year 2010 have 
been prepared using the historical cost convention 
except for any financial assets and liabilities stated at 
fair value in accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instru-
ments: Recognition and Measurement”. 

The consolidated financial statements are denominat-
ed in Croatian Kuna (HRK) as the functional and report-
ing currency of the Group. At 31 December 2010, the 
exchange rate for USD 1 and EUR 1 was HRK 5.57 and 
HRK 7.39, respectively (31 December 2009: HRK 5.09 
and HRK 7.31 respectively).
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Standards, amendments and interpretations adopt-
ed by the European Union and the Croatian Board 
and effective

On the approval date of these consolidated financial 
statements the below mentioned standards and inter-
pretations have been effective for the year ended 31 
December 2010.
The following new and revised Standards and Interpre-
tations have been adopted in the current period and had 
no affected the amounts reported in these financial 
statements as at 1 January 2010:

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS (revised) - effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IFRS 2 Share based payment (revised) - effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised) 
- effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2010

• IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (revised) - ef-
fective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janu-
ary 2010

• IAS 18 Revenue - effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) - effective for an-
nual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Dis-
closure of Government Assistance - effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 23 Borrowing costs (revised) - effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial State-
ments - Cost of an investment at first application - ef-
fective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Janu-
ary 2010

• IAS 28 Investments in Associates (revised) - effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (revised) - effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising 
on Liquidation (revised) - effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (revised) - effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 38 Intangible Assets (revised) - effective for an-
nual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meas-
urements (revised) - effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 40 Investment Property (revised) - effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Es-
tate - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2010

• IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign 
Operation - effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2010

• IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Own-
ers - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2010

• IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers - effec-
tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2010

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations (revised) - effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discon-
tinued Operations (revised) - effective for annual peri-
ods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial State-
ments - effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2010

• IAS 28 Investments in Associates (revised based on 
IFRS improvements) - effective for annual periods be-
ginning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures (revised based on 
IFRS 3 amendment) - effective for annual periods begin-
ning on or after 1 January 2010

• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meas-
urement: Eligible Hedge items - effective for annual pe-
riods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to exist-
ing standards which are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated finan-
cial statements, certain new standards, amendments and 
interpretations to existing standards have been published 
but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 
2010:

• Improvements of IFRSs issued in May 2010 effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 
January 2011, 

• IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 
Instruments - effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2010

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - effective for annual peri-
ods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

• Amendments to IAS 24 Related party Disclosures (as 
revised in 2009)- effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2011

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pro-
nouncements will be adopted in the Group’s financial 
statements for the first period beginning after the effec-
tive date of the pronouncement and its application should 
not have a material impact on the Group’s financial state-
ments.

Key estimates, judgements and uncertainties in the 
preparation of the financial statements

During the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements, the Group’s management used certain 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, disclosures of 
contingent items at the balance sheet date and income 
and expenses for that period.

Estimations have been used, but are not limited on: cal-
culation of depreciation and useful lives, residual value of 
property, plant and equipment and tangible assets, im-
pairment losses estimation, value adjustment for inven-
tories and doubtful receivables, provisions for employee 
benefits and legal cases. More details on the account-
ing policies for these estimations are presented in other 
parts of notes. Future events and their effects cannot be 
estimated with a certainty. Due to that accounting esti-
mates require judgement, and estimates that are used in 
the preparation of the financial statements are subject to 
changes from future events, additional experience, new 

additional information and changes in environment in 
which the Group operates. Actual results can differ from 
estimated results.

Summary of significant accounting policies used for the 
preparation of the financial statements for the year is pre-
sented as follows.

2.2 Basis for the consolidation

Consolidated financial statements include financial state-
ments of the parent company and financial statements 
of the companies controlled by the parent company (sub-
sidiaries). The Company has a control over the companies 
in which directly or indirectly owns more than 50 percent 
of the voting rights and in which the parent company has 
invested in order to gain rewards from the operations of 
the subsidiary.

Results of the subsidiaries which are acquired or dis-
posed during the year are included in profit and loss ac-
count from the acquisition, or up to disposal date.

Changes in the Parent’s shares in a subsidiary, which do 
not result in loss of control are accounted as a transac-
tions with owners. Carrying value of Company’s share 
and non-controlling interest are adjusted in order to re-
flect the change in their relative shares in subsidiary Every 
difference between the adjusted value of non-controlling 
interest and fair value of consideration paid or received is 
recognized directly in equity and it is attributable to the 
owners of the parent.

When the Company loses control over the subsidiary, 
gain or loss from the disposal is determined as a differ-
ence between:

• Total fair value of the consideration received and fair 
value of potentially retained share and 

• Carrying value of assets (including goodwill) and liabili-
ties of the subsidiary and non-controlling interest.

Fair value of the retained share in former subsidiary on 
the date when the control was lost is treated as, for the 
purpose of subsequent measurement in accordance with 
IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measure-
ment, cost during the initial recognition or, if applicable, 
as a initial cost for the investment into associate company.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances 
between the Group companies are eliminated during the 
consolidation.



15

 2010

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated financial statements 31 December 2010

- Electrical Industry Group

2.3 Investments in associates

Associated companies are companies in which the 
Group has between 20% and 50% of voting power 
and in which the Group has significant influence, but 
not control, by participation in policy-making processes 
of the associate. In the consolidated financial state-
ments results, assets and liabilities of the associates 
are stated on the basis of equity method which means 
that the carrying value of investment in an associate 
is stated in the balance sheet at cost adjusted for all 
changes of Group’s share in profit or loss, and other 
comprehensive income of an associate after the acqui-
sition date, and also for any impairments of the invest-
ment value.

If the Group’s share in the loss incurred by an associ-
ate is higher than the carrying amount of the invest-
ment, Group ceases the recognition of its share in fu-
ture losses. When the associate starts to incur profit, 
Group starts to include its share in those earnings after 
the reconciliation of its share in unrecognized losses.

When the Group has no longer significant influence 
over the associate this investment is accounted in 
accordance with IAS 39. The difference between fair 
value of retained investment and the proceeds from 
the disposal and carrying value of an investment at the 
date when the significant influence has been lost is 
recognized in the profit or loss.

In case when the Group losses significant influence 
over the associate, previously recognized profit or loss 
in other comprehensive income related to this invest-
ment is reclassified into the profit or loss. If the share 
in an associate decreases, but the significant influence 
remains, only the proportional amount of gain or loss 
previously recognized in other comprehensive income 
is reclassified into profit or loss.

2.4 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying 
the acquisition method. Assets and liabilities are meas-
ured at fair value at the acquisition date which is the 
date when the Group has gained control over the ac-
quired company. Non-controlling interest is measured 
in accordance with proposed share of non-controlling 
interest in the fair value of identifiable net assets of the 
acquired company.

Goodwill

Goodwill is determined as a difference between:

• the aggregate of the consideration transferred, any 
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and, in a business 
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair 
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in 
the acquiree; and

• net identifiable assets acquired.

Costs related to the acquisition (consulting costs) are rec-
ognized in the profit or loss in the period in which incurred.

Goodwill is recognized as an asset at the acquisition date. 
If the acquirer has made a gain from a bargain purchase 
the gain is recognized in profit or loss account.

Goodwill  is subject to impairment test at each reporting 
date.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenues from sale of goods and services are recognized 
in the moment of the delivery of goods and at the time 
when services are rendered and in the moment of the 
ownership transfer. Income from interests is calculated 
on the basis of unsettled receivable and on the basis 
of applicable interest rates. Income from dividends and 
shares in profit are recognized in the moment when the 
rights on dividends and shares are established.

Revenues from the sale of goods and own products are 
recognized when all of the following conditions have 
been met:

• the Group has transferred all significant risks and ben-
efits arising from the ownership of the goods or products 
to the buyer;

• the Group does not retain constant involvement in the 
control of the assets sold up to a point usually related 
with ownership nor does it have control over the sale of 
goods;

• the amount of income can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits arising from 
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

• costs, arising or that will arise in relation to the transac-
tion, can be measured reliably.

Income from services is recognized in the period when 
the services have been rendered by the stage of comple-
tion method.
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Financial revenues and expenses

Financial revenues and expenses comprise of inter-
ests on loans granted calculated by using the effective 
interest rate method, interest receivables from funds 
invested, income from dividends, foreign exchange 
gains/losses, gains/losses from financial assets held at 
fair value through the profit and loss account.

Interest revenues are recognized in the income state-
ment on an accrual basis using the effective interest 
rate method. 

Financial expenses are comprised from the interests 
calculated on loans, changes in the fair value of finan-
cial assets held at fair value through the profit and loss 
account, losses on value adjustments (impairments) of 
financial assets and losses from exchange rate differ-
ences.

2.6 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be 
estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs 
associated with the construction contract are recog-
nized as revenue and expenses respectively by the 
reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at the end of the reporting period, on the ba-
sis of the share of costs incurred to that date in total 
estimated contract costs. Variations in contract work, 
claims and incentive payments are included in contract 
revenue to the extent agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot 
be estimated reliably, revenues are recognized only to 
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable 
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as 
expense in the period in which are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will ex-
ceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is rec-
ognized as an expense immediately.

2.7 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leas-
es are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recog-
nised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the 
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value 

of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as 
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance 
charges and reduction of the lease obligations so as 
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged di-
rectly to profit or loss.

2.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalized during the period indispensible 
for the finalization and preparation of the asset for its 
intended use or sale. 

Other borrowing costs are recognized in the income 
statement using the effective interest rate method.

2.9 Transaction in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are initially translated 
into Kuna’s by using the spot rates at the transaction 
date. Cash, receivables and liabilities reported in for-
eign currencies are translated into Kuna’s by using 
middle exchange rate at balance sheet date. Foreign 
exchange gains or losses are included in the profit and 
loss account as incurred.

During the consolidation, assets  and liabilities of 
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the 
Group presentation currency at the exchange rates rul-
ing at the reporting date. Revenues and expenses are 
translated into at the foreign exchange rates ruling at 
the dates of the transactions and the exchange differ-
ences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 
All foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized 
in the profit or loss account in the period when the 
transaction occurred.

2.10 Taxation

The parent company as well as domestic subsidiaries 
within the Group provides for taxation liabilities in ac-
cordance with Croatian law. Corporate tax for the year 
comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable 
income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the bal-
ance sheet date. 
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Deferred tax reflects the net tax effect of the tem-
porary differentials between the book values of the 
assets and the liabilities for the purpose of the finan-
cial reporting and the values used for the purpose 
of establishing profit tax. A deferred tax asset for 
the carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused 
tax credits is recognized to the extent that it is prob-
able that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
calculated using the tax rate applicable to the taxable 
profit in the years in which these assets and liabilities 
are expected to be collected or paid. 

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an ex-
pense or income in profit or loss, except when they 
relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, 
in which case the tax is also recognized directly in 
equity.

2.11 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share data for 
its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is calcu-
lated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordi-
nary shareholders by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

2.12 Segment information

During the identification of business segments, the 
Management mostly follows sales of goods and 
provision of services within certain economic area. 
Every of these business segments are separately 
managed since they are determined on the basis of 
specific market needs.

Policies of valuation/measurement which the Group 
uses for the segment reporting are the same as 
those used during the preparation of the financial 
statements. 

Furthermore, assets which cannot be directly at-
tributable to certain business segments remains un-
allocated.

There has not been any changes in the valuation 
methods used in the determination of profit or loss 
of business segment in comparison to previous pe-
riods.

2.13 Non-current intangible and tangible as-
sets (property, plant and equipment)

Non-current intangible and tangible assets are initially 
recognized at cost which includes purchase price, 
import duties and non-refundable taxes after dis-
counts and rebates, as well as all other costs directly 
linked to bringing the assets into working condition 
for intended use.

Item of intangible and tangible asset is recognized 
when it is probable that future economic benefits as-
sociated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably, and when 
the cost is higher than HRK 3,500.

Subsequently after the initial recognition assets are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
less impairment losses.

Maintenance and repairs, replacements and im-
provements of minor importance are expensed as 
incurred. Where it is obvious that expenses incurred 
resulted in increase of expected future economic 
benefits to be derived from the use of an item of 
long-term intangible or tangible property in excess 
of the originally assessed standard performance of 
the asset, they are added to the carrying amount of 
the asset. Gains or losses on the retirement or dis-
posal of long-term intangible and tangible asset are 
included in the statement of income in the period in 
which they occur.

Depreciation starts when the fixed asset is available 
and ready for use, i.e. when it is appropriately located 
and in the right conditions needed for the use. Depre-
ciation ceases when the assets is fully depreciated or 
when the asset is classified as the non-current asset 
held for sale. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis for each fixed asset item over their useful 
economic life (except for land and assets under con-
struction), as follows:

 Depreciation rates 
 (from - to %)
Development expenditures 20%                                   
Concessions, patents, licences, software etc 20%
Other intangible assets 20%
Buildings 1.2% - 7.7%
Plant and equipment 6.8% - 25%
Tools, inventory and transport vehicles 3.4% - 25%  
Other assets 20%
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the car-
rying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset, the Group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs.

During the determination of impairment losses or re-
versal of impairment loss for an item of property, plant 
and equipment the depreciation rate is not changed 
but the useful life of an item is changed.

Recoverable amounts are determined as follows:

• For land - price determined by the tax authorities in 
the determination of real estate tax is used;

• For buildings - market value of the same or similar 
buildings at the same location of the valuation by inde-
pendent evaluators is used;

• For equipment -  net selling price - market price less 
costs to sale, e.g. last transaction price.

If the recoverable amount an asset (or cash-generating 
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit 
or loss.

At every balance sheet date the Group reviews if there 
are indicators that the previously recognized impair-
ment loss no longer exist or it is decreased, and in that 
case the impairment loss is reversed fully or partially in 
the profit or loss account.

Increase of carrying value of an asset for the purpose 
of impairment loss reversal cannot be higher that the 
previously recognized impairment loss, decreased for 
the depreciation which would be calculated if the asset 
was not impaired.

 
2.14 Investment property

Investment property which are in Group’s ownership 
are held for the purpose of earning rentals or as a po-
tential for issuing solidarity guarantees for subsidiar-

ies, and also for the future capital appreciations for the 
purpose of future sale.

2.15 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is meas-
ured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified 
as held for sale when its carrying value will be recov-
ered principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use.

This condition is satisfied only if the sale is highly prob-
able and the asset is ready for sale in its current condi-
tion.

Management must commit to the sale for which it 
expects to be realised within one year from the clas-
sification date. 

Assets which are once classified as held for sale are no 
longer depreciated.

2.16 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Investments are recognized and derecognized on 
trade date where the purchase or sale of an invest-
ment is under a contract whose terms require delivery 
of the investment within the timeframe established by 
the market concerned. They are initially measured at 
fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those fi-
nancial assets classified as at fair value through profit 
or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following cat-
egories:

• At fair value through profit or loss (RVTPL) - Financial 
assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial 
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as 
at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair 
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in 
profit or loss. 

• Held to maturity - bills of exchange and debentures 
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matu-
rity dates that the Group has the positive intent and 
ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-ma-
turity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are 
recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method less any impairment, with revenue recognized 
on an effective yield basis.
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• Available for sale - is non-derivative financial assets 
determined as such or financial assets which can-
not be included within above determined categories. 
AFS is stated at fair value, gains and losses arising 
from changes in fair value are recognized directly in 
other comprehensive income with the exception of 
impairment losses, interest calculated using the ef-
fective interest method and foreign exchange gains 
and losses on monetary assets, which are recog-
nized directly in profit or loss. Where the investment 
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the 
other comprehensive income is included in profit or 
loss for the period.

• Loans and receivables - Trade receivables, loans, 
and other receivables that have fixed or determina-
ble payments that are not quoted in an active market 
are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and re-
ceivables are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment. In-
terest income is recognized by applying the effective 
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when 
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are as-
sessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where 
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one 
or more events that occurred after the initial recogni-
tion of the financial asset, the estimated future cash 
flows or the investment have been impacted.

For unlisted shares classified as AFS a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security be-
low its cost is considered to be objective evidence of 
impairment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable 
notes classified as AFS and finance lease receiva-
bles, objective evidence of impairment could include:

• Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or coun-
terparty; or

• Default or delinquency in interest or principal pay-
ments; or 

• It becoming probable that the borrower will enter 
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset ex-
pire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an as-
sociated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Group retains substantially all the risks and reward own-
ership of a transferred financial asset, the Group contin-
ues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises 
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either 
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that provides evi-
dence to a residual interest in the assets of an entity 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments 
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds re-
ceived, net of direct issue costs.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares is-
sued.

Capital reserves includes premium at the issuance of 
shares. Incremental costs directly attributable to issue 
of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from 
equity.

Reserves are stated at nominal amounts defined in the 
allocation of earnings, especially legal reserves, statu-
tory reserves and other reserves.

Share repurchase

The amount paid for the repurchase of the Group’s 
own shares, including direct costs related to the re-
purchase, is recognized as a impairment within equity 
and reserves. Repurchased shares are classified as 
own shares and represent a reduction of equity and re-
serves. Purchase of treasury shares is recorded at cost 
and sale on negotiated prices. Gain or loss from the sale 
of treasury shares is recognized in equity.
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Financial guarantee of a contractual obligation

Financial guarantee of a contractual obligation is 

initially measured at its fair value and subsequently 

measured at the higher of:

• the contractual amount of liability determined in ac-

cordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabili-

ties and Contingent Assets; and

• the amount initially recognized less, where appro-

priate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accord-

ance with the revenue recognition policies (dividend 

and interest revenue.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

and loss Financial liabilities are classified as financial 

liabilities at fair value through profit and loss when 

they are either intended to be traded or are classified 

as such by the Group. They are measured at their fair 

value, while the gains/losses relating to them are rec-

ognized in the profit and loss account. The net gain/

loss recognized in the profit and loss account includes 

any interest paid in the name of the financial liability. 

Other financial liabilities - including loans, initial-

ly are measured including borrowings, are initially 

measured at fair value, net of transaction cost, and 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest method, with interest expense rec-

ognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculat-

ing the amortized cost of a financial liability and of 

allocating interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly dis-

counts estimate future cash payments through the 

expected life of the financial liability, or, where ap-

propriate, a shorter period.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, 

and only when, the Company’s obligations are dis-

charged, cancelled or they expire.

2.17 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or 

net realizable value. Costs of inventories comprise 

all purchase costs, costs of conversion and other 

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their 

present location and condition. Cost of inventories 

is calculated on the basis of weighted average cost 

method.

Net realizable value is estimated selling price in 

an ordinary course of the business decreased by 

estimated completion costs and estimated selling 

costs.

In the cases when it is necessary to bring the inven-

tory value at its net selling price the Group makes 

inventory value adjustments recognized as an ex-

pense in the profit and loss for the current year.

Small inventory is depreciated by 100% when put 

into use.

2.18 Receivables

Receivables are initially measured at fair value. At 

the balance sheet date, receivables, whose collec-

tion is expected in the period longer than one year, 

are stated at amortized cost by using the effective 

interest rate method decreased for impairment loss. 

Current receivables are stated at initially recognized 

nominal amount decreased for appropriate value ad-

justment for estimated uncollectible amounts and 

impairment losses.

Value of the receivables is decreased and impair-

ment losses are incurred if and only if there is objec-

tive evidence on the impairment as a result of one 

or more events which happened after the initial rec-

ognition when this event influences the estimated 

future cash flows for the receivables which can be 

reliably estimated. At every balance sheet date the 

Group estimates if there is objective evidence on 

the impairment of certain receivable. If the objective 

evidence on the impairment exists, impairment loss 

is measured as a difference between carrying value 

and estimated future cash flows. Carrying value of 

receivables is decreased directly or by the usage 

of separate value adjustment account. Impairment 

loss is recognized as an expense in the profit and 

loss account for the current year.
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits, cash 

at banks and similar institutions and cash on hand, 

shares in cash funds at demand or collectible within 

3 months.

2.20 Received loans

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are re-

corded on the basis of received amount decreased 

for direct cost needed for their approval. Financial 

costs, including premium paid on the settlement 

or withdrawals are recorded on accrual basis and 

added to the carrying value of the instrument, only 

for the un-settled amount in period in which they 

occurred.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 

of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable esti-

mate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are re-evaluated at every balance sheet 

date and adjusted according to the newest best es-

timates.

Provisions are determined for costs of repairs with-

in warranty periods, awards to employees for long 

term employment and retirement (jubilee awards 

and severance payments).

Provisions for awards to employees for long term 

employment and retirement (regular jubilee awards 

and severance payments) are determined as the 

present value of future cash outflows using the gov-

ernment bond interest rate as the discount rate.

2.22 Employee benefits

Defined pension fund contributions - are recognised 

as an expense in the income statement when in-

curred.

Bonus plans - liability for employee benefits is rec-

ognized as provisions based on the Group’s formal 

plan and when past practice has created a valid ex-

pectation by the Management Board/key employ-

ees that they will receive a bonus and the amount 

can be determined before the time of issuing the 

financial statements. For liability for bonuses it is ex-

pected that it will be settled within 12 months from 

balance sheet date, and the liability is recognized in 

the amount expected to be paid.

Share based payments - The Group operates an 

equity-settled, share-based compensation plans. 

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting 

period and the amount that is credited to the share 

capital is determined by reference to the fair value 

of the options granted.  The fair value of the equity 

accounted instruments is measured at the grant 

date. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises 

its estimates of the number of options that are ex-

pected to vest.

2.23 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial 

statements, but only disclosed in the notes to the 

financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial 

statements except when the inflow of economic 

benefits is virtually certain.

2.24 Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional infor-

mation about the Group’s position at the balance 

sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the 

financial statements. Post-year-end events that 

are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes 

when material.

2.25 Comparatives and reclassifications

Where necessary, comparative figures have been 

adjusted to conform with the presentation in the 

current year.
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 31 december 2010 31 december 2009.

 Ownership	 Voting	 Ownership	 Voting
	 share	 power	 share	 power
	 	 share	 	 share
	 (%)	 (%)	 (%)	 (%)
Subsidiaries registered in Croatia which are consolidated:
Končar - Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Small Electrical Machines Inc., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Power plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Energetika i usluge d.o.o., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Electrical engineering institute Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd., Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Generators and motors ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Tools Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 75.04 75.04 75.04 75.04
Končar - Metalne konstrukcije, Zagreb 75.01 75.01 75.01 75.01
Končar - Electronics and Informatics Inc., Zagreb 75.03 75.03 75.03 75.03
Končar - Switchgears Inc., Sesvetski Kraljevec 45.71  66.85 45.71  66.85
Končar - Medium voltage apparatus Inc, Zagreb 41.77  69.87 41.77  69.87
Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc, Zagreb 43.40  72.35 43.40  72.35
Končar - Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 51.71  67.79 51.71  67.79
Končar - High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 81.19  85.19 81.19  85.19
Končar - Engineering Co. for plant installation & commissioning Inc, Zagreb 38.49  76.51 38.49  76.51

Subsidiary registered abroad which is consolidated:
Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland 64.00  77.50  64.00  77.50

Subsidiries which are not consolidated::
Konell d.o.o., Sofija, Bulgaria* 85.00  85.00  85.00  85.00
Končar - Inženjering d.d., Zagreb* 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Mjerenja d.o.o., Beograd* 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Končar - Intertade Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia - - 58.41 58.41

Above mentioned subsidiaries which are not consolidated are not consolidated since are insignificant on the Group level.
*companies in indirect ownership by the parent

2.26 Subsidiaries

Associates:
 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
	 	 Share	in	 	 Share	in
	 	 ownership		 	 ownership
	 	 (%)	 	 (%)
Associated companies accounted for by using equity method: 
Končar - Power transformers ltd, Zagreb  49.00  49.00
Elkakon d.o.o., Zagreb*  50.00  50.00

* company in indirect ownership
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3. Sales
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Domestic sales of goods 1,016,857,124 1,334,448,272

Foreign sales of goods 1,305,220,227 1,231,653,463

Sales to related parties 142,740,355 109,036,182

 2,464,817,706 2,675,137,917

4. Other operating income
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Income from the release of provisions (note 34 and 42) 131,157,243 86,268,844

Collected receivables previously written off 7,493,919 6,056,006

Income from insurance claims 6,515,097 9,451,133

Income from subsequent rebates, bonuses and similar 3,062,624 1,458,903

Inventory surpluses 2,590,707 1,667,849

Income from government grants and similar 2,579,051 1,404,467

Rent 1,885,165 2,912,679

Income from sale of materials 1,734,262 1,494,831

Income from previous years 1,196,953 1,646,924

Net gain from assets disposal 1,189,669 1,966,155

Debt written-off 453,185 1,176,452

Other income 12,884,512 5,038,316

 172,742,387 120,542,559

5. Costs of materials and energy
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Raw materials and other materials 1,071,662,088 1,320,312,625

Spare parts 649,398 765,354

Small inventory 14,645,251 9,889,404

Energy  45,649,656 47,550,793

 1,132,606,393  1,378,518,176
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6. Cost of services
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

External products design and selling services 154,444,566 182,094,295

Costs of telephone, post and transportation 62,411,943 45,747,408

Maintenance 30,741,468 36,892,069

Intellectual and similar services 23,503,485 27,284,979

Entertainment costs 13,676,782 14,048,640

Utilities costs 10,940,203 17,929,430

Costs of research and development 7,450,277 4,338,595

Advertising services and trade fairs 5,603,259 5,080,323

Rent 4,871,299 4,800,911

Education 4,207,047 3,358,317

Sponsorships 3,145,833 2,562,148

Other costs of services 40,290,559 30,202,314

 361,286,721 374,339,429

7. Personnel costs
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Net wages and salaries 263,731,556 263,719,609

Taxes and contributions 208,952,809 211,294,465

 472,684,365 475,014,074

Net wages and salaries in the amount of HRK 263,731,556 (2009: HRK 263,719,609) include compensations to 
Management board amounting to HRK 13,192,167 (2009: HRK 15,091,936) and accrued bonuses for Management 
in the amount of HRK 4,214,009 (2009; HRK 4,731,839), and represent integral part of personnel costs.

8. Depreciation and amortization
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Depreciation 69,504,005 69,797,071

Amortization 7,212,863 6,719,477

 76,716,868 76,516,548
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9. Other costs
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Travelling costs and per-diems 41,099,374 42,468,528

Compensations to employees 27,101,568 26,138,390

Compensations to members of the Supervisory Board 5,380,531 5,371,962

Insurance premiums 13,384,981 11,789,671

Banking services 17,444,953 16,818,175

Taxes and contributions and similar costs 4,720,759 5,484,600

Taxes non-dependable on the income and fees 4,179,779 4,821,835

Other 15,923,095 10,249,171

 129,235,040 123,142,332

10. Value adjustments
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Value adjustment of long term financial assets 298,113 -

Value adjustment of long-term intangible assets - 5,917,632

Value adjustment of property, plant and equipment - 33,929

 298,113  5,951,561
Value adjustment of inventories 17,639,078 8,803,695

Value adjustment of current receivables 19,639,771 21,910,283

Value adjustment of current financial assets 116 -

 37,278,965  30,713,978
 37,577,078  36,665,539

11. Provisions
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Provisions for servicing costs within warranty periods 125,406,924 134,748,302

Provisions for court cases 18,035,857 27,098,928

Provisions for development projects 1,500,000 3,500,000

Provisions for stimulation severance payments - 600,000

Provisions for retirement and jubilee awards 10,870,699 5,519,731

Other provisions 3,204,643 2,824,948

 159,018,123 174,291,909

Movement in non-current provisions by categories is presented in the note 34 while the amount of HRK 3,958,782 
is presented as movement in current provisions in note 42.
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12. Other operating expenses
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Penalties, compensations and similar 2,959,183 5,504,620

Inventory shortages 1,930,663 1,574,466

Rebates, discounts and similar 746,755 2,168,813

Receivables write-off 457,326 21,757

Subsequent expenses 608,798 500,344

Inventory write-off 348,349 1,627,339

Loss from the sale of property, plant and equipment 119,733 931,836

Other operating expenses 1,218,271 1,554,507

 8,389,078 13,883,682

13. Share of profit from equity accounted investments

Share of profit from equity accounted investments in the amount of HRK 114,015,279 (2009: HRK 110,645,889) 
relates to share in profit of an associate Končar - Power transformers ltd in which the Group has share of 49% in 
the amount of HRK 113,809,567 and share in profit of an associate Elkakon ltd in which the Group indirectly owns 
50% share in the amount of HRK 205,712. 

The above mentioned companies have realized net income in 2010 as follows:
- Power transformers ltd HRK 232,264,422
- Elkakon ltd HRK 795,605.
 

14. Financial revenues
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

From the relations with related parties

Dividend income 60,982 63,505

Other financial income - 169,297

 60,982 232,802

From the relations with un-related parties

Interest income 24,056,754 26,670,738

Foreign exchange gains 48,447,161 44,023,386

Dividend income 1,222,021 920,934

Other financial income 870,764 1,508,134

 74,596,700 73,123,192
Unrealised gains 58,650 796,137

 74,716,332 74,152,131
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15. Financial expenses

	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

From the relations with related parties

Interest expenses 17,137 96,384

 17,137 96,384

From the relations with un-related parties

Interest expenses 17,281,410 18,240,699

Foreign exchange losses 32,563,790 41,651,106

Other financial expenses 443,259 1,524,000

 50,288,459  61,415,805
Unrealised losses on financial assets 5,411,609  -

 55,717,205  61,512,189
 

16. Corporate income tax

Calculation of corporate income tax liability for the year ended 31 December 2010 was as follows:
	 2010	 2009	

 HRK HRK

Consolidated profit before tax 201,645,074 158,377,190

Corporate income tax at the rate of 20% 40,329,014 31,675,438
Consolidation adjustments (785,289) 7,100,950

Increases of tax 28,438,176 18,127,900

Decreases of tax (41,753,292) (34,573,380)

Used tax assets (1,482,461) (977,885)

Tax liability 24,746,148 21,353,023
Incentives (9,136,975) (8,089,000)

Adjusted tax liability 15,609,173 13,264,023
Un-recognized tax asset on tax losses to be carried forward 37,096,777 28,847,907

The applicable income tax rate for 2010 and 2009 was 20%.
The Group can carry forward tax losses from subsidiaries which incurred loss in the year 2010 and which had no 
tax liability and from subsidiaries who realized profit in 2010 but had tax losses from previous periods. These tax 
losses can be carried forward for maximum period of 5 years. As at 31 December 2010 un-recognized tax asset on 
tax losses carried forward amounts to HRK 37,096,777 and can be used as follows:
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	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009	

 HRK HRK

31 December 2010 - 821,475

31 December 2011 3,179,600 3,708,709

31 December 2012 2,556,200 2,587,295

31 December 2013 11,904,223 12,755,679

31 December 2014 8,968,465 8,974,749

31 December 2015 10,478,289 -

 37,096,777 28,847,907

Deferred tax asset on the basis of tax losses carried forward was not recognized in the financial statements due to 
uncertainty of their usage in future periods.

17. Earnings per share
	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009	

Basic earnings per share HRK HRK

Net profit attributable to owners of the parent 154,975,583 112,822,916

Weighted average number of shares 2,572,119 2,572,119

Earnings per share in kunas 60.25 43.86

18. Goodwill

Goodwill amounting to HRK 7,040,919 relates to goodwill recognized in business combinations when the compa-
nies Končar - Instrument Transformers Inc, Končar - Distribution and special transformers Inc and Končar - Engineer-
ing Co. for plant installation & commissioning Inc have been acquired. Movement in goodwill during the year 2010 
was as follows:
	 Goodwill

 HRK

At 1 January 2008  6,188,533
Acquisition of subsidiaries 895,121

Impairment of goodwill -

At 31 December 2008  7,083,654
Acquisition of subsidiaries 5,385,734

Impairment of goodwill (5,917,632)

At 31 December 2009  6,551,756
Increase 489,163

At 31 December 2010  7,040,919
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19. Non-current intangible assets
	 Development	 Concessions,	 Other	 Intangible	 Total
	 expenditure	 patents,	 	 assets
	 	 software,	 	 under
	 	 and	other	 	 construction
	 	 rights

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK

Cost

At 1 January 2009 55,814,526 14,552,007 1,401,470 17,299,006 89,067,009
Transfer from assets under construction 17,293,364 516,481 - (17,809,845) -

Additions 1,400,608 149,566 - 510,839 2,061,013

Disposals - (346,707) - - (346,707)

At 31 December 2009 74,508,498 14,871,347 1,401,470 - 90,781,315
Transfer from assets under construction - 350,696 - (350,696) -

Additions 1,431,438 1,866,226 - 3,098,909 6,396,573

Disposals (10,860,698) (287,606) (349,052) - (11,497,356)

At 31 December 2010 65,079,238 16,800,663 1,052,418 2,748,213 85,680,532
Accumulated amortization  -

At 1 January 2009 49,470,532 11,704,279 810,364 - 61,985,175
Reclassifications - - - - -

Amortization for the year 5,029,000 1,521,953 168,524 - 6,719,477

Disposals - (346,707) - - (346,707)

At 31 December 2009 54,499,532 12,879,525 978,888 - 68,357,945
Correction of opening balances - (4,916) - - (4,916)

Amortization for the year 5,860,625 1,161,713 168,525 22,000 7,212,863

Disposals (7,743,774) (287,606) (349,052) - (8,380,432)

At 31 December 2010 52,616,383 13,748,716 798,361 22,000 67,185,460
Carrying value

31 December 2009 20,008,966 1,991,822 422,582 - 22,423,370

31 December 2010 12,462,855 3,051,947 254,057 2,726,213 18,495,072
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20. Property, plant and equipment

	 Land	 Buildings	 Plant	and	 Tools,	 Other	 Assets	 Advances	 Total
	 	 	 equipment	 fixtures	 	 under
	 	 	 	 and	fittings	 	 construction

	 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK

Cost

At 1 January 2009 154,469,239 874,166,315 646,425,138 303,989,892 793,730 30,196,560 3,943,142 2,013,984,016

Reclassification	 -	 -	 5,159	 (992,130)	 986,971	 -	 -	 -

Transfer	from	assets
under	construction	 389,480	 13,702,628	 36,374,940	 18,247,641	 139,070	 (68,853,759)	 -	 -

Additions	 1,583,231	 5,871,206	 581,482	 727,696	 252,643	 69,639,840	 21,074,685	 99,730,783

Disposals	 (1,374,407)	 (5,984,467)	 (6,136,188)	 (8,051,798)	 -	 -	 (22,975,807)	 (44,522,667)

At 31 December 2009 155,067,543 887,755,682 677,250,531 313,921,301 2,172,414 30,982,641 2,042,020 2,069,192,132

Reclassification	 -	 -	 227,255	 (227,255)	 -	 -	 -	 -

Transfer	from	assets
under	construction	 4,272,916	 7,491,873	 28,616,573	 17,149,950	 12,600	 (57,543,912)	 -	 -

Additions	 -	 -	 4,607,115	 3,938,673	 -	 59,085,608	 24,296,159	 91,927,555

Disposals	 (3,316,751)	 (418,926)	 (7,814,858)	 (7,730,412)	 (25,644)	 (1,147,645)	 (22,501,453)	 (42,955,689)

At 31 December 2010 156,023,708 894,828,629 702,886,616 327,052,257 2,159,370 31,376,692 3,836,726 2,118,163,998

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2009 - 472,147,256 499,701,426 234,761,872 50,220 3,783,539 - 1,210,444,313

Reclassifications	 -	 -	 5,159	 (838,119)	 832,960	 -	 -	 -

Depreciation	for	the	year	 -	 22,144,831	 29,923,162	 17,348,058	 381,020	 -	 -	 69,797,071

Increases	 -	 1,327,176	 1,210,834	 -	 -	 -	 -	 2,538,010

Disposals	 -	 (1,367,328)	 (4,828,180)	 (7,887,639)	 -	 -	 -	 (14,083,147)

At 31 December 2009 - 494,251,935 526,012,401 243,384,172 1,264,200 3,783,539 - 1,268,696,247

Reclassifications	 -	 -	 227,255	 (227,255)	 -	 -	 -	 -

Depreciation	for	the	year	 -	 21,028,525	 31,291,140	 16,989,908	 194,432	 -	 -	 69,504,005

Increases	 -	 -	 1,215,889	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,215,889

Disposals	 -	 (126,013)	 (7,681,302)	 (7,553,839)	 -	 -	 -	 (15,361,154)

At 31 December 2010 - 515,154,447 551,065,383 252,592,986 1,458,632 3,783,539 - 1,324,054,987

Carrying value

31	December	2009	 155,067,543	 393,503,747	 151,238,130	 70,537,129	 908,214	 27,199,102	 2,042,020	 800,495,885

31 December 2010 156,023,708 379,674,182 151,821,233 74,459,271 700,738 27,593,153 3,836,726 794,109,011

As a collateral for long-term loans (note 35) and short-term loans (note 38), mortgages have been registered over the 
real estates and movables of the Group in the amount of HRK 272 million and EUR 38 million.
The cost of property, plant and equipment which are fully depreciated and still in use on 31 December 2010 
amounts to HRK 310,103 thousand.
As at 31 December 2010 the Group has contracted un-invoiced investments in the amount of HRK 14 million.
Carrying value of Group’s assets purchased on finance lease as at 31 December 2010 amounts to HRK 13 million.
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21. Investment property

Investment property in the amount of HRK 93,849,610 (2009: HRK 93,857,391) relates to the investments in real 
estates for the capital appreciation intended for future sale. Fair value of these investments estimated by inde-
pendent evaluators is higher than their carrying value.

22. Investment accounted for using the equity method

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Associates:
Končar - Power transformers ltd, Zagreb 206,871,085 167,853,151

Other associates (indirect):
Elkakon ltd, Zagreb 1,644,184  1,732,458

Total 208,515,269 169,585,609

23. Non-current financial assets

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Subsidiaries:
Končar-Intertrade Sdn, Bhd, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia -  252,919

Other subsidiaries

Končar-Inžinjering d.d., Zagreb 227,787 227,787

Konel d.o.o. Bulgaria 62,280 62,280

Mjerenja d.o.o.,Beograd, Serbia 3,637 3,637

 293,704  293,704
Shares in capital up to 20%
Novi Fermot d.o.o, Donji Kraljevec 429,300 429,300

Ferokotao d.o.o., Donji Kraljevec 262,016 262,016

Centar proizvodnog strojarstva i analitičarstva d.o.o, Zagreb 110,000 110,000

Bioto plinifikacija 5,000 -

Total 806,316 801,316

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Shares 2,686,761 2,659,738

Total 2,686,761 2,659,738

Loans granted, deposits and similar 684,626 960,643

 4,471,407 4,968,320
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24. Non-current receivables

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Receivables on the basis of credit sale
Receivables for sold apartments 9,473,723 16,501,455

Receivables for shares sold 24,216,466 28,203,371

Receivables on the bank guarantees - 807,931

Loan granted to Railways of Bosnia and Herzegovina 18,691,147 27,189,141

Other loans granted 130,957 149,013

Current portion (see note 28) (5,250,238) (6,272,921)

 47,262,055 66,577,990

Other receivables
Receivables on the basis of foreign sales 6,804,158 6,055,591

Loans granted to employees 3,292,895 3,499,853

Current portion (see note 27, 28) (855,846) (529,989)

 9,241,207 9,025,455

 56,503,262 75,603,445

In accordance with the Law on Sale of apartments with Tenancy Rights, the flats owned by the Group were sold 
at an interest rate of 1% per annum with the average maturity of 28 years and indexed. According to this index, 
receivables are increased or decreased, if the exchange rate of EUR is changed for more than 5.1% compared to 
the rate that existed at the signing date of the Sale agreements. Amounts of unpaid annuities in DEM have been 
converted into EUR at fixed rate of 1 EUR =1.95583 DEM. As a collateral the mortgage has been registered over 
the sold apartments.

As at 31 December 2010 value adjustment of long term receivables for sold apartments has been calculated on 
the basis of net present value of estimated cash flows using the discount rate of 4.9%.

Receivables for sold shares relate to long term receivable for sold shares in subsidiaries Končar-Electronics and 
Informatics Inc, Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc and Končar-Metalne konstrukcije d.d. within the  employee’s stock-
ownership program and with instalment payments through 10 years.

Loan granted to Railways of Bosnia and Herzegovina Sarajevo matures in July 2013 in accordance with contracted 
repayment schedule.

Receivable on the basis of foreign sales relates to receivable for the sale in Bosnia and Herzegovina through the 
company TAKRAF from Germany, taken by KfW Bank, Berlin.
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25. Inventories

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Raw and other materials 258,184,200 246,256,813

Spare parts 97,619 64,640

Small inventory 2,247,566 2,166,164

Work in progress 96,249,912 123,408,319

Unfinished products and semi-finished products 61,805,797 69,195,904

Finished products 85,428,778 126,305,704

Merchandise  17,367,743 20,316,115

Goods in transit 1,013,140 3,710,627

Less: Value adjustment of taw materials, spare parts, and small inventory (38,356,115) (23,870,664)

Value adjustment of goods in transit - (2,237,529)

Value adjustment of work in progress, finished goods and merchandise (15,799,699) (12,905,175)

 468,238,941 552,410,918

Advances for inventories

Domestic advances 5,421,975 13,790,267

Value adjustment (198,863) (190,217)

 5,223,112 13,600,050

Foreign advances 8,666,106 14,870,345

Value adjustment - (266,864)

 8,666,106 14,603,481

Total advances 13,889,218 28,203,531

Total inventories 482,128,159 580,614,449

26. Current receivables from related parties
	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Receivable from associate 111,046,846 86,121,171

 111,046,846 86,121,171
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27. Current trade accounts receivable

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Domestic customers 407,353,183 561,108,554

Value adjustment (22,909,105) (21,467,893)

Total domestic customers 384,444,078 539,640,661
Foreign customers 330,810,123 347,000,159

Current portion 208,757 -

Value adjustment (16,627,452) (20,539,115)

Total foreign customers 314,391,428 326,461,044
Total domestic and foreign customers 698,835,506 866,101,705

As at 31 December 2010 the ageing structure of trade accounts receivable was as follows:

 Total	 Due	and	 	 Due,	but	collectible
	 	 collectible	 <	30	days	 30-60	days	 60-90	days	 90-120	days	 >	120	days

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2010 698,835,506 341,463,020 181,065,493 47,953,207 13,229,538 29,571,560 85,552,688

2009 866,101,705 379,926,058 263,345,481 67,985,222 45,075,488 23,125,620 86,643,836

Movement in the value adjustment of trade receivables was as follows:
	 2010	 2009

 HRK  HRK

Balance at 1 January 42,007,006 28,749,726

Impaired in the year 5,023,470 19,313,286

Collected in the year (7,493,919) (6,056,006)

Balance at 31 December 39,536,557 42,007,006
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28. Other receivables

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Receivables from the state and other institutions
Receivables for value added tax 29,032,008 39,113,294
Receivables from Croatian Health Fund 641,270 721,885
Other  954,357 551,215
 30,627,635 40,386,394
Other current receivables
Receivables for sold apartments 6,664,960 6,016,619
Receivables for shares sold 1,791,546 639,792
Receivables for advances given for services 23,869,193 29,449,118
Receivables for loans granted to employees - 10,075
Other 1,804,989 9,063,026
Current portions (see note 24) 5,250,238 6,272,921
Current portions  647,089 529,989
 40,028,015 51,981,540
Receivables from employees
Receivables from employees 1,891,408 1,319,181
Value adjustment (327,471) (327,471)
 1,563,937 991,710
Total 72,219,587 93,359,644

29. Current financial assets

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Loans granted, deposits and similar 155,489,822 149,620,937
Other 1,709,672 118,393
 157,199,494 149,739,330

30. Cash and cash equivalents

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Balance at gyro accounts 42,874,907 67,014,141
Balance at accounts in foreign currency 84,971,532 43,827,951
Petty cash 572,852 278,350
Cheques and similar 295,564 367,018
Deposits up to 3 months 299,040,898 191,091,287
Cash funds 150,849,092 7,523,421
Other 1,945,498 404,184
Less: value adjustment (184,992) (184,992)
 580,365,351 310,321,360
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31. Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Prepaid expenses and accrued income amounting to HRK 3,547,985 (31 December 2009: HRK 2,843,799) relate 
to paid future expenses amounting to HRK 3,009,067 (31 December 2009: HRK 2,756,560) and accrued income 
in the amount of HRK 538,918 (31 December 2009: HRK 87,239).

32. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale in the amount of HRK 3,870,959 relates to apartment which is in accordance with 
the Management’s Decision of the company Končar - Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec, held for sale amount-
ing to HRK 754,036 and prototype for wind aggregate 1.2 MW in the amount of HRK 3,116,923 which was at 31 
December 2010 reclassified from non-current intangible assets in accordance with the Decision of Supervisory 
Board of Končar Electrical Industry Inc on the programme of the construction of wind power plant Pometeno brdo 
and planned increase of capital in the company Renewable energy sources Ltd.

33. Share capital

Share capital is determined in the nominal value amounting to HRK 1,028,847,600 (31 December 2009: HRK 
1,028,847,600) and consist of 2,572,119 shares at nominal value of HRK 400.

Ownership structure of the Group was as follows:

Shareholder		 31	december	2010		 31	december	2009

 Number Ownership  Number Ownership  
 of shares share % of shares share %

HPB d.d. (capital fund) 724,515 28.17% 724,515 28.17%

Croatian Privatization Fund /HZMO 384,628 14.95% 384,628 14.95%

Croatian Privatization Fund 260,280 10.12% 278,925 10.82%

RBA d.d. (mutual account) 189,744 7.38% 190,171 7.39%

Societe Generale - Splitska bank/
Allianz for AZ mandatory pension fund 69,694 2.71% 71,501 2.78%

Floričić Kristijan 85,714 3.33% 85,714 3.33%

PBZ d.d. (Bank of New York as custodian)                 -                  -       77,307 3.01%

Societe Generale - Splitska bank./
Erste Blue mandatory pension fund 167,784 6.52% 146,785 5.71%

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank/
PBZ Croatia Insurance mandatory pension fund 75,497 2.94%                 -       -

PBZ d.d. (custodian account) 36,829 1.43%                 -       -

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank d.d./Raiffieisen pension company 37,000 1.44% 37,000 1.44%

Other shareholders 540,434 21.01% 551,813 21.45%

Končar Inc (treasury shares)                 -       - 24,460 0.95%

 2,572,119 100.00% 2,572,119 100.00%
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34. Provisions
	 Servicing	during	 Court	 Jubilee	and	 Other	 Total
	 warranty	 cases	 retirement
	 periods	 	 rewards

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK

31 December 2009 342,783,794 146,044,892 15,241,223 41,978,884 546,048,793
Additional provisions 125,538,407 18,035,857 11,485,077 - 155,059,341

Release of provisions (86,028,411) (3,618,539) (4,826,614) (27,990,880) (122,464,444)

31 December 2010 382,293,790 160,462,210 21,899,686 13,988,004 578,643,690

Provisions for contingent liabilities for issued guarantees for the return of advance amounting to HRK 114,957,270 
(2009: HRK 105,069,245) relate to value of advance in HRK amounting to USD 20,645,127 paid to companies of 
former Rade Končar, which went into bankruptcy. Advances have been received on the basis of agreed projects 
with Iraq state institutions before the year 1990. For the advances received guarantees have been issued in vari-
ous currencies, which countervalue in HRK as at 31 December 2010 amounts to HRK 62,670,652 (31 December 
2009: HRK 57,243,611). Guarantees in question are in abeyance due to situation in Iraq.

Other provisions for guarantees relate to issued guarantees of subsidiaries within the Group amounting to HRK 
267,336,520 (31 December 2009: HRK 237,714,549).

Non-current provisions for court cases in the amount of HRK 160,462,210 (2009: HRK 146,044,892) relates to 
court cases in progress and contingent costs for court cases led against companies within the Group.

Provisions for jubilee and retirement rewards in the amount of HRK 21,899,686 (2009: HRK 15,241,223) relates 
to regular compensations to employees (regular retirement and jubilee rewards), and severance payments to 
Management.

Other non-current provisions amounting to HRK 13,988,004 (2009: HRK 44,978,884) mostly related to personnel 
costs which could be realised on the basis of vested rights of share based payment options of the Group (HRK 
11.5 million). On the basis of Agreement of rights, obligations and salaries, President and Members of the Man-
agement Board earned the option rights in previous accounting periods (from 1 January 1999 until 31 December 
2010) to purchase 83,439 shares of the parent company. During the year 2010 the right on purchase of 27,583 
own shares has been realized. Vested rights can be realised until 18 January 2014.

35. Non-current liabilities

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar 2,380,000 2,890,000
Less: Current portion (note 37) (765,000) (510,000)
Total 1,615,000 2,380,000
Liabilities toward banks 125,298,944 120,089,751
Less: Current portion (note 38) (45,614,521) (48,061,529)
Total 79,684,423 72,028,222
Other non-current liabilities - 2,505,652
Less: Current portion - (1,494,762)
Total - 1,010,890
Total 81,299,423 75,419,112
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Significant long-term arrangements between banks and the companies within Končar group have been as follows:

• Long-term loan in foreign currency has been granted by Zagrebačka Bank to the subsidiary KONČAR - Electrical 
vehicles Inc in 2007 for the purpose of financing the Contract for main repairs and modernization of 14 electrical 
locomotives for Railway of Bosnia and Herzegovina. Usage of the loan is on the basis of revolving principle un to 
total granted amount of EUR 7 million, with the interest rate of 3-month EURIBOR plus 4% per annum, variable. 
Loan is repayable in instalments and the last instalment is due until 30 May 2014. Mortgage over the real estates 
has been registered as a collateral in the amount of EUR 7 million.

• Croatian bank for the reconstruction and development (CBRD) has granted long-term loan to the Company 
KONČAR-Power plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc which this company has took over on behalf of the 
Clinical hospital Mostar while the final payer of this liability is a Ministry of health and social care of the Republic of 
Croatia. Loan agreement has been signed on 10 October 2008 between the company in the amount of EUR 1,447 
thousand. Loan is repayable within 5 years and the interest rate amounts to 6-month EURIBOR plus margin of 
2% per annum. Collateral for the loan (beside the concession agreements) are bills of exchange and debentures.

• Raiffeisen Bank Austria d.d., Zagreb granted two loans from the development programme run by CBRD to the 
company Končar - Distribution and special transformers Inc amounting to HRK 15 million with currency clause 
and EUR 1 million, respectively, with interest rate amounting to 4% per annum. Due date for both loans is 31 
December 2014. Collateral for the loans are mortgage over the real estates and movables in the amount of EUR 
28.2 million. 

• Loan from Zagrebačka Bank is granted to the company Končar-Instrument transformers Inc bearing the interest 
5% insured by the mortgage over the real estates of that company in the amount of HRK 19 million.

• The company Končar - Household appliances ltd has concluded on 16 June 2010 Agreement on club loan in 
HRK with banks Privredna bank Zagreb and CBRD in accordance with A financing model. Loan is granted in the 
principal amount of HRK 15 million for the purpose of payment of current liabilities. Interest rate on Privredna 
bank’s share is defined as a yield on treasury bills of the Ministry of finance payable within 91 days plus 2.4% per 
annum, and on CBRD’s share 3.8% per annum, fixed. Due date is on 30 June 2013. Collateral is 1 blank accepted 
own bill of exchange of that company and of the parent company Končar - Electrical industry Inc, 1 debenture of 
the company and parent company Končar-Electrical Industry Inc, separately for PBZ’s share and CBRD’s share.

• As a collateral for the loan granted by Centar Bank to the company Končar - Metalne konstrukcije d.d. mortgage 
in bank’s favour over the real estate of that company in the amount of HRK 16.5 million.

Changes in liabilities for loans, deposits and similar during the year was as follows:
	 	31	December	2010

  HRK

31 December 2009  2,380,000

Repayment of loans  -

Less: current portion  (765,000)

31 December 2010  1,615,000

Long-term liabilities for loans, deposits and similar mature as follows:
	 	31	December	2010

  HRK

From 2 to 5 years  1,615,000

  1,615,000
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Changes in liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions during the year were as follows:

	 	31	December	2010

  HRK

31 December 2009  120,089,751
New loans  46,583,880
Repayment of loans  (42,064,331)
Foreign exchange gains/losses  689,644
Less: current portion  (45,614,521)
31 December 2010  79,684,423

Long-term liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions mature as follows:
	 	31	December	2010

  HRK

From 2 to 5 years  77,043,905
More than 5 years  2,640,518
  79,684,423

36. Current liabilities toward related parties

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Associates
Liabilities for loans received 6,877,160 28,219,344
Other liabilities 6,298,034 970,304
 13,175,194 29,189,648

37. Current liabilities for loans, deposits and similar

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Current portion of long-term loans 765,000 510,000
 765,000 510,000

38. Current liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions
	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions 102,413,703 150,131,616
Plus: Current portion (note 35) 45,614,521 48,061,529
 148,028,224 198,193,145
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Changes in liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions during the year were as follows:
	 	31	December	2010

  HRK

31 December 2009  198,193,145

New loans  43,354,903

Repayment of loans  (140,264,422)

Foreign currency gains/losses  1,130,077

Plus: current portion of long-term loans  45,614,521

31 December 2010  148,028,224

Significant short-term agreements between banks and certain companies within Končar group are were as fol-
lows:

• Loan from Zagrebačka Bank has been granted to the company Končar Generators and motors Inc bearing the 
interest rate of 5.9% (2009: 7.95%). It is used on a revolving principle, up to maximum amount of HRK 30 million 
in 2010. Collateral for the loan is: 3 blank bills of exchange, 1 debenture and mortgage over the real estate.

• To the company Končar Electrical vehicles Inc revolving loan has been granted for the export from funds of 
Croatian Bank for Reconstruction and Development for the purpose of financing of the Contract for the production 
and delivery of one four-part regional electromotor train for Bosnia and Herzegovina, with variable interest rate of 
5% per annum. Loan, which amounts to HRK 30 million, is repayable until 15 January 2011, the latest. Mortgage 
over the real estates in the amount of HRK 30 million is registered in bank’s favour.

• Three loans have been grated to the company Končar - Instrument transformers Inc by the banks Erste bank, 
PBZ bank and Zagrebačka Bank (HRK 10, 15 and 10 million) bearing the interest rate of 5%. For the loan granted 
by Zagrebačka Bank is secured by the mortgage over the real estates of that company.

• Two loans have been granted to the company Končar Household appliances ltd from Privredna Bank Zagreb 
(initially for the amount of HRK 20 million). By the annexes to the agreements loan amount is decreased to the 
amount of HRK 10 million. Interest rate amounts to 5% per annum, variable. Loan is secured by 1 blank accepted 
own bill of exchange and 1 debenture of that company and parent company Končar Electrical industry Inc.

39. Current trade accounts payable

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Domestic suppliers 233,761,556 268,210,179

Foreign suppliers 118,995,197 136,699,013

Liabilities for un-invoiced goods 5,263,460 13,594,256

 358,020,213 418,503,448

40. Current liabilities for advances

	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

From domestic customers 30,414,981 80,293,183

From foreign customers 149,782,529 117,648,705

 180,197,510 197,941,888
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41. Other current liabilities
	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Liabilities to the state and other institutions
Liability for value added tax 7,275,204 8,525,032

Liabilities for contributions and taxes on and from salary 26,459,474 39,575,621

Other liabilities 174,189 89,157

 33,908,867 48,189,810
Current other liabilities
Interests payable 2,786,654 1,684,814

Other liabilities 6,617,263 2,928,964

Plus: Current portion - 1,494,762

 9,403,917 6,108,540
Current liabilities toward employees
Net salaries 24,783,656 28,166,041

Liabilities for severance pay 8,000 1,053,750

Liabilities toward Management Board for bonuses 3,075,798 2,742,862

Liabilities to shareholders - 435,950

Other liabilities 256,281 624,831

 28,123,735 33,023,434
Total 71,436,519 87,321,784

42. Accrued expenses and deferred income
	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK  HRK

Deferred payment of corporate income tax 568,012  810,179

Accrued expenses 17,167,738  13,392,143

Deferred income 47,255,513  77,553,844

Current provisions 1,500,000  6,138,509

 66,491,263  97,894,675

43. Risk management

The Group is exposed in its business to market (interest and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Certain companies with the Group use derivative financial instruments as a protection from these risks. The risk 
management policies relating to current and non-current financial assets, current and non-current receivables, cash 
management as well as debts and liabilities can be summed up as follows:  

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the 
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance. The Group manages capital and 
for the purpose of proper capital structure, in accordance with the economic conditions present on the market, is 
makes appropriate adjustments. The Group can make a decision  if the retained earnings should be distributed to 
shareholders, if the capital needs increase or decrease, if the assets should be sold in order to decrease liabilities 
and similar. Goals, policies and processes have not been changed during the period ending 31 December 2010 nor 
for the period ending 31 December 2009.
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	 31	December	2010	 31	December	2009

 HRK 000  HRK 000

Interest bearing liabilities  230,092 273,111

Decrease for cash and cash equivalents (deposits) (580,365) (310,321)

Net debt - -

b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of finan-
cial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

Accounting policies for financial instruments are applied on the following Balance Sheet items:

2010	 Loans	and	 At	fair	 Available	 Held	to	 Total	assets
	 receivables	 value	through	 for	sale	 maturity	 classified
	 	 P&L	 	 	 per	IAS	39

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

31 December 2010      

Long-term financial assets 1,803 2,608 60 - 4,471

Non-current receivables 56,503 - - - 56,503

Current financial assets 157,199 - - - 157,199

Trade and other receivables 886,055 - - - 886,055

Cash and cash equivalents 429,516 150,849 - - 580,365

Total 1,531,076 153,457 60 - 1,684,593

2009	 Loans	and	 At	fair	 Available	 Held	to	 Total	assets
	 receivables	 value	through	 for	sale	 maturity	 classified
	 	 P&L	 	 	 per	IAS	39

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

31 December 2009      

Long-term financial assets 1,787 2,595 40 - 4,422

Non-current receivables 75,603 - - - 75,603

Current financial assets 149,739 - - - 149,739

Trade and other receivables 1,052,996 - - - 1,052,996

Cash and cash equivalents 310,321 - - - 310,321

Total 1,590,446 2,595 40 - 1,593,081

All of the Group’s liabilities have been classified as „At amortized cost“. The Group does not have liabilities which 
are classified as Liabilities at „Fair value through Profit and Loss“.

Fair value of financial instruments

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities valuated in the Statement of financial position in ac-
cordance with fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into 3 levels in accordance 
with the observability of input variables used in the measurement of fair value of financial assets and liabilities. 
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
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• level 1: quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities traded on active markets

•  level 2: input variables that do not represent the above stated prices from level 1 but are visible for assets or 
liabilities, be it directly (like prices) or indirectly (derived from prices for example)

• level 3: input variables for assets or liabilities which are not based on available market data 

The level within which a financial asset/liability is classified is based on the lowest level of a significant input vari-
able used I the fair value measurement. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of 
financial position are grouped within the hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2010

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets    

Listed securities 2,608 - - 2,608

Cash funds 150,849 - - 150,849

Total 153,457 - - 153,457

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

• the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid 
markets is determined with reference to quote market price:

• the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined in ac-
cordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices for observable 
current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;

• the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use 
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-
optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives; and

• the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the main assump-
tions are the probability of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from market-based credit information 
and the amount of loss, given the default.

The Group used the following methods and assumptions during its financial asset fair value estimation:

- Receivables and deposits at banks - For assets due within three months and cash funds, the accounting value is 
approximate to their fair value due to the shortness of the assets. For longer term assets, the contracted interest 
rates do not significantly deviate from the current market rates and their fair value is, therefore, approximate to their 
accounting value.

- Liabilities per loans received - Current liability fair value is approximate to their accounting value due to the short 
maturities of these instruments. The Management Board believes that their fair value doesn’t differ significantly from 
their accounting value.

- Other financial instruments - financial instruments of the Group that are not valued at fair value are trade receivables, 
other receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities. The historical accounting value of receivables and liabili-
ties, including provisions, that are in line with the usual terms of business, is approximately equal to their fair value.

c) Financial risk 

The Group’s Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through 
internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (in-
cluding currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the change in market prices, as change of foreign currencies and interest rates, would 
influence Group’s result of the value of its financial instruments. Goal of the market risk management is managing 
and controlling the exposure to this risk within acceptable parameters, thus, optimizing returns.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in materials’ prices, foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates.

There have been no significant changes to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it man-
ages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk management

The Group is exposed to this risk through sales, purchase and loans stated in foreign currency which is not the 
Group’s functional currency. Foreign currencies to which the Group is mostly exposed are EUR and USD. 

The Group exposes itself to foreign currency risk through sales, purchasing, loans and depositing of funds de-
nominated in foreign currencies. Certain companies within the Group make agreements for the purpose of hedg-
ing this risk.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2010	 EUR	 USD	 Other	 Total	foreign	 HRK	 Total
	 	 	 curencies	 curencies

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Trade receivables 332,580 5,846 33,557 371,983 326,853 698,836

Other receivables 36,341 651 2,323 39,315 36,856 76,171

Deposits up to 3 months 155,190 - - 155,190 - 155,190

Cash and cash equivalents 219,719 2,997 80,318 303,034 277,331 580,365

 743,830 9,494 116,198 869,522 614,040 1,510,562

Trade payables (157,321) (1,013) (8,052) (166,386) (191,634) (358,020)

Other liabilities (134,429) (5,719) (3,629) (143,777) (111,775) (255,552)

Loan liabilities (57,661) - (75,159) (132,820) (97,273) (230,093)

Deferred income (7,979) (5,084) - (13,063) (53,428) (66,491)

 (357,390) (11,816) (86,840) (456,046) (454,110) (910,156)

 

2009	 EUR	 USD	 Other	 Total	foreign	 HRK	 Total
	 	 	 curencies	 curencies

Trade receivables 374,471 1,366 18,364 394,201 471,901 866,102

Other receivables 38,434 486 66 38,986 61,787 100,773

Deposits up to 3 months 153,129 - - 153,129 - 153,129

Cash and cash equivalents 75,849 3,629 68,323 147,801 162,520 310,321

 641,883 5,481 86,753 734,117 696,208 1,430,325

Trade payables (193,884) (1,882) (4,632) (200,398) (218,105) (418,503)

Other liabilities (100,459) (5,227) (4,376) (110,062) (177,270) (287,332)

Loan liabilities (80,746) (3,873) (62,224) (146,843) (126,268) (273,111)

Deferred income - (6,107) - (6,107) (91,788) (97,895)

 (375,089) (17,089) (71,232) (463,410) (613,431) (1,076,841)
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	 Short-term	exposure	 Long-term	exposure
	 EUR	 USD	 Other	 EUR	 USD	 Other
	 	 	 currencies	 	 	 currencies

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2010      
Financial assets 683,343 9,494 115,348 61,092 - 850

Financial liabilities (326,910) (11,816) (11,644) (30,480) - (75,196)

Total exposure 356,433 (2,322) 103,704 30,612 - (74,346)
2009      

Financial assets 586,719 5,481 86,753 55,164 - -

Financial liabilities (323,965) (17,010) (9,008) (51,124) (79) (62,224)

Total exposure 262,754 (11,529) 77,745 4,040 (79) (62,224)

Sensitivity analysis

The weakening of the HRK in relation to the following currencies by the presented percentages at the date of reporting 
would increase/(decrease) the profit before tax by the following amounts:
 2010 2009
 Effect	on	income	 Effect	on	income
	 before	taxes	 before	taxes
 HRK’000  HRK’000

EUR (1%) 750 1,763
USD (9%) 1,315 1,277
Other currencies 3,486 2,060

This analysis assumes that all other, variables, interest rates especially, remain unchanged. A strengthening of HRK 
against the above currencies for the same average % at the reporting date would have had the equal but opposite 
effect on the profit before tax, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest risk since the part of loans received are agreed at variable interest rate while the 
most of assets does not bear interests. Certain companies within Group contract hedge against interest rate risk 
stated in foreign currencies.

The following table shows sensitivity of changes of interest rates relating to Group’s loans as of 31 December 2010 
and 31 December 2009, with the assumptions that all other variables are constant, on income before taxes.

2010 Increase	/	decrease		 Effect	on	income
	 in	percentage	 before	taxes

   HRK’000

HRK +1% (1,956)

HRK -1% 1,956

2009 Increase	/	decrease		 Effect	on	income
	 in	percentage	 before	taxes

   HRK’000

HRK +1% (2,216)

HRK -1% 2,216
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining suf-
ficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss form defaults. The Group 
uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The 
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value 
of transaction concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. 

Trade and other receivables - the Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual character-
istics of each customer. The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed 
individually for creditworthiness before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The 
Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables and investments.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Risk 
management is the responsibility of the Management Board which has build quality frame for the monitoring of 
current, middle and long-term financing and all depends related to liquidity risk. The Group manages this risk by 
constant monitoring of estimated and actual cash flow with the maturity of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table shows the maturity of financial liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2010 according to the 
contracted non-discounted payments:

	 Carrying	 Contracted	 Less	than	 1	-	3	 3	-	12	 1	-	5
	 value	 cash	flows	 1	month	 months	 months	 years

31 December 2010 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Current advances received 187,075 187,075 111,515 75,560 - -

Trade creditors 358,020 358,020 267,907 81,755 8,358 -

Other current liabilities  81,652 81,652 67,315 14,337 - -

Interest-bearing loans 230,093 238,381 54,044 93,288 89,917 1,132

 856,840 865,128 500,781 264,940 98,275 1,132

	 Carrying	 Contracted	 Less	than	 1	-	3	 3	-	12	 1	-	5
	 value	 cash	flows	 1	month	 months	 months	 years

31 December 2010 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Current advances received 226,161 226,161 149,515 76,646 - -

Trade creditors 418,503 418,503 299,268 119,235 - -

Other current liabilities  90,360 90,360 25,937 64,423 - -

Interest-bearing loans 273,111 296,272 59,605 161,166 72,960 2,541

 1,008,135 1,031,296 534,325 421,470 72,960 2,541
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44. Segment reporting

2010	 Industry		 Energetic	 Trade	 Special	 Company	 Eliminations	 Group
	 	 and	transport	 	 activities	 	 	

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Sales	 101,651,251	 1,968,102,227	 173,396,234	 66,433,975	 481,943	 12,011,721	 2,322,077,351

Sale	to	related	companies	 15,379,733	 319,195,602	 5,936,561	 106,550,682	 51,900,283	 (356,222,506)	 142,740,355

Other	operating	income	 3,001,379	 125,374,246	 5,660,853	 11,281,483	 27,424,426	 -					 172,742,387

Total	operating	revenues	 120,032,363	 2,412,672,075	 184,993,648	 184,266,140	 79,806,652	 (344,210,785)	 2,637,560,093

Total	operating	expenses	 (123,223,303)	 (2,314,036,482)	 (208,858,987)	 (174,568,372)	 (162,079,789)	 413,837,508	 (2,568,929,425)

Operating	profit/(loss)	 (3,190,940)	 98,635,593	 (23,865,339)	 9,697,768	 (82,273,137)	 69,626,723	 68,630,668

Financial	result	 1,327,717	 (637,948)	 (2,573,671)	 (568,086)	 143,788,226	 (8,321,832)	 133,014,406

Profit/(loss) before taxation (1,863,223) 97,997,645 (26,439,010) 9,129,682 61,515,089 61,304,891 201,645,074

Corporate	income	tax	 (866,167)	 (14,236,704)	 -	 (506,302)	 -	 -					 (15,609,173)

Net profit/(loss)for the year (2,729,390) 83,760,941 (26,439,010) 8,623,380 61,515,089 61,304,891 186,035,901

Non-controlling	interests	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -					 31,060,318

Profit for the Group -  -  -  - -  -     154,975,583

Non-current	assets	 38,336,751	 375,947,468	 141,214,976	 56,158,448	 1,149,126,978	 (577,800,071)	 1,182,984,550

Current	assets	 80,980,171	 1,625,568,624	 133,516,406	 150,759,675	 399,041,521	 (276,700,968)	 2,113,165,429

Total assets 119,316,922 2,001,516,092 274,731,382 206,918,123 1,548,168,499 (854,501,039) 3,296,149,979

Total liabilities 31,648,873 1,318,489,801 97,391,351 48,335,068 291,536,763 (285,427,236) 1,501,974,620

2009	 Industry		 Energetic	 Trade	 Special	 Company	 Eliminations	 Group
	 	 and	transport	 	 activities	 	 	

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

Sales	 92,968,274	 2,216,145,433	 179,576,883	 97,594,276	 483,884	 (20,667,015)	 2,566,101,735

Sale	to	related	companies	 11,655,062	 439,372,797	 10,236,916	 94,841,340	 55,629,889	 (502,699,822)	 109,036,182

Other	operating	income	 4,230,298	 80,893,229	 15,792,870	 8,348,418	 22,697,687	 (11,419,943)	 120,542,559

Total	operating	revenues	 108,853,634	 2,736,411,459	 205,606,669	 200,784,034	 78,811,460	 (534,786,780)	 2,795,680,476

Total	operating	expenses	 (113,304,494)	 (2,627,155,375)	 (227,728,018)	 (195,068,728)	 (127,022,630)	 529,690,128	 (2,760,589,117)

Operating	profit/(loss)	 (4,450,860)	 109,256,084	 (22,121,349)	 5,715,306	 (48,211,170)	 (5,096,652)	 35,091,359

Financial	result	 2,561,754	 (6,961,402)	 (3,179,272)	 3,029,428	 113,401,632	 14,433,691	 123,285,831

Profit/(loss) before taxation (1,889,106) 102,294,682 (25,300,621) 8,744,734 65,190,462 9,337,039 158,377,190

Corporate	income	tax	 (1,000,751)	 (11,786,273)	 -					 (476,999)	 -	 -					 (13,264,023)

Net profit/(loss)for the year (2,889,857) 90,508,409 (25,300,621) 8,267,735 65,190,462 9,337,039 145,113,167

Non-controlling	interests	 	-	 	-		 	-		 	-		 	-			 				-					 32,290,251

Profit for the Group  -   -    -   - -   -     112,822,916

Non-current	assets	 40,250,387	 404,965,690	 154,100,209	 56,361,567	 1,117,460,492	 (599,652,573)	 1,173,485,772

Current	assets	 80,117,106	 1,727,594,322	 164,324,748	 154,054,120	 372,426,431	 (401,248,129)	 2,097,268,598

Total assets 120,367,493 2,132,560,012 318,424,957 210,415,687 1,489,886,923 (1,000,900,702) 3,270,754,370

Total liabilities 29,970,054 1,559,696,662 114,645,916 60,822,501 295,595,806 (407,639,849) 1,653,091,090
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Sales by the regions was as follows:
	 2010 2009
 HRK’000 % HRK’000 %

Croatia 1,119,872 45% 1,443,485 54%

Countries in European Union 654,873 26.6% 591,193 22.1%

Bosnia and Herzegovina, Macedonia, Serbia and Montenegro 238,167 9.7% 197,064 7.4%

Other European countries 12,305 0.5% 14,807 0.6%

Middle East  111,568 4.5% 147,798 5.5%

Asia 123,384 5.0% 89,824 3.4%

America and Australia 27,760 1.1% 46,559 1.7%

Other countries 176,889 7.2% 144,408 5.4%

Total export 1,344,946 55% 1,231,653 46%
Total 2,464,818 100% 2,675,138 100%

45. Off-balance sheet items

Off-balance sheet items of the Group amounting to HRK 2,009 million (in 2009: HRK 2,094 million) mostly relate to the is-

sued collateral (guarantees, bills of exchange, debentures), solidarity guarantees, liabilities toward the state for apartments 

sold to employees (65%) and similar.

46. Contractual liabilities

Group’s contractual liabilities on the basis of unfinished projects as at 31 December 2010 amount to HRK 2,233 million 

(31 December 2009: HRK 2,458 million).

47. Subsequent events

After the balance sheet date and until the approval date of these consolidated financial statements there were no events 

that would significantly influence the financial statements of the Group as at 31 December 2010.
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48. Preparation and the approval of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements presented on the pages above have been prepared and approved by the 
Group’s Management Board as at 18 March 2011.

Signed on a behalf of the Group:

Darinko Bago,

President of the Management Board
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Profit and loss account
	 Note	 2010	 2009
  HRK HRK

Operating income   79,806,652 78,811,460
Sales revenue 3 52,382,226 56,113,773
Other operating income 4 27,424,426 22,697,687
Operatig expenses  (162,079,789) (127,022,630)

Cost of materials and energy 5 (5,229,385) (4,622,617)
Cost of services 6 (26,878,865) (26,968,447)
Personnel costs 7 (33,204,658) (22,947,097)
Depreciation and amortization 8 (7,336,036) (6,980,764)
Value adjustment of non-current assets  9 (57,925,456) (21,188,951)
Value adjustment of current assets 9 - (260,271)
Provisions 10 (25,802,155) (39,130,033)
Other operating expenses 11 (5,703,234) (4,924,450)
Operating result  (82,273,137) (48,211,170)

Dividends income from associates 12 74,791,631 65,962,736
Financial income 12 79,989,485 53,776,927
Financial expenses 13 (10,992,890) (6,338,031)
Financial result  143,788,226 113,401,632

Profit before taxation  61,515,089 65,190,462

Corporate income tax 14 - -
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  61,515,089 65,190,462

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (HRK) 15 23.92 25.35

Statement of  comprehensive income

Net profit for the period  61,515,089 65,190,462

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences  825,532 (19,272)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR   62,340,621 65,171,190

Notes are an integral part of the Statement of Comprehensive Income

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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ASSETS 
	 Notes		31	December	2010	31	December	2009 
  HRK  HRK

Intangible assets 16 244,953  422,183
Property, plant and equipment 17 227,337,228 211,368,584
Investement property 18  93,849,610  93,857,391
Investments in subsidiaries 19  723,283,592  688,532,318
Investments in associates  20 67,722,257 67,722,257
Financial assets 21  2,372,633  2,360,300
Receivables 22  34,316,705  45,444,440
Non-current assets   1,149,126,978  1,109,707,473

Inventories   6,091  17,479
Receivables from related companies 23  103,492,189  109,929,244
Trade accounts receivable 24  597,490  294,434
Other receivables 25  15,305,408 13,588,671
Short-term loans given to related parties 26  31,400,000  55,882,938
Financial assets 27  84,181,504 83,056,043
Cash at bank and in hand 28  163,325,576  108,862,227
Current assets    398,308,258  371,631,036

Prepaid costs and accrued income 29  733,263  795,395

TOTAL ASSETS    1,548,168,499  1,482,133,904
Off-balance sheet items   39  658,114,155    677,581,792 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital    1,028,847,600  1,028,847,600
Capital reserves   719,579  (2,940,923)
Legal reserves   11,389,054  8,129,531
Treasury shares                         -      (7,753,019)
Statutory reserves   75,489,055  44,523,585
Other reserves    47,436,438  34,788,675
Reserves from earnings   134,314,547  79,688,772
Retained earnings    31,234,921  15,752,186
Profit of the year    61,515,089  65,190,462
TOTAL EQUITY 30  1,256,631,736  1,186,538,097

Provisions 31  282,274,972  282,464,852
Long term liabilities 32 510,000  850,000

Liabilities to related companies 33  899,906  16,094
Liabilities for loans, deposits and similar 34  340,000  340,000
Amounts due to banks and other financial institutions 35                       -      1,742,743
Trade accounts payable 36  1,174,806  1,116,777
Other current liabilities 37  6,144,403  6,229,711
Current liabilities    8,559,115  9,445,325

Accrued expenses and deferred income 38  192,676  2,835,630

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,548,168,499  1,482,133,904
Off-balance sheet items   39   658,114,155    677,581,792 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION



Electrical Industry Inc.56

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Financial statements - 31 December 2010

	 Notes	 2010	 2009

  HRK HRK

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash receipts from trade accounts receivable  78,934,555 74,411,852

Cash receipts from insurance compensations  49,900 6,784

Cash receipts from interests  10,983,885 16,866,451

Other cash receipts  27,684,798 16,750,793

Total cash receipts from operating activities  117,653,138 108,035,880
Cash payments to trade accounts payable  (45,896,338) (49,823,749)

Cash payments to employees  (20,348,621) (21,470,053)

Cash payments to insurance companies  (514,028) (576,560)

Cash payments for interests  (141,159) (246,419)

Cash payments for taxes  (4,137,250) (8,903,357)

Other cash payments   (17,944,020) (11,301,483)

Total cash payments for operating activities  (88,981,416) (92,321,621)
Net cash flow from operating activities  28,671,722 15,714,259

Cash flow from investing activities

Receipts from the sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets  2,609,117 4,831,303

Cash receipts from the sale of financial instruments  5,976,566 3,541,927

Receipts from dividends  86,791,144 80,918,862

Purchase of non-current tangible and intangible assets  (20,960,209) (24,394,906)

Purchase of financial instruments  (69,158,109) (40,098,000)

Total cash inflow from investing activities  5,258,509 24,799,186

Cash flow from financing activities

Cash receipts from loans and borrowings  63,982,939 29,416,519

Other cash receipts from financial activities  51,519,155 2,171,833

Repayment of loans and bonds  (2,183,457) (4,996,016)

Dividends paid out  (72) -

Other cash outflows for financing activities  (92,785,447) (135,463,327)

Net cash used in financing activities  20,533,118 (108,870,991)

Increase/(decrease) in cash flow  54,463,349 (68,357,546)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  108,862,227 177,219,773

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  28 163,325,576 108,862,227

Notes are an integral part of the Statement of cash flows

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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	 Share	 Capital	 Reserves	 Reserves	 Treasury	 Retained	 Profit	 Total
	 capital	 reserves	 from	 for	treasury	 shares	 earnings	 for	the
	 	 	 profit	 shares	 	 	 year

	 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK	

Balance as at 1 January 2009 1,028,847,600 (1,387,727) 60,707,457 11,255,853 (11,255,854) 1,730,410 29,519,529 1,119,417,268
Transactions	with	owners:	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Distribution	of	profit	for	the
year	ended	31/12/2008	 -	 -	 19,000,587	 (3,502,834)	 -	 14,021,776	 (29,519,529)	 -

Employee	share-based
payment	options	 -	 (1,553,196)	 -	 -	 3,502,835	 -	 -	 1,949,639

Purchase	of	treasury	shares	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Profit	for	the	year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 65,190,462	 65,190,462

Other	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Foreign	exchange	differences	on	net
investments	in	foreign	operation	 -	 -	 (19,272)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (19,272)

Total	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 (19,272)	 -	 -	 -	 65,190,462	 65,171,190

Balance as at 31 December 2009 1,028,847,600 (2,940,923) 79,688,772 7,753,019 (7,753,019) 15,752,186 65,190,462 1,186,538,097

Transactions	with	owners:	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Distribution	of	profit	for	the
year	ended	31/12/2009	 -	 -	 49,707,727	 -	 -	 15,482,735	 (65,190,462)	 -

Employee	share-based
payment	options	 -	 3,660,502	 4,092,516	 (9,234,826)	 9,234,826	 -	 -	 7,753,018

Purchase	of	treasury	shares	 -	 -	 -	 1,481,807	 (1,481,807)	 -	 -	 -

Profit	for	the	year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 61,515,089	 61,515,089

Other	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Foreign	exchange	differences	on	net
investments	in	foreign	operation	 -	 -	 825,532	 -	 -	 -	 -	 825,532

Total	comprehensive	income	 -	 -	 825,532	 -	 -	 -	 61,515,089	 62,340,621

Balance as at 31 December 2010 1,028,847,600 719,579 134,314,547 - - 31,234,921 61,515,089 1,256,631,736

STATEMENT IN CHANGES IN EQUITY
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE 
COMPANY

Končar-Electrical Industry Inc, Zagreb, Fallerovo šetalište 

22, is a parent company of the Končar-Electrical Indus-

try Group. As a parent company, it prepares consolidat-

ed reports which are presented and audited separately. 

These financial statements represent Company as a 

separate entity. The  main activiities of the Company 

is a management of subsidiaries within Končar Group.

As at 31 December 2010 the Company had 49 employ-

ees, and as at 31 December 2009 the same.

Structure of employees is as follows:

 31 december 31 december

 2010 2009

Master degree 8 6

University degrees 25 29

College 7 5

Secondary school 8 8

Primary school+training on the job 1 1

Total: 49 49

Supervisory Board: 

Igor Lučić President

Jasminka Belačić Deputy

Ante Babić Member

Kristijan Floričić Member

Ruđer Friganović Member

Ivan Rujnić Member

Zdenka Matković Member

Đuro Perica Member

Nenad Matić Member

Management Board:

Darinko Bago President

Marina Kralj Miliša  Member, in charge of legal, gen-

eral and human resource activities

Jozo Miloloža Member, in charge of finance

Davor Mladina  Member, in charge of IT and trade 

activities

Vladimir Plečko  Member, in charge of corporate 

development and ICT

Amount of remuneration paid to members of the Man-

agement Board and Supervisory Board is stated in note 

7 and 11 to the financial statements.

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation

Statement of compliance

Financial statements of the Company are prepared in 

accordance with the applicable laws in the Republic of 

Croatia and with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Accounting policies remained unchanged when com-

pared to the last year. During the year, the Company 

have not applied any new or revised IFRS that might 

affected financial results or that might need additional 

discosures in financial statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the 

historical cost basis, except for certain financial instru-

ments that are stated at fair value. 

The accounting policies have been applied consistent-

ly, except as disclosed otherwise. The financial state-

ments are prepared on the accrual basis and on a going 

concern basis.

The financial statements are denominated in Croatian 

Kuna (HRK) as the functional and reporting currency of 

the Group. As at 31 December 2010 exchange rate for 

1 USD and 1 EUR was 5.57 HRK i.e. 7.39 HRK (31 De-

cember 2009: 5.09 HRK i.e. 7.31 HRK).

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations is-

sued by IASB, adopted by the Croatian Board and 

effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial state-

ments, below stated standards and interpretations have 

been issued in the Republic of Croatia and have been 

effective for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company has adopted new and revised Standards 

and Interpretations in the current period. The applica-

tion of the revised Standards has not materially affected 
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financial position and results of the Company’s opera-

tions and comparative information has been disclosed 

as required. Adoption of revised Standards had no ef-

fect on the equity as at 1 January 2010:

• IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS, cost of an invest-

ment at first application - revised (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IFRS 2 Share based payment - revised (effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - revised 

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2010),

• IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - revised ( effec-

tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2010),

• IAS 18 Revenue (effective for annual periods begin-

ning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 19 Employee Benefits - revised (effective for an-

nual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclo-

sure of Government Assistance - revised (effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 23 Borrowing costs - revised (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial State-

ments - Cost of an investment at first application (effec-

tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2010),

• IAS 28 Investments in Associates - revised (effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures - revised (effective 

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 

1 Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Aris-

ing on Liquidation - revised (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 36 Impairment of Assets - revised (effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 38 Intangible Assets - revised (effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meas-

urements - revised (effective for annual periods begin-

ning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 40 Investment Property -revised (effective for an-

nual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),,

• IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Es-

tate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2010),

• IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign 

Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2010),

• IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Own-

ers (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2010),

• IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (effec-

tive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2010),

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations - revised (effective for 

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discon-

tinued Operations - revised (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial State-

ments (effective for annual periods beginning on or af-

ter 1 January 2010),

• IAS 28 Investments in Associates - revised based on 

IFRS improvements (effective for annual periods begin-

ning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures - revised based on 

IFRS 3 amendment (effective for annual periods begin-

ning on or after 1 January 2010),

• IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meas-

urement: Eligible Hedge items (effective for annual pe-

riods beginning on or after 1 January 2010). 
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Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to 

existing standards that are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, 

certain new standards, amendments and interpretations 

to existing standards have been published but are not yet 

effective for the year ended 31 December 2010:

• 2010 IFRS Improvements (most of those improve-

ments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011),

• IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equi-

ty Instruments (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 July 2010),

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual pe-

riods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

• Amendments to IAS 24 Related party Disclosures (as 

revised in 2009) (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2011). 

Management anticipates that all of the relevant inter-

pretations and standards will be adopted in the finan-

cial statements of the Company for the first period 

beginning after their effective date and that their adop-

tion should not have a material impact on the Compa-

ny’s financial statements in the first year of application.

Use of estimates and judgements

During the preparation of financial statements, the 

management used certain judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the carrying amount of assets 

and liabilities, disclosures of contingent items at the 

balance sheet date and income and expenses for that 

period.

Estimations have been used, but are not limited on: 

calculation of depreciation and useful lives, residual 

value of property, plant and equipment and tangible as-

sets, impairment losses estimation, value adjustment 

for inventories and doubtful receivables, provisions for 

employee benefits and legal cases. More details on 

the accounting policies for these estimations are pre-

sented in other parts of notes. Future events and their 

effects cannot be estimated with a certainty. Due to 

that accounting estimates require judgement, and es-

timates that are used in the preparation of the financial 

statements are subject to changes from future events, 

additional experience, new additional information and 

changes in environment in which the Company and 

the Group operates. Actual results can differ from es-

timated results.

Summary of significant accounting policies used for 

the preparation of the financial statements for the year 

is presented as follows:

a) Revenue recognition

Sales revenue is recognized at the time when goods 

are delivered and services are rendered, and the title 

has passed. Interest income is calculated based on re-

ceivables which are not collected and using applicable 

interest rates.

Sale	of	goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all 

the following conditions are satisfied:

• The company has transferred to the buyer the sig-

nificant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

• The company retains neither continuing manage-

rial involvement to the degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• It is probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

• The costs incurred in respect of the transaction can 

be measured reliably.

Revenue from the services is recognized at the time 

when services are completed, using percentage of 

completion method.

b) Financial income and expenses

Financial income and expenses comprises interest in-
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come on loans and borrowings using the effective in-

terest method, interest income on funds invested, divi-

dend income, foreign currency losses and gains, gains 

and losses from changes in the fair value of financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in profit or 

loss, using the effective interest method.  Dividend in-

come is recognized on the date that the Company’s 

right to receive payment is established. 

Financial expenses comprise interest expense on bor-

rowings, foreign currency losses, changes in the fair 

value of financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss and impairment losses recognized on financial as-

sets.

c) Taxation

The Company provides for taxation liabilities in ac-

cordance with Croatian law. Corporate tax for the year 

comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the tax-

able income for the year, adjusted for amounts which 

are not included in the tax base or tax deductible ex-

penses. Corporate tax is calculated by using tax rates 

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax reflects the net tax effect of the tempo-

rary differentials between the book values of the as-

sets and the liabilities for the purpose of the financial 

reporting and values used for the purpose of estab-

lishing profit tax. A deferred tax asset for the carry-

forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits is 

recognized to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profit will be available against which the un-

used tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using 

the tax rate applicable to the taxable profit in the years 

in which these assets and liabilities are expected to be 

collected or paid. 

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense 

or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to 

items credited or debited directly to equity, in which 

case the tax is also recognized directly in equity.

d) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share data 

for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share is cal-

culated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to or-

dinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 

the period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the 

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstand-

ing during the period minus potential shares which 

arise from options.

e) Foreign currency translation

Assets, receivables and liabilities reported in foreign 

currencies are translated into Kuna’s by using Croatian 

National Bank’s middle exchange rate at balance sheet 

date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in 

the profit and loss account as incurred.

f) Long-term intangible and tangible assets 
(property, plant and equipment)

Non-current intangible and tangible assets are initially 

recognized at cost which includes purchase price, im-

port duties and non-refundable taxes after discounts and 

rebates, as well as all other costs directly linked to bring-

ing the assets into working condition for intended use.

Item of intangible and tangible asset is recognized 

when it is probable that future economic benefits as-

sociated with the item will flow to the Company and 

the cost of the item can be measured reliably, and 

when the cost is higher than HRK 3,500.

Subsequently after the initial recognition assets are 

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and less 

impairment losses.
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Maintenance and repairs, replacements and improve-

ments of minor importance are expensed as incurred. 

Where it is obvious that expenses incurred resulted 

in increase of expected future economic benefits to 

be derived from the use of an item of long-term in-

tangible or tangible property in excess of the originally 

assessed standard performance of the asset, they are 

added to the carrying amount of the asset. Gains or 

losses on the retirement or disposal of long-term intan-

gible and tangible asset are included in the statement 

of income in the period in which they occur.

Investment property (land, buildings) which are the 

property of the Company are held to enable the Com-

pany to realize rental income and as a short-term po-

tential for rendering of co-guarantees and solidarity 

warranties for related companies, as well as for capital 

appreciation with an intention of the future sale.

Depreciation starts when the fixed asset is available 

and ready for use, i.e. when it is appropriately located 

and in the right conditions needed for the use. Depre-

ciation ceases when the assets is fully depreciated or 

when the asset is classified as the non-current asset 

held for sale. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line 

basis for each fixed asset item over their useful eco-

nomic life (except for land and assets under construc-

tion), as follows:
 Depreciation rate
 (from-to%)

Intangible assets 25

Buildings 1.2 - 7.7

Plant and equipment 7.5 - 50

Tools, inventory and transport vehicles 25

Other assets 20

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews 

the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible as-

sets to determine whether there is any indication that 

those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 

such indication exists, based on internal and external 

sources of information, the recoverable amount of the 

asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of 

the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to 

estimate the recoverable amount of the individual as-

set, the Company estimated the recoverable amount 

of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation 

can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to 

individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are 

allocated to the smallest Company’s cash-generating 

units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation 

basis can be identified.

During the determination of impairment losses or re-

versal of impairment loss for an item of property, plant 

and equipment the depreciation rate is not changed 

but the useful life of an item is changed.

Recoverable amount is determined as follows:

• For land - price determined by the tax authorities in 

the determination of real estate tax is used;

• For buildings - market value of the same or similar 

buildings at the same location or the valuation by inde-

pendent evaluators is used;

• For equipment- net selling price - market price less 

costs to sale, e.g. last transaction price.

If the recoverable amount an asset (or cash-generating 

unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 

an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit 

or loss.

At every balance sheet date the Company reviews if 

there are indicators that the previously recognized im-

pairment loss no longer exist or it is decreased, and 

in that case the impairment loss is reversed fully or 

partially in the profit or loss account.

Increase of carrying value of an asset for the purpose 

of impairment loss reversal cannot be higher that the 

previously recognized impairment loss, decreased for 

the depreciation which would be calculated if the asset 

was not impaired.

g) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is meas-

ured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value 
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less costs to sell. Non-current assets are classified 

as held for sale when its carrying value will be recov-

ered principally through a sale transaction rather than 

through continuing use.

This condition is satisfied only if the sale is highly proba-

ble and the asset is ready for sale in its current condition.

Assets which are once classified as held for sale are no 

longer depreciated.

h) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leas-

es are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recog-

nised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the 

inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value 

of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding 

liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as 

a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance 

charges and reduction of the lease obligations so as 

to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged di-

rectly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an ex-

pense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 

i) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

Investments are recognized and derecognized on 

trade date where the purchase or sale of an invest-

ment is under a contract whose terms require delivery 

of the investment within the timeframe established by 

the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair 

value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 

assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, 

which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into:

“At fair value through profit or loss” (FVTPL)“

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the 

financial asset is either held for trading or it is designat-

ed as at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are stated 

at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized 

in profit or loss. 

“Held-to-maturity“

Bills of exchange and debentures with fixed or deter-

minable payments and fixed maturity dates that the 

Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to ma-

turity are classified as held-to-maturity investments. 

Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amor-

tized cost using the effective interest method less any 

impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective 

yield basis.

“Available for sale (AFS)“

Financial assets available for sale is non-derivative fi-

nancial assets which is designated as such or it cannot 

be included in none of the above mentioned catego-

ries. AFS is stated at fair value. Gains and losses aris-

ing from changes in fair value are recognized directly in 

equity in the investments revaluation reserve with the 

exception of impairment losses, interest calculated us-

ing the effective interest method and foreign exchange 

gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recog-

nized directly in profit or loss. Where the investment 

is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cu-

mulative gain or loss previously recognized in the other 

comprehensive income in revaluation reserves from 

investments, is included in profit or loss for the period.

“Loans and receivables“

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that 

have fixed or determinable payments that are not 

quoted in an active market are classified as loans and 

receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method, 

less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by 

applying the effective interest rate, except for short-

term receivables when the recognition of interest 

would be immaterial.
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Impairment of financial assets 

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are as-

sessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 

sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there 

is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more 

events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 

financial asset, the estimated future cash flows or the 

investment have been impacted.

For unlisted shares classified as AFS a significant or 

prolonged decline in the fair value of the security be-

low its cost is considered to be objective evidence of 

impairment.

For all other financial assets, including redeemable 

notes classified as AFS and finance lease receivables, 

objective evidence of impairment could include:

• Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or coun-

terparty; or

• Default or delinquency in interest or principal pay-

ments; or 

• It becoming probable that the borrower will enter 

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

De-recognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset only 

when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and sub-

stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

asset to another entity. If the Company neither trans-

fers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership and continues to control the transferred 

asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in 

the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may 

have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the 

risks and reward ownership of a transferred financial 

asset, the Company continues for recognise the finan-

cial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrow-

ing for the proceeds received.

When company derecognises (writtes off) all financial 

assets, the difference between book value and sum 

of received compensations and claims for compensa-

tions and cumulative profit (loss), recognized within 

other comprehensive income, transfers from equity to 

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued 

by the Company

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either 

financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 

substance of the contractual arrangement 

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences 

a residual interest in the assets of an entity after de-

ducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued 

by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, 

net of direct issue costs.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Share capital represents nominal amount of issued 

shares.

Capital reserves includes premium at the issuance 

of shares. Incremental costs directly attributable to 

issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduc-

tion from equity.

Reserves are stated at nominal amounts defined in 

the allocation of earnings, especially legal reserves, 

statutory reserves and other reserves.

Share repurchase

The amount paid for the repurchase of the Com-

pany’s own shares, including direct costs related 

to the repurchase, is recognized as an impairment 

within equity and reserves. Repurchased shares are 

classified as own shares and represent a reduction of 

equity and reserves. Purchase of treasury shares is 

recorded at cost and sale on negotiated prices. Gain 

or loss from the sale of treasury shares is recognized 

in equity.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured 

initially at their fair values and are subsequently 

measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obligation under the contract, 

as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

• the amount initially recognized less, where appro-

priate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accord-
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ance with the revenue recognition policies (dividend 

and interest revenue).

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at 

fair value through profit and loss when they are either 

intended to be traded or are classified as such by the 

Company. Financial liabilities at fair value through the 

profit and loss account are measured at their fair value, 

while the gains/losses relating to them are recognized 

in the profit and loss account. The net gain/loss recog-

nized in the profit and loss account includes any inter-

est paid in the name of the financial liability. 

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are ini-

tially measured at fair value, net of transaction cost.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured 

at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 

with interest expense recognized on an effective yield 

basis. The effective interest method is a method of 

calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and 

of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly dis-

counts estimate future cash payments through the ex-

pected life of the financial liability, or, where appropri-

ate, a shorter period.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, 

and only when, the Company’s obligations are dis-

charged, cancelled or they expire.

j) Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are companies in which the Company has 

the control which means power to govern the financial 

and operating policies.

Associates are companies in which the Company has a 

significant influence, but not the control e.g. power to 

govern the financial and operating policies.

Investments in an associates and subsidiaries are stat-

ed at cost.

k) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net 

realizable value. Costs of inventories comprise all pur-

chase costs, costs of conversion and other costs in-

curred in bringing the inventories to their present loca-

tion and condition. Cost of inventories is calculated on 

the basis of weighted average cost method.

Net realizable value is estimated selling price in an or-

dinary course of the business decreased by estimated 

completion costs and estimated selling costs.

In the cases when it is necessary to bring the inven-

tory value at its net selling price the Company makes 

inventory value adjustments recognized as an expense 

in the profit and loss for the current year.

Small inventory is depreciated by 100% when put into 

use.

l) Receivables

Receivables are initially measured at fair value. At the 

balance sheet date, receivables, whose collection is 

expected in the period longer than one year, are stated 

at amortized cost by using the effective interest rate 

method decreased for impairment loss. Current receiv-

ables are stated at initially recognized nominal amount 

decreased for appropriate value adjustment for esti-

mated uncollectible amounts and impairment losses.

Value of the receivables is decreased and impairment 

losses are incurred if and only if there is objective evi-

dence on the impairment as a result of one or more 

events which happened after the initial recognition 

when this event influences the estimated future cash 

flows for the receivables which can be reliably esti-

mated. At every balance sheet date the Company esti-

mates if there is objective evidence on the impairment 

of certain receivable. If the objective evidence on the 

impairment exists, impairment loss is measured as a 

difference between carrying value and estimated future 

cash flows. Carrying value of receivables is decreased 

directly or by the usage of separate value adjustment 

account. Impairment loss is recognized as an expense 

in the profit and loss account for the current year.
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m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits, cash at 

banks and similar institutions and cash on hand, shares 

in cash funds at demand or collectible within 3 months.

n) Received loans

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded 

on the basis of received amount decreased for direct 

cost needed for their approval. Financial costs, includ-

ing premium paid on the settlement or withdrawals are 

recorded on accrual basis and added to the carrying 

value of the instrument, only for the un-settled amount 

in period in which they occurred.

o) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that the Company will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 

can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provi-

sions are re-evaluated at every balance sheet date and 

adjusted according to the newest best estimates.

Provisions are determined for given warranties, costs 

of legal proceedings in progress, restructuring costs, 

severance pay costs and awards to employees for long 

term employment and retirement (jubilee awards and 

severance payments).

Provisions for awards to employees for long term em-

ployment and retirement (regular jubilee awards and 

severance payments) are determined as the present 

value of future cash outflows using the government 

bond interest rate as the discount rate.

p) Employee benefits

(i) Defined pension fund contributions

Obligations for defined contributions to pension funds 

are recognised as an expense in the income statement 

when incurred 

(ii) Bonus plans

A liability for employee benefits is recognized in provi-

sions based on the Company’s formal plan and when 

past practice has created a valid expectation by the 

Management Board/key employees that they will 

receive a bonus and the amount can be determined 

before the time of issuing the financial statements. 

For liability for bonuses it is expected that it will be 

settled within 12 months from balance sheet date, 

and the liability is recognized in the amount expected 

to be paid.

(iii) Share-based payments

The Company has a plan for share-based payments 

to the members of Management Board which are 

settled with equity instruments of the Company.Total 

amount that is recognized as cost and corresponding 

increase of equity are measured on fair-value basis of 

given equity instruments.Fair value of those equity in-

struments are measured on grant date.On every bal-

ance sheet date, the Company audits it’s estimated 

options number which complies to conditions for ac-

quisition of rights.

q) Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in financial 

statements, but only disclosed in the notes to the fi-

nancial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial 

statements except when the inflow of economic ben-

efits is virtually certain.

r) Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional infor-

mation about the Company’s position at the balance 

sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the fi-

nancial statements. Post-year-end events that are 

not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when 

material.

s) Comparatives and reclassifications

Where necessary, comparative figures have been ad-

justed to conform with the presentation in the current 

year.
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3. Sales
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Sales of goods to related parties 27,900,283 30,129,889

Rental income - related parties 24,000,000 25,500,000

Domestic sales of goods 481,943 483,884

Total 52,382,226 56,113,773

4. Other operating income
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Income from release of  provisions (note 31) 25,992,035 22,133,228

Net income from the asset disposal 316,384 34,427

Income from previous years 149,829 94,560

Income from subventions and insurance claims 49,900 6,784

Rent 22,433 20,320

Other income 893,845 408,368

Total 27,424,426 22,697,687

5. Cost of materials and energy
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Cost of energy 4,774,552 4,191,142

Cost of raw materials 399,283 376,265

Small inventory 55,550 55,210

Total 5,229,385 4,622,617
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6. Cost of services
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Maintenance 3,854,698 3,469,517

Utilities costs 3,212,735 3,112,918

Intelectual services 2,747,995 2,403,407

Entertainment costs 1,983,914 2,632,190

Cleaning services 1,962,254 1,958,278

Graphical services 1,682,098 1,831,237

Security services 1,538,878 1,740,383

Supervisory services and services of property management at Sesvetski Kraljevec 1,534,476 -

Advertasing services and fair costs 1,450,826 977,670

Telephone, postal services and transport 1,063,853 1,258,172

Education and training 934,983 1,132,050

Sponsorships and donations 842,387 1,100,600

Lawyer and auditing costs 695,301 2,075,437

Rental services and leases 548,624 541,066

Other services 2,825,843 2,735,522

Total 26,878,865 26,968,447

7. Personnel costs
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Share-based payments 12,483,990 -

Net wages and salaries 9,292,368 10,286,052

Costs of taxes and contributions 8,396,025 9,397,205

Contributions on salary 3,032,275 3,263,840

Total 33,204,658 22,947,097

Net wages and salaries in the amount of HRK 9,292,368 (2009 in the amount of HRK 10,286,052) contain com-

pensations to the Management Board consisted from theirs salary in the amount of HRK  2,137,166 (2009 in 

the amount of HRK 3,037,876) and accrued bonuses in the amount of HRK 1,768,000 (2009 in the amount of 

HRK 1,784,000), and are an integral part of personnel costs.

8. Depreciation and amortization
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Depreciation  7,158,806 6,789,606

Amortization 177,230 191,158

Total 7,336,036 6,980,764
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9. Value adjustments
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Value adjustment of shares in subsidiaries 57,925,456 21,188,951

Value adjustment of short-term receivables - 260,271

Total 57,925,456 21,449,222

The Company has recognized, at balance sheet date, impaiment loss on the shares in subsidiaries in the 

amount of HRK 58 milion.

10. Provisions
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Provisions for court cases 14,850,570 24,220,081

Provisions for costs within warranty periods 9,888,025 12,271,443

Provisions for regular retirement and jubilee awards 1,063,560 -

Current provisions - 2,638,509

Total 25,802,155 39,130,033

Movement in provisions by categories is presented in the note 31.

11. Other operating expenses 
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Compensations to members of the Supervisory Board 1,107,166 959,934

Work agreements and copyrights 1,069,930 545,766

Taxes and contributions non-dependable on the results and similar costs 943,876 975,174

Business trip expenses and travelling costs 799,368 825,045

Insurance premiums 525,347 576,560

Compensations to employees 453,345 441,613

Memberships, contributions and similar  295,905 313,160

Bank services and commissions 106,731 105,992

Other 401,566 181,206

Total 5,703,234 4,924,450
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12. Financial revenues
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

From the relations with associates

Revenues from dividends from associates 74,791,631 65,962,736

From the relations with related parties

Revenues from dividends and share in profits 23,370,581 30,249,462

Revenues from shares 16,971,892 -

Increase in share value (unrealised gain) 7,203,007 -

Interest income from loans 2,972,953 2,394,242

Other financial revenues - 108,164

 50,518,433 32,751,868
From the relations with un-related parties

Interest income on deposits 3,852,518 12,134,174

Yield from cash funds 2,710,913 -

Interest income on loans granted to employees 1,204,796 1,355,136

Interest income - other 577,282 605,916

Foreign exchange gains on deposits in foreign currency 19,934,492 4,304,772

Foreign exchange gains – other 1,036,066 1,820,473

Revenues from dividends and share in profits 96,335 9,451

 29,412,402 20,229,922
Unrealised gain (income) 58,650 795,137
 79,989,485 53,776,927
Total 154,781,116 119,739,664

13. Financial expenses   
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

From the relations with un-related parties

Foreign exchange losses on deposits in foreign currency 5,736,720 4,299,704

Foreign exchange losses on granted to employees 651,547 837,214

Foreign exchange losses on foreign loans  - 578,841

Foreign exchange losses  - other 307,445 515,271

Interest expenses 141,886 107,001

Unrealised losses(discount on borowings) 4,108,975 -

Other financial expense 46,317 -

Total 10,992,890 6,338,031
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14. Corporate income tax
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Profit before tax 61,515,089 65,190,462

Corporate income tax at 20% 12,303,018 13,038,092
Tax non-deductible expenses 15,073,753 5,172,404

Decreases of taxable basis (revenues from dividends and other) (29,685,096) (20,439,834)

Tax exemptions (government subsidies for education) (151,462) (182,062)

Tax asset on tax losses (2,459,787) (2,411,400)
Deferred tax asset from previous period (6,643,348) (4,231,948)

Deferred tax asset on tax losses to be carried forward (9,103,135) (6,643,348)

Tax liability - -

Current tax rate for the year 2010 and 2009 amounts to 20%. 

Tax losses to be carried forward for the purpose of reducing taxable profits are available in the period of the 
following five (5) years. As at 31 December 2010, deferred tax asset on tax losses amount to HRK  9,103,135. 
Unrecognized deferred tax asset expires as follows:

 31 december 2010 31 december 2009

 HRK HRK

31 December 2013 4,231,948 4,231,948

31 December 2014 2,411,400 2,411,400

31 December 2015 2,459,787 -

 9,103,135 6,643,348

15. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Net profit for the year 61,515,089 65,190,462

Weighted average number of shares 2,572,119 2,572,119

Earnings per share in HRK 23.92 25.35
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16. Non-current intangible assets

	 Concessions,	patents
	 licences,	software
	 and	other	rights	 Other	 Total

  HRK HRK

Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2009 468,629 653,207 1,121,836
Balance as at 31 December 2009 468,629 653,207 1,121,836
Balance at 31 December 2010 468,629 653,207 1,121,836
Accumulated amortization

Balance as at 1 January 2009 426,844 81,651 508,495
Amortization for the year 2009 27,857 163,301 191,158

Balance as at 31 December 2009 454,701 244,952 699,653
Amortization for the year 2010 13,928 163,302 177,230

Balance as at 31 December 2010 468,629 408,254 876,883
Carrying value

31 December 2009 13,928 408,255 422,183

31 December 2010 - 244,953 244,953

The purchase cost of completely amortized intangible assets which were in use on 31 December 2010 amounts 

to HRK 469 thousand.(2009: HRK 469 thousand)
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17.  Property, plant and equipment

	 Land	 Buildings	 Plant	&	 Tools,	 Other	 Assets	 Advance	 Total
	 	 	 equipment	 fittings	and	 	 under	 payments
	 	 	 	 transportation	 	 construction
	 	 	 	 equipment

	 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK		 HRK

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2009 62,584,201 242,787,725 14,700,717 3,875,619 50,776 4,829,018 882,174 329,710,230
Transfer	from	assets	under	construction	 -	 99,271	 544,477	 118,475	 -	 (762,223)	 -	 -

Additions	 1,583,231	 5,855,870	 -	 -	 -	 6,913,840	 10,652,324	 25,005,265

Disposals	 -	 -	 (240,680)	 (270,924)	 -	 -	 (1,433,583)	 (1,945,187)

Balance at 31 December 2009 64,167,432 248,742,866 15,004,514 3,723,170 50,776 10,980,635 10,100,915 352,770,308
Transfer	from	assets
under	construction	 3,913,630	 9,286,369	 8,179,306	 -	 12,600	 (21,391,905)	 -	 -

Additions	 4,406,214	 5,540,615	 12,832	 -	 -	 26,268,919	 13,849,782	 50,078,362

Disposals	 -	 (127,072)	 (355,213)	 (188,418)	 -	 -	 (22,247,401)	 (22,918,104)

Balance at 31 December 2010 72,487,276 263,442,778 22,841,439 3,534,752 63,376 15,857,649 1,703,296 379,930,566

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2009 - 123,766,267 7,104,672 2,910,134 - - - 133,781,073
Additions	 -	 1,327,176	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,327,176

Disposals	 -	 -	 (225,207)	 (270,924)	 -	 -	 -	 (496,131)

Deprecation	for	the	year	2009	 -	 4,984,720	 1,416,421	 388,465	 -	 -	 -	 6,789,606

Balance at 31 December 2009 - 130,078,163 8,295,886 3,027,675 - - - 141,401,724
Additions	 -	 4,633,951	 12,832	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,646,783

Disposals	 -	 (107,398)	 (318,159)	 (188,418)	 -	 -	 -	 (613,975)

Deprecation	for	the	year	2010	 -	 5,103,026	 1,764,732	 291,048	 -	 -	 -	 7,158,806

Balance at 31 December 2010 - 139,707,742 9,755,291 3,130,305 - - - 152,593,338

Carrying value
31	December	2009	 64,167,432	 118,664,703	 6,708,628	 695,495	 50,776	 10,980,635	 10,100,915	 211,368,584

31 December 2010 72,487,276 123,735,036 13,086,148 404,447 63,376 15,857,649 1,703,296 227,337,228

Additions in 2010 mostly relate to the purchase of real estate (land and buildings) at a carrying value from subsidiaries 
within Končar Group (warehouse located at Fallerovo šetalište and business facilities located at Borongaj) and continu-
ance of the assets under construction (an adaptation of a hall A needed for the production of wind turbines located at 
Fallerovo šetalište, Zagreb and investment in new switchyard TS 137 located at Sesvetski Kraljevec).

Cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment, which were still in use at 31 December of 2010 amounts 
to HRK 19,066,000 (2009: HRK 18,268,000).

The mortgage is registered over the land with carrying valueof HRK 46,321,000 and business facilities with carry-
ing value of HRK 69,530,000, as a collateral for subsidiary’s liabilities.

 At 31 December 2010 Company has the following contractual investments that are in progress:

1.  Investment (equipment delivery and performance of electrical installation and construction) in new switchyard 
TS 137 located at Sesvetski Kraljevec with contracted value of HRK 6,657,922. The investment has started in 
the middle of the year 2008, and it is currently in the process of takeover by HEP. Completion of the works 
relalated to routing and landscaping is planned for the end of May 2011.

2.  Investment in Hall “A“ with annexes for adjustments for project “Production of wind turbines“, has estimated 
value of HRK 7,577,000. Final completion of Hall “A“ is expecxted to be in June 2011.
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18. Investment property

Investment property in the amount of HRK 93,849,610 (2009: HRK 93,857,391) relates to the investments in 

real estates for the capital appreciation intended for future sale. Fair value of these investments estimated by 

independent evaluators is higher than their carrying value.

 

19. Investments in the subsidiaries
	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Subsidiaries in Croatia

Končar-Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 56,691,318 56,691,318

Končar-Electrical engineering institute In,, Zagreb 60,936,110 60,936,110

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 38,709,693 38,709,693

Končar-Small electrical machines Inc, Zagreb 48,600,512 48,600,512

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb 73,176,047 73,176,047

Končar-Instrument transformers Inc, Zagreb 12,402,769 12,402,769

Končar-Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 58,962,301 41,990,409

Končar-Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc, Zagreb 12,212,807 12,212,807

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 36,409,158 36,409,158

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 15,648,553 15,648,553

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 147,966,970 147,966,970

Končar-High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 36,694,847 36,607,847

Končar-Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd, Zagreb 81,432,641 81,431,951

Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 21,571,287 21,571,287

Končar-Tools Ltd, Zagreb 31,278,153 31,278,153

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and commissioning Inc, Zagreb 5,673,822 5,673,822

Končar-Power plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 21,301,212 21,301,212

Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb 68,489,300 900,000

Končar-Metalne kosntrukcije, Zagreb 16,703,123 16,703,123

Value adjustment  (126,111,256) (75,686,231)

 718,749,367 684,525,510

Subsidiary companies abroad

KONES AG, Zurich, Switzerland 4,534,225 3,753,889

Končar Intertrade, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia (dormant) 298,114 252,919

Value adjustment (298,114) -

 4,534,225 4,006,808

Total 723,283,592 688,532,318

Inreased investments in subsidiaries during the year 2010 relate to:

- Increase of capital in the company Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd., Zagreb in the amount of  HRK  67,589,300;

- Increased investment in Končar-Distribution and special transformers Inc, Zagreb in the amount of  HRK 16,971,892;

- Increase in the Company’s share in the company Končar-High voltage switchgear Inc. in the amount of HRK 87,000. 
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Shares in ownership and voting rights as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 were as follows:

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 Ownership Voting rights Ownership Voting rights  
 share % share % share % share %

Subsidiaries in Croatia:

Končar- Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Electrical engineering institute Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 75.03 75.03 75.03 75.03

Končar-Small electrical machines Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Instrument transformers Inc, Zagreb 43.40 72.35 43.40 72.35

Končar-Distribution and Special Transformers Inc, Zagreb 51.71 67.79 51.71 67.79

Končar-Medium Voltage Apparatus Inc, Zagreb 41.77 69.87 41.77 69.87

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 75.04 75.04 75.04 75.04

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 45.71 66.85 45.71 66.85

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-High Voltage Switchgear Inc, Zagreb 81.19 85.19 80.98 85.19

Končar-Low Voltage Switches and Circuit Breakers Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Tools Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and commissioning Inc, Zagreb 38.49 76.51 38.49 76.51

Končar-Power plant and Electric Traction Engineering Inc, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Končar-Metalne konstrukcije, Zagreb 75.01 75.01 75.01 75.01

Foriegn subsidiary:

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland 64.00 77.50 64.00 77.50

The Company made value adjustment of investments in subsidiaries at balance sheet date on the basis of imparment 

test (Note 9).

20. Investments in associates 

Investments in associates amounts to HRK  67,722,257 and are related to investments in Končar-Power Trans-

formers Ltd, Zagreb. 

21. Non-current financial assets

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Shares of Zagrebačka Bank 1,163,983 1,210,300

Shares of Croatia osiguranje d.o.o. 1,208,650 1,150,000

Total 2,372,633 2,360,300
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22. Long term receivables

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Receivable on the basis of sale on credit

Receivables for the sold apartments 9,473,723 16,501,016

Receivables for the shares sold 24,216,466 28,203,371

Receivables for banks’ guarantees - 807,931

Other loans granted 130,957 149,013

Other financial asset 439 439

Current portion (Note 25) (5,250,238) (6,272,921)

Receivable on the basis of foreing sale 5,954,115 6,055,591

Current portion (Note 24) (208,757) -

 34,316,705 45,444,440

In accordance with the Law on Sale of Apartments with Tenancy Rights, the apartments owned by the Company 

were sold at an interest rate of 1% per annum with the average maturity of 28 years and indexed. According to 

this index, receivables increase/decrease if the exchange rate of EUR is changed for more than 5.1% compared 

to the rate that existed at the signing date of the Sale agreements. Amounts of unpaid annuities in DEM have 

been converted in EUR at fixed rate of 1 EUR =1.95583 DEM. As a collateral the mortgage over the sold apart-

ments has been registered. 

As at 31 December 2010 value adjustment of long term receivables for sold apartments has been calculated on 

the basis of net present value of estimated cash flows using the discount rate of 4.9%.

Receivables for sold shares relate to long term receivable for sold shares in subsidiaries Končar-Electronics and 

Informatics Inc, Končar - Electric Vehicles Inc and Končar-Metalne konstrukcije d.d. within the  employee’s stock-

ownership program and with instalment payments through 10 years.

Receivable on the basis of foreign sales relates to receivable for the sale in Bosnia and Herzegovina through the 

company TAKRAF from Germany, taken by KfW Bank, Berlin. 
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23. Receivables from related companies
	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Trade receivables

Subsidiaries in Croatia

Končar-Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 12,935,213 9,914,463

Končar-Electrical engineering institute Inc, Zagreb 470,618 473,564

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 109,546 731,897

Končar-Small electrical machines Inc, Zagreb 363,038 428,272

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb 1,310,016 6,914,617

Končar-Instrument transformers Inc, Zagreb 785,735 1,234,499

Končar-Distribution and special transformers Inc, Zagreb 473,607 877,432

Končar-Medium voltage apparatus Inc, Zagreb 70,384 233,869

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 2,164,392 2,872,938

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 825,032 717,379

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 2,578,544 1,242,643

Končar-High voltage switchgear Inc, Zagreb 1,548,949 543,710

Končar-Low voltage switches and circuit breakers Ltd, Zagreb 747,272 1,084,379

Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 381,322 262,850

Končar-Tools Ltd, Zagreb  433,570 366,666

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and commissioning Inc, Zagreb 256,105 423,315

Končar-Power plant and electric traction engineering Inc, Zagreb 1,113,535 12,654,266

Končar-Metalne konstrukcije, Zagreb 971,839 1,130,364

Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb 200 10,549

Foreign subsidiary

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland 32,666 -

Associates

Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb 497,443 566,120

 28,069,026 42,683,792

Receivables for dividends

Associates

Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb 74,791,632 65,962,736

Receivables for interest 631,531 1,282,716

 103,492,189 109,929,244

As at 31 December 2010, the ageing structure of receivables from related parties was as follows:

 Total	 Undue	and	 	 	Due	but	collectible
	 	 collectible	 <	30	days	 30-60	days	 60-90	days	 90-120	days	 >	120	days

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2010 103,492,189 85,773,876 6,078,280 3,506,707 1,899,817 1,164,194 5,069,315

2009 109,929,244 85,455,826 4,269,639 3,526,593 4,001,832 6,296,878 6,378,476

Average collection days from subsidiaries and customers during 2010 were 320 days (2009: 349).
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24. Trade accounts receivable
	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Domestic customers
ThyssenKrupp Končar Dizala d.o.o., Zagreb 123,000 108,626

Elektroagregati Končar d.o.o., Rijeka - 20,602

Arma d.o.o., Zagreb 403,405 403,405

SDR d.o.o., Zagreb 40,917 40,917

Croatian chamber of economy 21,705 -

Artica d.o.o., Zagreb 189,975 189,975

Končar-Termotehnika d.o.o., Sesvetski Kraljevec 79,950 105,631

Končar-PEX d.o.o., Zagreb 303,239 299,405

Individuals 75,904 75,904

Other 22,310 21,549

 1,260,405 1,266,014

Value adjustment (871,672) (971,580)

Foreign customers 208,757 -

Total 597,490 294,434

As at 31 December 2010 the ageing structure of trade accounts receivable was as follows:
 Total	 Undue	and	 	 	Due	but	collectible
	 	 collectible	 <	30	days	 30-60	days	 60-90	days	 90-120	days	 >	120	days

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2010 597,490 34,339 29,688 20,203 30,633 37,506 445,121

2009 294,434 33,607 49,305 27,444 28,868 31,160 124,050

Movement in value adjustment of trade accounts receivable was as follows:
	 2010	 2009

 HRK HRK

Balance at 1 January 971,580 971,580

Impaired in the current year - -

Collected in the current year (99,908) -

Balance at 31 December 871,672 971,580

25. Other receivables
	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Receivables for the sold apartments 6,664,960 6,016,619

Receivables for the shares sold 1,791,546 639,792

Current portion of non-current loans 5,250,238 6,272,921

Receivables for interests 1,521,419 390,351

Receivables for corporate income tax - 193,174

Other receivables 77,245 75,814

Total 15,305,408 13,588,671
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26. Loans granted to related parties

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 1,000,000 -

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb - 20,800,000

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 28,500,000 20,000,000

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb  5,395,915

Končar-High voltage switchgears Inc, Zagreb 1,900,000 5,987,023

Končar-Power plant and electric traction engineering Inc, Zagreb - 3,700,000

Total: 31,400,000 55,882,938

Loans granted to related parties are repayable within one year bearing the interest rate of 7% per annum. 

27. Current financial assets

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Deposits over 3 months 84,181,504 83,056,043

 84,181,504 83,056,043

Deposits over 3 months are related to deposits in Zagrebačka Bank bearing the annual interest rate from 2.0% to 5.0%

28. Cash and cash equivalents 

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Balance at gyro accounts 4,335,250 5,042,587

Balance at accounts in foreign currency 350,375 418,428

Cash at bank in HRK 97,367 87,138

Cash at bank in foreign currency 29,208 16,124

Deposits up to 3 months 76,802,463 103,297,950

Cash funds 81,710,913 -

Total 163,325,576 108,862,227

Deposits up to 3 months relate to deposit in Zagrebačka Bank in the amount of CHF 12.950 thousand with inter-

est rate of 0.3 %.

Investments in cash funds are related to cash fund ZB Invest in the amount of HRK 30,126 thousand, Raiffeisen 

Invest in the amount of HRK 26,251 thousand and PBZ Invest in the amount of HRK 25,334 thousand. Avarage 

yields on during 2010 were from 2.10% to 3.51%.

29. Prepaid expenses and accrued income

Prepaid expenses are related to costs of participating on fairs, professional education and intelectual services.
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30. Subscribed capital

Subscribed capital is determined in the nominal amount of HRK 1,028,847,600 (HRK 1,028,847,600 on 31 De-
cember 2009) and consists of 2,572,119 shares of a nominal value of HRK 400. 

The ownership structure of the Company is as follows:

Shareholder	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 Number of Ownership  Number of Ownership  
 shares share % shares share %

HPB d.d. (capital fund) 724,515 28.17% 724,515 28.17%

Croatian Privatization Fund /HZMO 384,628 14.95% 384,628 14.95%

Croatian Privatization Fund 260,280 10.12% 278,925 10.82%

RBA d.d. (mutual account) 189,744 7.38% 190,171 7.39%

Societe Generale - Splitska bank/
Allianz for AZ mandatory pension fund 69,694 2.71% 71,501 2.78%

Floričić Kristijan 85,714 3.33% 85,714 3.33%

PBZ d.d. (Bank of New York as custodian)                 -                  -       77,307 3.01%

Societe Generale - Splitska bank./
Erste Blue mandatory pension fund 167,784 6.52% 146,785 5.71%

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank/
PBZ Croatia Insurance mandatory pension fund 75,497 2.94%                 -       -

PBZ d.d. (custodian account) 36,829 1.43%                 -       -

Hypo-Alpe-Adria-Bank d.d./Raiffieisen pension company 37,000 1.44% 37,000 1.44%

Other shareholders 540,434 21.01% 551,813 21.45%

Končar Inc (treasury shares)                 -       - 24,460 0.95%

 2,572,119 100.00% 2,572,119 100.00%

Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Official market of the Zagreb stock exchange under the name 
KOEI-R-A on 21 December 2010 in accordance with the Zagreb Stock Exchange Resolution from 20 December 
2010.

Movements of reserves in 2010 were as followed:

Legal reserves
 HRK

31 December 2009 8,129,531
Distribution of the profit for 2009 3,259,523

31 December 2010 11,389,054

Statutary reserves
 HRK

31 December 2009 44,523,585
Distribution of the profit for 2009 30,965,470

31 December 2010 75,489,055
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Other reserves
 HRK

Other reserves 34,788,675

Treasury shares (7,753,019)

31 December 2009 27,035,656
Distribution of the profit for the year 2009 15,482,735

Share-based options 9,234,825

Purchase of treasury shares (5,142,310)

Foreign exchange differences on foreign operation 825,532

31 December 2010 47,436,438

Retained earnings
 HRK

31 December 2009 15,752,186
Distribution of the profit for the year ended 2009 15,482,735

31 December 2010 31,234,921

Net profit of the current year

Operations of the company during 2010 resulted with net profit in the amount of HRK 61,515,089 (2009: HRK 
65,190,462).

Profit realised in the year 2009 in the amount of HRK 65,190,462 has been distributed, as per the decisions of the 
Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and the General Assembly, as follows:
 HRK

Legal reserves 3,259,523

Statutory reserves 30,965,470

Other reserves 15,482,734

Retained earnings 15,482,735

 65,190,462
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31. Provisions
	 Provisions	 Legal	 Retirement	 Other	 Total
	 for	 court	 jand	jubilee	 long	term
	 guarantees	 cases	 rewards	 provisions

 HRK  HRK HRK HRK HRK

31 December 2009 105,069,245 140,059,407 227,600 37,108,600 282,464,852
Additional provisions 9,888,025 14,850,570 1,063,560 - 25,802,155

Release of provisions - (399,445) - (25,592,590) (25,992,035)

31 December 2010 114,957,270 154,510,532 1,291,160 11,516,010 282,274,972

Provisions for contingent liabilities for issued guarantees for the return of advance payment in the amount of 
HRK 114,957,270 (At 31 December 2009 in the amount of HRK 105,069,245) relate to the HRK countervalue of 
advance payments in the amount of USD 20,645,127 paid to the companies of  former Rade Končar, which went 
into bankruptcy. Advance payments were received on the basis of agreed projects with Iraqi state institutions 
before the year 1990. For the received advance payments guarantees have been issued in various currencies, 
which HRK countervalue at 31 December 2010 amounts to HRK 62,670,652 (At 31 December 2009 in the amount 
of HRK 57,243,611). Guarantees in question are in abeyance due to situation in Iraq. 

Long-term provisions for legal proceedings in the amount of HRK 154,510,534 (At 31 December 2009 in the 
amount of HRK 140,059,407) relate to legal court cases in progress led against the Company in Croatia and abroad 
in the amount of HRK 151,131,810 and for potential costs for legal proceedings in the amount of HRK 3,378,724.

Other long term provisions in the amount of HRK 11,516,010 (2009: HRK 37,106,600) relate to personnel costs 
which could be realised on the basis of vested rights of share based payment options.

On the basis of Agreement of rights, obligations and salaries, President and Members of the Management Board 
earned the option rights in previous accounting periods (from 1 January 1999 to 31 December 2010) to purchase 
83,439 shares of the Company. During 2010 right to purchase 27,583 own shares has been realized. Vested 
rights can be realised until 18 January 2014.

32. Long term liabilities
	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Liabilities for loans

Fund for environmental protection and energy efficiency  850,000 1,190,000

Current portion (340,000) (340,000)

 510,000 850,000

Liabilities toward banks and other financial instiitutions

Zagrebačka Bank - 1,742,743

Current portion  - (1,742,743)

 - -

Total 510,000 850,000

Agreement for using funds from Environmental protection and energy efficiency fund for the purpose of financing 
“Increase in energy efficiency for reconstruction of business facility Končar“ project, by the loan granted, was 
concluded in 2006 for a period of 7 years with grace period of 2 years.The loan is interest-free and is repayable 
in semi-annual installments.
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Changes in liabilities for loans, deposits and similiar during 2010 are as follows:
 HRK

31 December 2009 850,000

Current portion (340,000)

31 December 2010 510,000

Long term liabilities for loans mature as follows:
 HRK

From 1 to 2 years 340,000

From 2 to 3 years 510,000

Current portion (340,000)

Total 510,000

33. Current liabilities toward related parties

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Končar-Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 471,636 -

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 561 -

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 389,522 -

Končar-Low voltage switches and circuit breakers Ltd, Zagreb - 13,005

Končar-Power plant and electric traction engineering Inc, Zagreb 38,187 -

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and commissioning Inc, Zagreb - 3,089

Total 899,906 16,094

34. Current liabilities for loans, deposits and similar

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Fund for environmental protection and energy efficiency 340,000 340,000

 340,000 340,000

Current liabilities for loans refer to current portion of loan according to Agreement for Environmental protection 
and energy efficiency fund usage, for the purpose of financing a project “Increase in energy efficiency for recon-
truction of Končar building“.

35. Current liabilities toward banks and other financial institutions

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Current portion - 1,742,743

Total - 1,742,743
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36. Current trade accounts payable

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Domestic trade creditors
GSKG, Zagreb 356,716 216,653

Grant Thornton revizija d.o.o., Zagreb 276,750 -

Cotrugli d.o.o., Zagreb - 197,475

Weishaupt d.o.o., Zagreb - 134,604

Prigorac d.o.o., Zagreb - 83,218

Znanje d.d., Zagreb 57,695 65,903

Ugostiteljstvo Zbiljski d.o.o., Zagreb 54,439 54,922

T-Mobile d.d., Zagreb 49,783 41,396

PBZ Card d.d., Zagreb - 23,073

Hrvatsko energetsko društvo, Zagreb - 20,000

Komunalac d.o.o., Zagreb 41,270 80

Vjesnik d.d., Zagreb  25,313 -

Berlitz-jezični centar d.o.o. Zagreb 14,080 -

Zagrebački holding d.o.o, Zagreb 11,408 10,856

Digitel komunikacije, Zagreb 31,365 -

Hrvatska autorska agencija, Zagreb 15,490 -

Hrvatski telekom, Zagreb 17,220 18,620

Siq Croatia d.o.o., Zagreb 18,357 12,337

Central Depositary & Clearing Company, Zagreb 12,564 12,231

Vis KG d.o.o., Varaždin 26,802 -

Zagrebačka banka d.d., Zagreb 42,399 9,355

Other 121,375 215,654

Foreign trade creditors 1,780 400

Total 1,174,806 1,116,777

Average payment days to creditors during 2010 were 35 days  (2009: 49 days).

As at 31 December 2010 the ageing structure of trade accounts payable was as follows:

	 Due

	 Total	 Undue	 <	60	days	 60-90	days	 90-180	days

 HRK HRK HRK HRK HRK

2010 1,174,806 946,218 197,742 13,031 17,815

2009 1,116,777 738,811 336,879 16,635 24,452
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37. Other current liabilities 

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Liabilities toward employees
Liabilities for salaries 360,977 546,276

Liabilities for bonuses on the basis of result for the current year 1,768,000 1,784,000

 2,128,977 2,330,276

Liabilities for taxes, contributions and similar
Liabilities for taxes and surcharges 2,816,321 3,331,835

Liabilities for value added tax 584,211 372,497

Liabilities for contributions 269,463 -

 3,669,995 3,704,332

Other liabilities
Liabilities for interest  11,000 11,000

Liabilities toward State for apartments sold 8,119 4,623

Liabilities for dividends 127,658 127,730

Other labilities 198,654 51,750

 345,431 195,103

Total 6,144,403 6,229,711

38. Accrued expenses and deferred income

Accrued expenses and deferred income in the amount of HRK 192,676 (31 December 2009: HRK  2,835,630) 
relate on  accrued expenses for the return of funds to Končar-Engineering Ltd Zagreb for accomplished payment 
according to out-of-court settlement with Minel Kotlogradnja Beograd. Refund of the expenses was made in 
January 2011.

39. Off-balance sheet items

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Subsidiary guarantee (Zagrebačka Bank,) 442,611,980 464,781,964

Apartments sold (65%) 100,597,102 99,407,257

Corporative guarantees / other banks 76,005,073 50,892,571

Bills of exhange 31,400,000 55,000,000

Debentures 7,500,000 7,500,000

 658,114,155 677,581,792



Electrical Industry Inc.86

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Financial statements - 31 December 2010

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. Transaction with related parties

2010
	 Operating	activities	 Financial	activities

	 Receivables	 Liabilities	 Revenue	 Expense	 Receivables	 Revenue

 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Name

Končar-Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 12,935 472 24,503 9,302 - -

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 2,579 - 1,790 44 - 316

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 2,164 - 3,674 - 28,664 1,851

Končar-High voltage switchgear Inc, Zagreb 1,549 - 585 - 2,273 316

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb 1,310 - 2,150 - 89 436

Končar-Power plant and electric
traction engineering Inc, Zagreb 1,114 38 3,391 23 - 41

Končar-Metalne konstrukcije, Zagreb 972 - 1,232 - - -

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 825 389 503 1,868 1,000 13

Končar-Instrument transformers Inc, Zagreb 786 - 1 ,468 - - -

Končar-Low voltage switches
and circuit breakers Ltd, Zagreb 747 - 736 111 - -

Končar-Distribution and special transformers Inc, Zagreb 474 - 4,454 - - -

Končar-Electrical engineering institute Inc, Zagreb 471 - 822 294 - -

Končar-Tools Ltd, Zagreb 434 - 315 - 5 -

Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 380 - 309 - - -

Končar-Small electrical machines Inc, Zagreb 363 - 649 - - -

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and
commissioning Inc, Zagreb 256 - 462 - - -

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 110 1 1,053 1,744 - -

Končar-Medium voltage apparatus Inc, Zagreb 70 - 444 - - -

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland 33 - - - - -

Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb 497 - 3,250 - - -

Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb - - 110 - - -

Total 28,069 900 51,900 13,386 32,031 2,973

The transactions listed in the above table do not include receivable and income from dividends, i.e. share in profit.

Dividend income, ie. share in profit is recognized in the amount of HRK 98,162,212 (2009: HRK 96,212,198).

At 31 December 2010 the Company has receivable for dividends in the amount of HRK 74,791,632 towards 
associate Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb
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2009
	 Operating	activities	 Financial	activities

	 Receivables	 Liabilities	 Revenue	 Expense	 Receivables	 Revenue

 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Name

Končar-Power plant and
electric traction engineering Inc, Zagreb 12,654 - 4,568 - 4,142 403

Končar-Energetika i usluge, Zagreb 9,914 - 25,993 7,779 - -

Končar-Generators and motors Inc, Zagreb 6,915 - 2,516 - 21,376 693

Končar-Electric Vehicles Inc, Zagreb 2,873 - 3,764 - 20,169 663

Končar-Household Appliances Ltd, Zagreb 1,243 - 1,825 49 5,434 366

Končar-Instrument transformers Inc, Zagreb 1,235 - 1,485 - - -

Končar-Metalne konstrukcije, Zagreb 1,130 - 1,303 - - 16

Končar-Low voltage switches and
circuit breakers Ltd, Zagreb 1,084 13 788 - - -

Končar-Distribution and special transformers Inc, Zagreb 877 - 4,385 - - -

Končar-Electronics and informatics Inc, Zagreb 732 - 1,329 1,766 - -

Končar-Switchgears Inc, Sesvetski Kraljevec 717 - 654 2,344 - 108

Končar-High voltage switchgear Inc, Zagreb 544 - 529 - 6,045 249

Končar-Electrical engineering institute Inc, Zagreb 474 - 872 260 - -

Končar-Small electrical machines Inc, Zagreb 428 - 692 3 - -

Končar-Engineering for plant installation and
commissioning Inc, Zagreb 423 3 466 5 - -

Končar-Tools Ltd, Zagreb 367 - 260 - - 4

Končar-Ugostiteljska oprema, Zagreb 263 - 356 - - -

Končar-Medium voltage apparatus Inc, Zagreb 234 - 518 - - -

Končar-Renewable energy sources Ltd, Zagreb 11 - 60 - - -

Kones AG, Zurich, Switzerland - - - 415 - -

Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb 566 - 3,267 - - -

Total 42,684 16 55,630 12,621 57,166 2,502

The transactions listed in the table above do not include receivable and income from dividends, i.e. share in profit.

At 31 December 2010 the Company has receivable for dividends in the amount of HRK 65,962,736 toward asso-
ciate Končar-Power transformers Ltd, Zagreb.
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41. Risk management

The Company is exposed in its business to credit, interest and foreign currency risk.

The Company doesn’t use derivative financial instruments. The risk management policies relating to current and 
non-current financial assets, current and non-current receivables, cash management as well as debts and liabili-
ties can be summed up as follows:  

a) Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the 
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt to equity balance.

The Company manages capital and for the purpose of proper capital structure, in accordance with the economic 
conditions present on the market, decides if the retained earnings should be distributed to shareholders, if the 
capital needs increase or decrease, etc. Goals, policies and processes have not been changed during the period 
ending 31 December 2010 nor for the period ending 31 December 2009.

	 31	december	2010	 31	december	2009

 HRK HRK

Long-term financial liabilities  510 850

Short-term financial liabilities 340 2,083

Less: cash and cash equivalents  (163,326) (108,862)

Net debt - -

Capital 1,256,632 1,186,538

Gearing - -

b) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis 
of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of finan-
cial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

Accounting policies for financial instruments are applied on the following Balance Sheet items:

2010	 Loans	and	 At	fair	 Available	 Held	to	 Total	assets
	 receivables	 value	through	 for	sale	 maturity	 classified
	 	 P&L	 	 	 per	IAS	39

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Long-term financial asset 34,316 2,373 - - 36,689

Short-term financial asset 115,582 - - - 115,582

Trade and other current receivables 119,394 - - - 119,394

Cash and cash equivalents 81,615 81,711 - - 163,326

Total  350,907 84,084 - - 434,991
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2009	 Loans	and	 At	fair	 Available	 Held	to	 Total	assets
	 receivables	 value	through	 for	sale	 maturity	 classified
	 	 P&L	 	 	 per	IAS	39

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Long-term financial asset 45,445 2,360 - - 47,805

Short-term financial asset 138,939 - - - 138,939

Trade and other current receivables 123,812 - - - 123,812

Cash and cash equivalents 108,862 - - - 108,862

Total  417,058 2,360 - - 419,418

All of the Company’s liabilities have been classified as “At amortized cost“. The Company has no liabilities that 
have been classified as “Liabilities at fair value trough profit and loss account”.  

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 

The following table represents financial assets and liabilities valued at fair value in the Statement of financial 
position according to the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities in three level, 
depending on the significance of input variables used in the measurement of their fair values. The fair value hier-
archy has the following levels:

• level 1: quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities traded on active markets

• level 2: input variables that do not represent the above stated prices from level 1 but are visible for assets or 
liabilities, be it directly (like prices) or indirectly (derived from prices for example)

• level 3: input variables for assets or liabilities which are not based on available market data.

The level within which a financial asset/liability is classified is based on the lowest level of a significant input vari-
able used I the fair value measurement. Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of 
financial position are grouped within the hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2010
In thousands of HRK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets    

Listed securities  2,373 - - 2,373

Cash funds 81,711 - - 81,711

Total 84,084 - - 84,084

31 December 2009
In thousands of HRK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets    

Listed securities  2,360 - - 2,360

Cash funds - - - -

Total 2,360 - - 2,360
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Shares in money market founds were placed under cash and cash equivalents. 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

• the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active 

liquid markets is determined with reference to quote market price:

• the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined 

in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices for 

observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments;

• the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, 

use is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments 

for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives; and

The Company used the following methods and assumptions during its financial asset fair value estimation:

Receivables	and	deposits	at	bank

For assets due within three months, the accounting value is approximate to their fair value due to the shortness 

of the assets. For longer term assets, the contracted interest rates do not significantly deviate from the current 

market rates and their fair value is, therefore, approximate to their accounting value.

Liabilities	per	loans	received

Current liability fair value is approximate to their accounting value due to the short-termness of these instruments. 

The Management Board believes that their fair value doesn’t differ significantly from their accounting value.

Other	financial	instruments

Financial instruments of the Company that are not valued at fair value are trade receivables, other receivables, 

trade payables and other current liabilities. The historical accounting value of receivables and liabilities, including 

provisions, that are in line with the usual terms of business, is approximately equal to their fair value.

c) Financial risk

The Company’s Management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company 

through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include 

market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash 

flow interest rate risk.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the change in market prices, as change of foreign currencies and interest rates, would 
influence Company’s result of the value of its financial instruments. Goal of the market risk management is man-
aging and controlling the exposure to this risk within acceptable parameters, thus, optimizing returns.

The Company activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in materials’ prices, foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates.

There have been no significant change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it 
manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk management

The Company is exposed to this risk through sales, purchase and loans stated in foreign currency which is not 
the Company’s functional currency. Foreign currencies to which the Company is mostly exposed are EUR, USD 
and CHF. 

The Company exposes itself to foreign currency risk through sales, purchasing, loans and depositing of funds 
denominated in foreign currencies. 

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2010	 EUR	 USD	 CHF	 Total	foreign	 HRK	 Total
	 	 	 	 currencies

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Long-term receivables 5,745   5,745 28,572 34,317

Trade receivables 209 - - 209 388 597

Short-term financial asset 84,191 - - 84,191 - 84,191

Cash and cash equivalents - - 76,793 76,793 86,533 163,326

Non-current provisions - - (75,159) (75,159) (207,116) (282,275)

 90,145 - 1,634 91,779 (91,622) 156

2009	 EUR	 USD	 CHF	 Total	foreign	 HRK	 Total
	 	 	 	 currencies

 HRK’000  HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

Long-term receivables 6,056   6,056 39,388 45,444

Trade receivables 83,056 - - 83,056 - 83,056

Short-term financial asset - 1,832 63,331 65,163 43,699 108,862

Cash and cash equivalents - (1,743) - (1,743) - (1,743)

Non-current provisions - - (62,224) (62,224) (220,241) (282,465)

 89,112 89 1,107 90,308 (137,154) (46,846)
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	 Short-term	exposure	 Long-term	exposure
	 EUR	 USD	 CHF	 EUR	 USD	 CHF

 HRK 000  HRK 000 HRK 000 HRK 000 HRK 000 HRK 000

2010
Financial assets 84,191 - 76,793  5,745 - -

Financial liabilities - - - - - (75,159)

Total exposure 84,191 - 76,793 5,745 - (75,159)
2009
Financial assets 83,056 1,832 63,331 6,056 - -

Financial liabilities - (1,743) - - - (62,224)

Total exposure 83,056 89 63,331 6,056 - (62,224)

Sensitivity	analysis

The strengthening of the HRK in relation to EUR for 1%, USD for 9%, CHF for 21% at the date of reporting would 
increase/(decrease) the profit before tax by the following amounts:
 2010 2009
 Effects	on	income	 Effects	on	income
	 befor	taxes	 befor	taxes
 HRK’000  HRK’000

EUR  (901) (891)
USD  - (8)
CHF (343) (232)

This analysis assumes that all other, variables, interest rates especially, remain unchanged.

A weakening of HRK against the above currencies for the same average % at the reporting date would have had 
the equal but opposite effect on the profit before tax, with assumption that all other variables remain constant.

b)  Interest rate risk

The company is not exposed to interest rate risk.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtain-
ing sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss form defaults. The 
Company only transacts with entities with good credibility. The Company uses other publicly available financial 
information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Company’s exposure and the credit rat-
ings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transaction concluded is spread 
amongst approved counterparties.

Trade	and	other	receivables	

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
The demographics of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country, in 
which customers operate, has less of an influence on credit risk. The Company has established a credit policy 
under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before standard payment and deliv-
ery terms and conditions are offered. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its 
estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Risk 
management is the responsibility of the Management Board which has build quality frame for the monitoring of 
current, middle and long-term financing and all depends related to liquidity risk. The Company manages this risk 
by constant monitoring of estimated and actual cash flow with the maturity of financial assets and liabilities. 

The following table shows the maturity of financial liabilities of the Company at 31 December 2010 according to 
the contracted non-discounted payments:

	 Carrying	 Contracted	 0	-	12	 1	-	2	 2	-	5	 More	than
	 value	 cash	flows	 months	 years	 years	 5	years

 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

31 December 2010      

Loans 850 850 340 340 170 -

Trade account and other payables  8,412 8,412 8,412 - - -

 9,262 - 8,752 340 170 -

	 Carrying	 Contracted	 0	-	12	 1	-	2	 2	-	5	 More	than
	 value	 cash	flows	 months	 years	 years	 5	years

 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000 HRK’000

31 December 2009      

Loans 2,933 2,933 2,083 340 510 -

Trade account and other payables 10,198 10,198 10,198 - - -

 13,131 - 12,281 340 510 -

42. Court cases and contingent liabilities
Several court cases are led against the Company in the country and abroad in the amount of HRK 276,219 thou-
sands.

At 31 December 2010 for these court cases the Company recognized the provision in the amount of HRK 154,511 
thousand.

Total guarantees issued by the Company are established in the amount of HRK 518,617 thousand (2009 in the 
amount of HRK 515,673 thousand) whereof the amount of HRK 349,039 thousand relates to performance guar-
antees (2009 in the amount of HRK 346,219,000). The Company has recognized provisions for these quarantees 
in the amount of HRK 114,957,000 (2009 in the amount of 105,069,000).

43. Subsequent events
After the balance sheet date and until the approval date of these consolidated financial statements there were 
no events that would significantly influence the financial statements of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

44. Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the Management Board and authorized for issue on 18 March 2011.

Darinko Bago

President of the Management Board
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